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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and distribution
of instant noodles and beverages in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Group started its instant noodle business in 1992, and
expanded into instant food business and beverage business in 1996.
In March 2012, the Group further expanded its beverage business by
forming a strategic alliance with PepsiCo for the beverage business in
the PRC. The Company exclusively manufactures, bottles, packages,
distributes and sells PepsiCo soft drinks in the PRC. After years of hard
work and accumulation, “Master Kong” has become one of the best-
known brands among consumers in the PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management system,
implements entire control over food safety and ensures product quality
and safety. We will constantly strive for product quality and food safety,
as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty and healthy food products.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 337 sales offices and 322
warehouses serving 76,528 wholesalers and 254,975 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2022. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables the
Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2022 was
US$10 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley
Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and distribution business, the
Group will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in the
PRC with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese Instant
Food & Beverage in the World”.
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Financial Summary

BZE12A31BLEFE

For the years ended 31 December

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
e Revenue 78,717,420 74,082,292 67,617,835 61,978,158 60,685,645
B R AT A Profit before taxation 4,148,804 5,808,643 6,531,912 5,411,596 3,979,334
1A Taxation (1,072,970) (1,424,976) (1,958,228) (1,693,374) (1,250,565)
REEHH Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769
i tepeaeal Profit attributable to:
RARRE Owners of the Company 2,632,312 3,802,482 4,062,263 3,330,981 2,463,321
DHIRFE R Non-controlling interests 443,522 581,185 511,421 387,241 265,448
RNE R Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769
[ig 8 Dividends *2,632,312 3,802,482 4,062,263 3,330,981 2,463,321
AR ARES ARE7 ARES ARED
RMB cents @ RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents  RMB cents
BFIEF Earnings per share
BN Basic 46.73 67.57 72.23 59.25 43.85
BE Diluted 46.71 67.51 72.15 59.20 43.77
* MEF2022 MK SR A K gk MA -
* Subject to approval by 2022 Annual General Meeting.
EemEER 03
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W12R31H
As at 31 December

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

ANRBTT  ANREFT ANREEFT AREFT AREFT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

REUEEHE Investment properties 1,832,200 1,807,100 1,771,700 1,771,500 1,119,000
WmE - BELERE Property, plant and equipment 21,259,417 = 21,510,028 21,934,571 23,013,991 24,927,630
PREAE Right-of-use assets 3,625,714 3,691,741 3,804,456 4,025,124 —
TR L EE Prepaid lease payments — — — — 3,570,367
BERNAER Interest in an associate 93,316 94,847 94,802 139,537 127,725
BENAER Interest in joint venture 614,316 625,163 627,031 889,065 698,743
EWEE Intangible assets 162,480 155,970 165,668 183,409 186,458
HitERBAE Other non-current assets 6,834,794 6,757,633 4,431,860 2,499,236 1,465,275
FRE(BE)EE Net current (liabilities) assets (7,677,469)  (4,158264) 1,629,302  (2,869,623)  (2,977,064)
EnBakE Non-current liabilities (9,929,293)  (8,075,718)  (9,720,007)  (6,606,132)  (5,505,703)
FEE Net assets 16,815,475 = 22,408500 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431
EIRA Issued capital 235,741 235,633 235,422 235,401 235,204
[ Reserves 13,135,785 18424343 20,877,302 19,343,173 19,418,272
DHRFE R Non-controlling interests 3,443,949 3748524 3,626,659 3,467,533 3,958,955
R RS Total equity 16,815,475 = 22,408,500 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431

4 EHEERERAT
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Sales Network
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.
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HEEM P B &M e BE HiE i3 Hith A%
Production Centre Tianjin  Hangzhou Guangzhou Shenyang Chongging  Wuhan Xian  Other Centres  Total
HEmE - i m m ) i " . .
s W W W W W W W
P e > > >
s @ & & &€ &€ &€ & = ¢
everage Business
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HE E YE HE gqE
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
& E T Sales Office 369 371 365 340 337
& & Warehouse 108 182 236 341 322
#Z 857 Wholesale 28,415 36,186 47,898 80,726 76,528
H%ZE Direct Retailer 140,779 185,789 210,366 256,567 254,975
BT AZ Employee 54,210 58,182 60,654 62,107 64,302
4 E4& Production Line 613 604 584 570 575
£ EEH# Production Centre 103 88 86 78 78

06 EMEZERERAR
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Chairman’s Statement
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Master Kong remains true to its original aspiration of “Promoting
Chinese Food & Beverage Culture”, takes “Serving Consumers” as
its purpose, and “Food Safety” as its cornerstone, and devotes itself
to creating a “Chinese National Brand” of comprehensive food and
beverages.

In 2022, Master Kong actively responded to the challenges, such as
COVID and fluctuations of raw material prices, and achieved steady
growth in performance.

Guided by the strategy to “Consolidate, Reform and Develop”, Master
Kong has been optimizing its product portfolio every step of the way to
offer more quality products to consumers. In pursuit of deliciousness,
Master Kong has also responded to the call of “Healthy China” and
launched a variety of sugar-reduced and oil-reduced products. In
addition, Master Kong has ensured proper production and shipment
as well as consumer services during the COVID control and lockdown
periods, with flexibility of supply chains, consumption behaviors tracking
and refined channel operation.

Master Kong pays its attention to sustainable development. In response
to the national guideline of “Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality”,
active measures have been taken to promote carbon inventory
investigation and energy conservation and emission reduction, launch
unlabeled products, and release the first standards of “Carbon Footprint
Accounting and Carbon Neutralization Evaluation” for tea beverages
in China. With a view to long-term development, constant efforts
have been made to drive digital transformation and build a team of
professional talents.

With the reopening from the adjustment of COVID measures, we are
confident to rise to the market challenges in 2023. The Board will
prompt the management team, on an ongoing basis, to operate in a
healthy manner and to serve consumers better. Here, | would like to
express my heartfelt gratitude to all the shareholders, fellow members
of the Board, management team, employees, partners and consumers
for their support over the years.

Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
27 March, 2023
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Group Structure
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Note: This chart illustrates TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.'s
direct or indirect proportion of ownership interest of its Principal Subsidiaries.
* represents direct translation of registered name in Chinese.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

In 2022, the macro-environment faced some challenges, but the long-
term fundamentals had remained favorable, with the GDP growth of
3% year-on-year and urbanization rate improved to 65.2%. During
the period, the rising price of bulk raw materials had mounted pressure
to the operation of the industry. The capricious COVID outbreaks also
limited the mobility of people and consumption occasions. However,
the middle class continued to grow, and the consumption potential
continued to be unleashed when penetrating to the new rural areas.
Household consumption habits lingered on, with growth in 020 and
community group purchase maintained. Consumers valued product
quality and healthy, while choosing more wisely and proactively looking
for cost-effective products. These trends brought opportunities for
industry development.

The Group pressed ahead by executing its established strategy to
“Consolidate, Reform and Develop” in 2022. It further dived into the
mass consumer markets, explored into the market targeting at the
middle class, and deployed efforts to tap into markets in the new rural
areas. As a national brand, the Group started from the operation safety
and corporate values to build its core competitiveness. It gave full
play to advantages of scale, continued to make brand investment and
product innovation, and promoted digital transformation to better serve
customers and consumers. According to the Kantar Brand Footprint
Report in 2022, Master Kong had been ranked among the Top Three
Brands as First Choice by Chinese Consumers for ten consecutive years.

In 2022, the Group’s revenue increased by 6.26% year-on-year to reach
RMB78.717 billion. The revenue from instant noodles grew by 4.17%
year-on-year, while the revenue from beverages grew by 7.89% year-
on-year. The gross profit margin of the whole year had a decline of
1.30 percentage points year-on-year and dropped to 29.09%. The ratio
of distribution costs to revenue rose by 0.15 percentage points year-
on-year to 21.35%. EBITDA declined by 14.07% year-on-year to reach
RMB7.210 billion; Weighed down by the year-on-year decrease in
gross profit margin and the year-on-year increase in distribution costs,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company contracted by
30.77% year-on-year to RMB2.632 billion; Basic earnings per share
declined by RMB20.84 cents to RMB46.73 cents.
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Instant noodles Business

In 2022, the Group’s revenue from the instant noodle business was
RMB29.634 billion, with a year-on-year growth of 4.17%, accounting
for 37.65% of the Group' s total revenue. During the period, the gross
margin of instant noodles decreased by 0.41 percentage points year-
on-year to 23.95%, due to the rise of raw material prices and shift in
product-mix. Due to the year-on-year decline in gross profit margin,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company in the instant
noodles segment declined by 31.42% to RMB1.375 billion in 2022.

Upon the 30th anniversary of the establishment of instant noodles
business, efforts had consistently concentrated on meeting the
demands of different consumers with a variety of offerings in price
bands, flavors and sizes in a multitude of occasions. In response to the
demand for consumption upgrading, active efforts had been made
for the offering of premium products. Efforts had been put in place to
grasp the opportunities of new retail channels, stay flexible for product
adaptation and marketing, build digital consumer management system,
refine private domain operation, and provide consumers with a greater
diversity of service experiences. The principle of “Quality is the First
Productivity” had been strictly followed. Efforts had never stopped to
improve the production layout, build digital production workshops, and
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the supply chains. It had
been all about taking the interests of consumers as the core, effectively
powering the sound development of the industry and contributing to

the sustainable development of the industry.

FRAR AR
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High-priced Noodles

High-priced noodles continued to consolidate core products, promote
brand rejuvenation, and capitalize on the advantage of scale, thus
serving consumers with products of multiple flavors and sizes. In parallel,
given the occasions of staying up late watching sports events and other
occasions, marketing campaigns were rolled out for reinforcement
on such occasions. “Roasted Beef Noodles” deepened the bond with
young consumers through interactions and communication by working
with Lay Zhang as its brand ambassador and co-creating the song “Let’s
Move”, thus conveying positive brand values and promoting brand
preference. “Hot Beef Noodles” never ceased to gain popularity among
consumers. “Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” worked hand in hand with
the brand ambassador, Yang Zi, to have boosted the brand awareness
rapidly. “Rattan Pepper Beef Noodles”, “Xiaomijiao Pickled Pepper Beef
Noodles”, “Old Mature Vinegar Sour & Spicy Beef Noodles” were highly
rated among the consumers, with their advantages of flavors. Innovative
flavors of “Golden Stock Beef Noodles” and “Light Spicy Pickled
Vegetables Beef Flavor Noodles” were launched onto the market,
where the product penetration rate had been boosted rapidly. “Master
Kong Dried Noodles” applied innovations to have designed water filters
for the convenience of consumers. “Master Kong BIG Bucket/Packet”
accomodated the needs of consumers for large portions.

Premium Noodles/Super-premium Noodles

The offerings of premium products were enriched to meet the needs
of the middle class for upgraded consumption. “Soup Chef” kept
communicating on “Proficiency in Every Type of Soups”, launched
“Soup Chef-BIG CUP" as a new size, and cooperated with gourmet
IP to improve penetration rate and preference of the brand. “Yu-Pin
Banquet”, as a gift product for the 30th anniversary, focused on the
emerging white-collar workers and new middle-class population, and
leveraged Luo Yonghao to trigger the topic to go viral, thus leading the
upgrading of instant noodle products towards the premium end. “Dried
Noodles Collection” converged signature dried noodles from all over
the places, accessed the market niche of dried noodles, and launched
products in this niche of various flavors and noodle assortments, which
were highly praised by consumers. In addition, both “Yu-Pin Banquet”
and “Dried Noodles Collection” won the Outstanding Instant Food
Innovation Grand Award in the Year of 2021-2022. “RanHun Noodles”,
as fried-free dried noodles, catered for the needs of young consumers.
“Express Chef’s Noodles” delivered the quality noodles as if original
from the noodle shops, continuously improved the product strength,
where the bowl noodles/self-heating noodles offered multiple sizes to
meet the needs of consumers in different occasions for food.

B EER
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Mid-priced Noodles/Snack Noodles

The Mid-priced Noodles were tailor-made for consumers in township
and rural areas, accomodating the demands of both affordability and
tastes. Efforts were made to continuously strengthen brand building,
and meet consumers demands for cost-effective products with large-
portion offerings via the product of “Master Kong 50% Plus”, realizing
a sustained and rapid growth in sales volume. As Snack Noodles,
the “Flavored and Crunchy” focused on the leisure snack market for
students and a wider population, came with a new flavor of “Sizzling
Barbecue”, where a brand-new promotion campaign was rolled out, in
assocation with the world-class IP “Pokémon” to keep enhancing the
brand awareness and brand preference.

Beverage Business

In 2022, the overall revenue from beverage business was RMB48.336
billion, with a year-on-year growth of 7.89%, accounting for 61.40%
of the Group' s total revenue. During the period, the gross margin
of beverages decreased by 1.88 percentage points year-on-year to
31.95%, due to the rise of raw material prices and shift in product-mix.
Due to the year-on-year decline in gross margin, the profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company in the beverages segment declined by
25.00% to RMB1.378 billion in 2022.

The beverage business focused on core categories, adhered to the
orientation of consumer demands, kept launching and nurturing
new products, and met the multi-occasion and healthy demands of
consumers with a rich product matrix. Efforts were geared to actively
expand consumer purchase channels, and to streamline distribution
channels. The price rationalization strategy was pushed forward in an
organized manner, with solid steps underway in brand building and
commitments to healthy operation sound and sustainable development.
The capacity layout was optimized, whilst the digital transformation of
supply chain was actively promoted, the pilot of the integrated data
management platform was in place, and the supply chain effectiveness
was improved. In response to market demands, capital expenditure on
outdoor consumption was moderately increased.

B EER
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RTD Tea

RTD tea focused on core products, consolidated the consumption
market of the public, and met the consumption demands of the
younger group in different occasions with a variety of flavors and sizes
of products. “Master Kong Ice Tea” teamed up with the new brand
ambassadors, Wang Yibo and the Teens in Times, to keep working on
a young and fashionable brand image to meet the needs of indoor/
outdoor consumption occasions. “Tropical Flavor”, the fruity-flavored
tea, caught on among the ACGN lovers. “Sugar-free Ice Tea” deployed
its presence into the healthy consumer market, leading the development
of the industry. “Jasmine Series” teamed up with national idol Gong
Jun to shoot a microfilm “Jasmine Only for You”, rolled out online and
offline joint promotion, and were loved by young consumers. “Green
Tea" packaging was restaged to intensify the brand image for the
vitality of young touch. The packaging of “Master Kong Peach Oolong
Tea” and "Oolong Tea"” was fully upgraded to fit into the preferences of
the new generation for fruit tea. The fruit tea series had the new arrival
of “Green Grape Green Tea" hitting the shelf, expanding the lineup
of the fifth brand of teas. “Pure Sugar-free Tea Beverage” was newly
launched to meet the thirst quenching/palate refreshment demand of
young consumers.

Carbonated Soft Drinks

The bottled carbonated soft drink business forged ahead to drive
innovations in categories and flavors, and met the consumer demands
for different drinking occasions with full-suite of sizes, packaging
and sugar reduction options, which registered an overall growth of
carbonated soft drinks across the board. “Pepsi-Cola” created a brand-
new Pepsi virtual idol family for Team Pepsi, ushered in the Pepsi’s meta-
universe, and introduced the upgraded serving platform titled “Delicious
Pepsi”. Pepsi series kept on delivering the three options of Osmanthus
Flavor and White Pomelo Bamboo Flavor. “Pepsi No Sugar” collaborated
with the national Top One mobile game IP, “Honor of Kings”, to capture
young consumers and met the demand for sugar-free consumption.
“Mirinda” launched mixed fruit flavors of Passion Fruit & Pineapple/
Passion Fruit & Coconut, and juice bubble drink introduced orange
flavor/apple flavor, all of which were positioned towards premium juice
carbonated soft drinks. “7UP" capitalized on Moji7o Grapefruit Flavor
to engage in operation with product differentiation. “Bubly Sparkling
Water” launched new flavors of apple/strawberry, restaged with new
packaging, expanded offerings of mixed flavor packaging, and worked
with Xiao Zhan to launch micro films for brand series to enhance brand
awareness and brand preference.
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Juices

The advantages of the multiple options of sizes and flavors were put to
good use, and the fusion of the Chinese and Western styles staged the
culture of “Chinese Style Drinks with Meal”. The Chinese juice of “Rock
Candy Pear” strengthened the brand image of “Moistening the Throat
for Every Moment"”, created a drinking occasion for good voice by
moistening the throat, and a new flavor “Rock Candy Red Grapefruit”
hit the shelf. “The Traditional Drink Sweet-Sour Plum Juice” integrated
modern juice-making process into Chinese classic drink, and highlighted
the effects of quenching thirst and benefits of refreshing the palate to
go with cuisines. The Western-style juice “Master Kong Juices” resorted
to tasty fruits to build an optimistic and joyful brand image. “NutriLight
Fruits”, on top of its core flavor of honey and grapefruit, extended the
series with other flavored products, including “Mango Flavor Drink” and
“Peach Flavor Drink”, etc. “Tropicana 100% " succeeded in grasping
online exposures, and focused on supermarket/convenience store and
other channels in the offline channel, and seized marketshare in the
category of 100% juice (ambient). The “Tropicana” focused on mixed
fruit flavors and pushed up sales scale.

Bottled Water

The bottled water business continued to satisfy different consumer
needs with products of various sizes and price bands, stressed on the
offering of large and small packages, and tapped into the consumption
demand of household occasions. “Master Kong Bottled Drinking Water”
worked with the Olympic Champion Guo Jingjing, and constantly
presented a brand image of “The Best Choice for Reassurance and
Health”. The 5L super-large packaging was offered to expand the
drinking occasions for household and catering settings. “Drink boiled
water” communicated the product positioning of “mild, safe and sweet
water”, upheld a competitive strategy of boiled water differentiation,
and cooperated with Cai Xukun to serve young consumer community
and met the water uptake needs of different occasions with multiple
sizes. “Aquafina” cooperated with the players of China Women's
National Football Team, and offered in full-suite of sizes to meet the
outdoor and home drinking occasions for consumers. “Soda Bubble
Water” was launched as a new product, and maintained collaboration
with well-known catering/coffee brands to expand into diversified
occasions for sales, which witnessed steady growth of sales.
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Coffee Drinks/Functional Drinks/Probiotics

“Starbucks Ready-to-Drink Coffee” had the Bottled Frappuccino
upgraded, and launched new products of Mini Bottled Frappuccino
and Oat Latte flavor Frappuccino, continued to strengthen the
comprehensive market coverage of Starbucks Select, and the overall
sales performance was outstanding. “Bernachon Coffee” launched
Benazon light and fresh series, with low sugar and low fat offerings to
meet the healthy needs of consumers. “Gatorade” cooperated with top
celebrities in sports at home and abroad and major sports associations
in China to cover a variety of sports occasions and maintained emphasis
on building the brand image of No.1 sports beverage. “Gatorade No
Sugar” took a proactive move to tap into the segmented market of
the light exercises and daily hydration. “Wei Chuan Ambient Probiotics
Drink” focused on core flavors. “Xiao Lao Duo Duo”, the lactobacillus
beverage was repackaged to manifest its healthy image featuring fresh
and fat-free happiness.

FINANCIAL OPERATION

The Group, with pursuit of a prudent cash strategy, has been
characterized with proficient control of capital expenditures and
effective promotion of asset activation, and is expected to generate
stable net cash inflows. During the year, the Group had a net cash
inflow of RMB4.475 billion from operating activities and a net cash
outflow of RMB3.380 billion from investing activities. During the period,

the Group promoted asset activation to yield in a net cash inflow of
RMB216 million.
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The Group continued to maintain a robust financial structure through
effective control on trade receivables, trade payables and inventories,
with sufficient cash holdings. As of December 31, 2022, the Group’s
bank deposits and cash amounted to RMB19.888 billion, with a
decrease of RMB2.073 billion over December 31, 2021. As of December
31, 2022, the Group's interest-bearing borrowings amounted to
RMB17.619 billion, with an increase of RMB3.957 billion over December
31, 2021. The net cash totaled RMB2.269 billion, down by RMB6.030
billion over December 31, 2021. At the end of the period, the ratio of
borrowings denominated in foreign currency to RMB was 31%:69%,
versus 96%:4% at the end of the previous year. The ratio of long-term
to short-term borrowings was 48%:52%, versus 46%:54% at the end
of the previous year.

The Group's total assets and total liabilities arrived at RMB58.449
billion and RMB41.634 billion, respectively as of December 31, 2022,
down by RMB1.860 billion and up by RMB3.733 billion respectively
over December 31, 2021; The debt ratio was 71.23%, up by 8.39
percentage points over December 31,2021; The gearing ratio increased
from -44.48% as of December 31, 2021 to -16.97% in the current
period.

Bt R Financial Ratio

2022 F 20214
12HA31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ELPK on [E 4 Turnover of Finished Goods 20.77 daysH 18.35 days/H
FEM R SRR 42 HR Turnover of Trade Receivables 8.93 days,” H 9.13 days,/ H
MBNEE & Current Ratio 0.76 Times,1& 0.86 Times, /&
BELLR(EEEHYENEEE) Debtratio (Total liabilities to Total assets) 71.23% 62.84%

FEEREALE(FEEME  Gearing ratio (Net borrowings to
AR FIIR R &) | shareholders’ equity) ' -16.97% -44.48%
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Long-term time deposits were also taken into account for the calculation
of the Group's gearing ratio, as management believed that this basis of
calculation reflected more accurately the Group's capital structure.
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The Group had 64,302 employees, as of December 31, 2022.

Investments in talents and comprehensive improvement in the
organizational efficiency had been maintained, based on the Group's
core competitiveness and strategy. Master Kong’s unique executive
development model was built. The digital transformation of HR was
accelerated, and gradually established a scientific selection mechanism.
Furthermore, the group has leveraged the internal trainer development
and external resources with the focus on training operating leaders and
executives.

The group has established partnership with 45 higher education
institutions and 70 vocational schools nationwide. A variety of offline
campus recruitment campaigns were implemented and multiple online
formats including cloud tours, livestreaming headquarters visits and
short videos were utilized, providing thousands of job offers to the fresh
graduates. In terms of partnership on vocational education, efforts were
retained to deliver and promote the “Master Kong Ordered Class”, and
the resource sharing and collaborative approach to prepare talents was
furthered.

Partnerships were deepened with selected domestic and overseas top
universities. The first phase of MBA Integrative Practical Projects (IPP)
was jointly delivered with the School of Economics and Management,
Tsinghua University. Cooperation with Harvard Business School on co-
developing a business case was realized and sharing of Master Kong's
experiences in the Chinese market with more than 180 international
executives was accomplished. Employees were selected and enrolled
in Waseda University to study advanced production and operation
knowledge. The joint project of big data modeling on Master Kong's
consumers was successfully accomplished with partners such as the
Wharton School.
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China’s economy is expected to make steady growth in 2023. The
recovery of consumption scenario is accelerated, and the enterprise
operation is full of opportunities. The Group has always been
underpinned by operation safety and corporate values, and supported
by the pillars of scale, brand, innovation, system and talents, and will
strengthen its core competitiveness from a future-oriented perspective,
thus facilitating the robust operation to create values for consumers and
shareholders.

The Group will unswervingly advance its strategy to “Consolidate,
Reform and Develop”, so as to expand and strengthen its main
operating business. The instant noodle business will continue to meet
the diversified demands of consumers with products that come with
multiple price bands, multiple sizes and diversified flavors, and keep
galvanizing the expansion of the scale of the entire industry. The
beverage business will keep its focus on core categories and promote
product structure adaptations to accomodate the needs of consumers
for different occasions.

In the face of the trend of increasingly diversified channels, online
and offline deployment will be adopted in parallel. The traditional
e-commerce channels will be strengthened, the 020 and community
group buying, together with other channels will be extended, and the
product categories and sizes from online channels will be enriched. And
efforts will be kept up to penetrate into the offline pathways, streamline
distribution channels, and improve the terminal store coverage rate
and service capacity. At the same time, the young brand ambassador
and virtual IP images loved by consumers will be selected to leverage
the rejuvenation marketing approach to promote the brand building
towards younger population.
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Digital transformation comprises an important direction navigated by
the Group. With business as the core, a solid digital talent echelon
will be built, data asset management will be strengthened and an
integrated data management platform will be created, to boost business
growth and operation performance. The Group also attaches great
importance to food safety and the green and sustainable development.
It is imperative to guard the bottom line of food safety and never
cease to strengthen food safety management and quality control.
Constant efforts will be directed at the practice of the low-carbon and
environmentally-friendly development philosophy, so as to bolster up
consumers’ pursuit for a better life.

The Group will dedicate to its mission of “Promoting Chinese Food
and Beverage Culture”, regard serving the needs of consumers
as its supreme purpose and food safety as the cornerstone, and
follow the robust business philosophy of “Cash is King”. With its
professional expertise, the Group will build a “Chinese National
Brand” of comprehensive food and beverages that is trustworthy for
the government, gratifying for business partners, and assuaring for
consumers.
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This report aims to present the performance of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (“Master Kong,” “the Company” or “We")
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG"”) in 2022 for
readers. For information regarding the governance section, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as included in this
annual report.

Report Preparation Standards

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guidelines of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Report Scope

Organizational scope of the report: Unless otherwise stated, the
organizational scope of this report covers the main office areas
and regular operating plants of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. in China, including the headquarters of Master Kong, the
Instant Noodles Business, the Master Kong Beverages Business,
the Pepsi Beverages Business and the Bakery Business, covering
the Company’s major ESG management policies and performance,
with no significant changes from the previous year.

Time frame of the report: Unless otherwise stated, the time frame
of the report is 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Reporting Principles

This report focuses on the Company's ESG philosophy and
commitment, and reports on our specific practices and key
achievements in the ESG area. This report adheres to the following
reporting principles:

Materiality: This report has been prepared by identifying key
stakeholders and their ESG issues of concern and making targeted
disclosures in the section headed “Stakeholder Communication
and Key Issues Materiality Assessment” of this report based on the
relative level of importance of their issues of concern.

EEER 23

2022 Annual Report 4 #§



IRl =5 e MEVAIRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

\.

Bi: AREXMELERNT A
RIIRE M & JE [ O BE 2 4 e
B BAREARETHEREVBIEETEN
AFERE . - RERHEFE
TH URERANERESKR
VB AR B M H S

PO ABEFREBECARAE
B8 BRABTETE 2 HA
HEMRAANESGRS -

—HM AREARE SR RRE
EF TR L BRIZS 2
RO AR RER AR - ARER — Bk
JFRAY

NAIEFEHESGERNKER
REBRE - ARKUAREERE
T UAMPHEEERERERA
SEERLEERE HEREAR
T -ARFEEREBESHAAE
SRCTTHRBHETEEZE A
REZBENEBELTRE -

ARBRLEREREFZMEET
EITEZAARBR  $IEESGE
BH KRBT EERARRRR
ERMBELLEBR P - THR
R IEHE B FEESGLE TS WK
B 02022F  RAIBIKBTLEE
R h R B ESG IR A @BAR -
WEHESGERREA QA SIS R
HAFEE - RAEHERTESG
BERZEEENTGEER E=g
R HEEREESHSIHESGH
REBOHEBERE  BBRITIERE
AEREGTHEMNERE  WEAR
HERHRESCHERZENEZEN
MIEES I TER R -

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

V ETBERERAT

Quantitative: This report uses quantitative information to present
environmental and social Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The
measures, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools,
and sources of conversion factors used for the KPIs in this report
are described where applicable.

Balance: This report provides objective disclosure of both positive
and negative information to ensure that the content presents an
unbiased view of the Company’s ESG performance during the
reporting period.

Consistency: The information disclosed in this report follows
the same statistical methodology as previous years and individual
changes have been explained to ensure consistency.

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
ESG governance and disclosure. The Company has established
the Sustainable Development Committee to assist the Board in
guiding and monitoring the development and implementation
of the Group’s environmental, social and governance tasks. The
Sustainable Development Committee is chaired by the Chairman
and CEO of the Company, with members of the Operating
Committee as members.

The Company has been exploring and refining its performance
in the ESG area by the implementation and integration of ESG
management principles and strategies in the Company’s risk
management and daily operation system as well as extensive
and in-depth communication with various stakeholders through
various channels. In 2022, the Company complied with ESG-
related laws and regulations in its operations and integrated ESG
management into its strategic development and daily operations.
The Company has reviewed the results of its materiality
assessment of ESG key issues, and the Board and Sustainability
Development Committee are actively accessing and managing the
related risks, opportunities and situation of each ESG key issues.
The management practices and performance on key ESG issues
are highlighted in this report.
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achievement of the ESG targets.

1)  Master Kong Sustainable Development Concept

With the mission of “Promoting Chinese Food &
Beverage Culture” and the vision of “Being the Most
Respected Food & Beverage Company”, Master Kong
upholds the sustainable development concept of
“Keep Our Nature Green”, incorporates the concept of
“Healthy Management” into various aspects of company
management, such as product development, talent
management, production processes, upstream and
downstream development, community engagement and
environmental sustainability, and communicates closely with
stakeholders and actively fulfils its social responsibility. We
continue to explore and refine our performance in the areas
of ESG, and are committed to sharing our corporate values
with our stakeholders to enhance social well-being and
enjoy “LIFE + DELICACY" together with our stakeholders.
Master Kong believes that “sustainable development is
good development”. The year 2022 is crucial for the “14th
Five-Year Plan” as well as the first year for the “second

|u

centenary goal”. As a Chinese national brand, Master
Kong has always combined enterprise development with
national development, combined the Group’s development
with consumer interests, closely followed the development
trend of the industry under the background of the “Carbon
Peaking and Carbon Neutrality” goal strategy, transformed
the national strategic potential into its own development
efficiency and strategically cooperated with external
resources to continuously promote itself, as well as the food

industry, to develop in a green and low-carbon manner.
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We are constantly exploring the actual needs of society,
combining the fundamental demands of stakeholders with
the characteristics of our own industry, making food safety,
product responsibility, energy saving and environmental
protection, win-win partnership and corporate contribution
as the five core tasks of ESG, actively leveraging our
industrial strengths and increasing our investment in order
to continue to make innovative contributions in the field of
corporate sustainable development.
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SR mIEHIE  BEERAIE
WEMISEE
Founding on brand integrity,
seeking product innovation,
meeting the needs of market

Keep Our Nature Green

W/’"V\/in Partne“\\\OS

A EET

EXRREE  BERZERE
ERET AR
Focusing on environmental
protection management,
advocating green development,
benefiting today and tomorrow

BEUARE  BEFAERE
HAMEEE
Sticking to people-oriented belief,
growing hand in hand with partners,
creating social values together

BEAR{E ESG A AL OMERS
Master Kong's Five Core Tasks of ESG
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2.

ESG Governance Structure and Actions

The Sustainable Development Committee of Master Kong
is chaired by the Chairman and CEO of the Company, with
members of the Operating Committee as members, and
comprises four working groups: Beverage Resources, Instant
Noodle Resources, Product Research and Development,
and Communication. The Committee guides work
implementation and performance evaluation on the
basis of a clear corporate ESG strategy and development
direction, regularly deliberates and makes decisions on work
objectives, report disclosure and related material matters, and
reports on work progress to the Board of Directors. Each
working group continues to promote the implementation
of relevant projects in accordance with its annual work
plan and reports regularly to the Sustainable Development
Committee and the Company’s senior management on the
progress of its work.

° Beverage Resources Working Group: Focusing on
plastic reduction and packaging management, the
Working Group actively promotes special projects for
beverage PET bottle weight reduction, light weight
bottle caps and paper straw replacement.

o Instant Noodle Resource Working Group: Focusing
on water conservation, energy saving and emission
reduction management, the Working Group focuses
on promoting special projects such as oil boiler
waste gas recovery, boiler emission reduction and
water recycling to improve the Company’s energy
management.

o Product Research and Development Working
Group: Focusing on the development and expansion
of healthy and nutritious products, the Working
Group actively promotes special research projects
on salt reduction, sugar reduction, fat reduction and
nutritional fortification to meet consumers’ needs for
nutrition and health.
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o Communication Working Group: Focusing on
enhancing the Company'’s sustainable development
impact, the Working Group works with various
working groups to introduce external resources
and to organize activities such as healthy diet
promotion and healthy research cooperation from
the perspective of food safety, healthy China and
sustainable development, and continues to promote
the Comprehensive Carbon Inventory Project.
Additionally, the Working Group promotes domestic
and international cross-industry communication and
cooperation in order to deepen its efforts and make a
greater impact in the field of sustainable development.

At the same time, Master Kong is further leveraging
the strengths of each business industry, enhancing the
relevance and practicability of ESG management, and
making continuous efforts to implement the sustainable
development concept of “Keep Our Nature Green”.

28 EMEERARAR
\ \ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



BRI HE

AHERRTDEEAN

ABEHAR - RMAETERRT
ATITENALENG T HEERR -

2023F 1R B EZ
I & B A Bk 22 40 48 A
(AT RFEIUNGC )

AR A E W - BIBRAT
FE 7B 4% INBAR) + 55 — B
KEWMmBRIEH
BEMBRTRER — — 1L
SDG & B B) /) JE 18 7F
BRIEH B PIRRT
212023 FHE A B AE AT 18
£ @ (UN ECOSOC) ¥
HRmEEE  DERIA
MR ETBRITIFER
RIBZ - S| BITEGZEE
R BRI -

NEATRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report [ INNGEG

3. Sustainable Development Actions and Performance

During the reporting period, we carried out the following
main actions and achieved the corresponding results:

Attendance at a UN high-end summit:

* In January 2023, Master Kong participated in the
side event of the United Nations Economic and Social
Council ("UN ECOSOC") Partnership Forum 2023
with the theme of “Accelerating Net Zero Transition
through Innovative Partnerships - SDG-driven Business
Solutions Across Sectors to Combat Ocean Plastic
Crisis”, which was hosted by the China Liaison Office
of the United Nations Global Compact (“UNGC")
and co-organized by the International Network for
Bamboo and Rattan (“INBAR”) and Yicai (8 —814%),
sharing the experiences of national brand enterprises
in practicing the concept of sustainable development
and leading the green transformation of the industry.

FEMEZ B RS
Master Kong was Invited to Attend the Side Event held by the UNGC

BReRZOasenRnTREe

EEEZER 29
2022 Annual Report 4 #§



EEE = e REA®RE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

o

UNGCTEEMZEEER £ &
RNIEEEIEEN .

202342 A * UNGC[1*
A5 B AR R
D JEEMREEE LR
BENERAE EGEEF
DNERPE o B A BB EE R
BEME  BAEE2IRE
BB TR ERRKEEH
LN KRB - RAE
72 R 1T B AR N TR FE R BUER
MBI E S AR RIEEE
o DFE T RAVEMNA
BERRKR  HERME
REFE RREREFR
MR R R AR BRI
] o

&

The closing ceremony of the Accelerator Programs in
China of the UNGC held at Master Kong:

In February 2023, the closing ceremony of the
UNGC “Target Gender Equality (TGE)” and “Climate
Ambition (CAA)” Accelerator Programs was held in
Master Kong Shanghai operation center. Siddharth
Chatterjee, the United Nations Resident Coordinator
in China, and Meng Liu, the UNGC General
Representative in Asia Pacific, attended and delivered
a speech. Chen Yinjang, the Chief Executive Officer
of Master Kong, delivered a welcome speech and
attended a high-level fireside dialogue. He shared
Master Kong's experience in sustainable development,
and discussed the achievements of carbon reduction
and the new direction of sustainable development
with several business representatives.

e 3

SREMEERA SN LSS REEAE (2022
= : mt )

I

EREM(E 2 N5 S B 2 IR AV BB EE IR 2ZTE B AR ER
Master Kong Attending the Closing Ceremony of the Accelerator Programs in China of the UNGC

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Jointly launching the initiative to reduce plastic and
carbon emissions:

202F 1A EERE
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HERMBE o

In November 2022, Master Kong, at the Fifth China
International Import Expo, as one of the initiators
of the first pilot project of UNGC “GDI for SDG”
("Global Development Initiative for Sustainable
Development Goals Acceleration”) —"Alleviate Marine
Plastic Pollution and Help Low-Carbon Economic
Transformation”, jointly launched a global carbon
reduction action initiative with 12 well-known
enterprises and organizations at home and abroad.
At present, the first pilot project of this initiative has
landed. Master Kong and its partners use rPET to make
“everything”,

including “rPET multifunctional storage

box”, luggage case and recycled raw materials.

BAELR2YAR GDI for SDG HiH
E BJJ e Et

T.".F L B

HOMOR (

'y :ﬁ Soas

B A Bl 2 IR 44 GDI for SDGIE B RIBh &
The Launch Ceremony of “GDI for SDG " Project of the UNGC
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B A E AR B & ME PET Z ekl &
The Picture Shows the rPET Multi-Function Storage Box that was Launched in the First Pilot Project

HE e R A SRR R ITE R Launching “carbon neutral” tea beverage and two tea

R E AR - beverage carbon related standards:

e 2022%F 107 - FRAN{EH# e In October 2022, Master Kong introduced the
7 B AR A A RO first carbon-neutral tea beverage with regular
[T JRWE - I flavor “Pure Sugar-free”, and obtained the carbon
RIS T BRAE R BEHR neutrality certificate issued by Guangdong Energy

bR E G BT A Conservation and Emission Reduction Standardization
BE o AR - EANHEE
RE R B LR
= BHE - 0ELET

Promotion Association. At the same time, Master
Kong, Guangdong Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction Standardization Promotion Association,

HERREEREDL TR
FEEREHR R DR AT B R R
ORI E m ik M
AHERMR )M IBE A
BRI ER B R M AR
BRI R A RHE IR A
EENBE R T HRARHE
ik /e B O 2 A i 1R HA 46 [E
AR FHAAETA -

scientific research institutions, upstream and
downstream enterprises, etc. jointly drafted and
launched two domestic first carbon footprint and
carbon neutrality evaluation standards based on tea
drinks, namely, the Technical Specification for Carbon
Footprint Evaluation of Tea Beverages ( {ZS3AZUEHiR
RUHERMT#EE) ) and the Technical Specification
for Carbon Neutrality Evaluation of Tea Beverage
Products ( {ZRFBEREIE RIKR T ERMRE) ),
which standardized the whole life cycle and detailed
calculation method of tea beverage carbon footprint
for the first time in the industry.

32 EMEERERAR
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SIEITEHREETNHER Leading the industry to jointly promote sustainable

B’ development:

o FERD{FH IS R B e Master Kong and Harvard Business School presented
# H 2 Il Master Kong: the case Master Kong: Growing the Instant Noodles
Growing the Instant Market in China to share Chinese experience with
Noodles Market in global corporate executives.

Chinal] - MEHXEES
ENERELR -

@ HARVARD [BUSINESS [SCHOOL

H.H-‘.r!:!:ﬂi‘l
Master Kong: Growing the Instant Noodles Market
in China

{Master Kong: Growing the Instant Noodles Market in China)Z I X f5#;[E
Screenshot of the Document Master Kong: Growing the Instant Noodles Market in China
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Master Kong shared its experience of sustainable
development at the “Beijing Forum - International
Experience and China Practice” jointly organized by
Peking University and Korea SK Group.

BEMEAEREILRHESZAIHEERER

The Chief Human Resources Officer Sharing Experience on Sustainable Development at Beijing Forum

o RENBTE2022 B
RIEERERTH2022
PEESGERE®E ] L
Bgh & 37 25 49 2L B B AR
BITHRMER)  EE
RABETSESEE =
5 B AT 5F PRAR € R AR A BX
s - WEERPR A Az A8
B RIEH]EE
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Master Kong and XINHUANET (R#49), at the “2022
Enterprise ESG Development Forum” held at the
2022 Boao Forum for Entrepreneurs, jointly released
the Green Action Case Collection ( (#7782l
Z M) ), which collected the successful experiences
on green carbon reduction of various businesses/
divisions under Master Kong in recent years to call on
all stakeholders to assist the “Carbon Peaking and
Carbon Neutrality” goal.

FETH EE LS
VS (&Ehdliﬁﬂ%ﬁ ?

(RETBHRIEAR )RS

The Launch Conference of the Green Action Case Collection

\\

34 EREERERAR
N TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



IRIE - LB REIAME | Environmental, Social and Governance Report [ ININGEGEG

EStgRa: Gaining social recognition:

e HEHINESE L) e At "2022 the First Ecosystem Brand Summit” jointly
Mt FEREERERS sponsored by Kantar, Caijing Magazine and Said
B s e[ 2022 % — Business School, University of Oxford, Master Kong
fEEREmEEE | E & became one of the first 12 brands to obtain ecosystem
B A 7 & BL 1S & A2 brand certification, and was successfully selected into
mERENI2KmEZ the case of “Ecosystem Brand Development Report
— - B AECERE M (2022)" and won the title of “Doer” in the “Ecosystem
R WM E(Q2022)FN Brand List 2022";

WAE[2022 A BE R RE R FE
BEE | mESIERITE I
i

by ECOSYSTEM BRAND
EVALUATION

a) £ BMILE

2022 E B mARIAE

Ecosystem Brand Evaluation 2022

{78 Doer

et

FEVH{Y Master Kong

o kanTAaR ey B oo

FRAMEAEC2022 AR MR AR B IS B8 )b SO BB 1TE |TE5R
Master Kong won the title of “Doer” in the Ecosystem Brand List 2022
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KANTAR WORLDPAME]

e The 2022 Brand Footprint Report was officially issued

by Kantar Worldpanel and Master Kong ranked among
the top three most chosen brands by consumers in the
PRC for the tenth consecutive year.

=+HeE2i
L

BRANDS OF THE DECADE

RREEEE T PEEBEEENAI = Mg
Master Kong Ranked among the Top Three Most Chosen Brands by
Consumers in the PRC for the Tenth Consecutive Year

e Master Kong successfully won the “2022 Influential

Enterprise of Practicing Lucid Waters and Lush
Mountains are Invaluable Assets (2022 E174%/K& 1L
e LRILFZENPERE)", becoming the only
food and beverage enterprise to win this honor.

191} L
e ) LR
i l‘i.‘nl 1T :I

BRAD BRI IS 2022 BITHOKE UBt—R S IWRILFZE ¥ Mg ]

Master Kong Successfully Won the “2022 Influential Enterprise of Practicing Lucid Waters
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Master Kong won Pepsi International’s “the Best
Bottler” for the Asia-Pacific region in 2021 and
2022, and successfully won the grand prize of Pepsi
International’s “the Best bottler” in 2021;

In November 2022, Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. was included in the Hang Seng Index, showing
its hard power and the investors’ recognition of
Master Kong;

In November 2022, with the advantages of product
innovation and rejuvenation, Master Kong's new
products “Dried Noodles Collection (¥#2%H€)" and
“Royal Feast (1 f& )" won the “2021-2022
Outstanding Innovative Products in Chinese Instant
Noodles Industry (2021-202246 EHhEFFER
mITEBFEIFER)" award at the “22nd China
Convenience Food Conference (E-+_—@F &
HERMAE)" hosted by the Chinese Institute of
Food Science and Technology, and the “Octagonal
Corrugated Box (J\AELIF#AE)" project won the
“Special Contribution Award for Environmental
Protection Packaging GRIR B I IR B B 18) “.

Fot_EFELERAAE

The 22nd China Convenience Food Conference

EgmEERr 37

2022 Annual Report 4 #§



IRl =5 e MEVAIRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

\.

o 2022[[RFEH|HFT(red
RIS ES |  RAVER
FEAIOT %5 8t B £ B8 /K 78
THE - SE2022FE[H
MAEME | 2EER
BERME - —FEHBE
BIFT R4 . R /RS
EERYB(LEEIER -
BISFEESEA A o

e On the Dingge Awards 2022 Digital Transformation
Pioneer List, Master Kong won the “2022 '‘New
China Enterprise’ All-green Sustainable Development
Enterprise - Annual Green Innovation Enterprise
Award Q022FE"HAPEEE " 2REAFEER
E-FELBAIFDEL)" with the AIOT intelligent
energy-saving refrigerator project. We also won the
“Operation Pioneer of the Year” by virtue of the
intelligent transformation of accounting business

project.
Haryard Harvard
Businaas Business
o It:'.ll-nu_'._ o Review
s Y vmeety i [
i
ERE 51 FSARy
r— e BT
i{.f:!'—?ﬁm‘ CFLCEES [
JF T AN i =

My i Copep ey

[2022 o [ 2 |BhoP{L B R) SE 8245 | 520
“Dingge Awards 2022 Digital Transformation Pioneer List "
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

v BT ERARA R

Stakeholder Communication and Key Issues
Materiality Assessment

Through continuous communication with various
stakeholders through various channels, Master Kong
actively understands the expectations and requirements
of our stakeholders and strives to meet their needs in a
practical manner while developing our business. In 2022,
we reviewed the importance of each key ESG issue to our
business development and to our stakeholders.



BRRERBREE
Shareholders
and Investors

BT
Employees

BHE(EEF)
Distributors
(including
customers)

AIER
Suppliers

B REEKE
Government
and Agencies

HERAR
Communities and
the Public

EREEHA#E
Universities
and Research
Institutions
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Descriptions of Stakeholders

HRMEETAERE BFRENBEAIMIEA
Domestic and overseas legitimate equity and debt
investors to Master Kong

HLERADEZ T E RS EE [ J 5 F RS HO R AN (F 2
BHIAE

Personnel who sign a formal employment
agreement with the Company and who serve the
Company in a regular basis

EERERMEE TS REERORE  HHE
B

Companies, stores or individual businesses that
legally distributing various branded products of
Master Kong

RRAE S EHEEEYE  BHRBALAMS
B - Ak ERE P

Companies, stores or individual businesses
that legally supplying production materials,
accessories and office supplies to Master Kong

5 BFRP R R - B BR R BEE
B3

Food, taxation, environmental protection, safety
and other authorities; local governments; the SFC
and other regulatory agencies

BEREM S AR EREN SRS - BRE - B
AR R EAEEEN S

Newspapers, TV stations, Internet companies and
other media agencies that have established legal
partnerships with Master Kong

BEMMAAR  HEAR - EIFENERE
Local communities, the public, non profit
organizations, etc.

BEREN SR A ERRAOAE -
i

Universities, colleges and research institutes
partnering with Master Kong

B HRAEH

M a5 AERE T KO BT Ol e

Communication Channels
and Responses

REAE® bEFH  EELE  BES
General meetings of shareholders,
annual reports, interim reports, results
announcements, roadshows, etc.

BT BAE BIHI BIFMW-
REABTIME

Staff activities, staff representative
congress, staff training, staff manuals,
corporate publications, etc.

EmRE - TERAF  TRAERAEEH
5%

Product exhibitions, industry surveys,
customer service hotlines and satisfaction
survies, etc.

PRABREGE  BRSERXH  JRED

% o
Open bidding meetings, strategic
cooperation negotiations, exchanges and

visits, etc.

ERERF - XWX - BERBT - FEERE
=

Field visits, official correspondences, policy
implementation, information disclosure,
etc.

ELEGH  XEEE  FeEBEHE
Business interviews, cultural promotion,
featured activities, etc.

HEES ETEREES  RzE8 i
BEEXRE

Community activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare activities, social
cause support, etc.

hEREEE  B1EE e 2K
MRS FIR B &

Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic exchanges
and cooperative research projects

Stakeholder Expectations and Responses

FRAR AR
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REREE (HEBRTE)

Internal assessment (impact on the business)
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= High

ESG HARBBEMNEEMKF

Level of Importance of key ESG Issues

ZROERNERERE  #EF

BERE  RHLEE]

BEmMEEEERER

RELERELHEEEYRE
EENERD - RAVHEER
b REDEEE  #g ¥
HCBT BRIAANBRER
B RAHRGEL 2 EBRE
[ERRINEE  FERTD
ERBEZKE X TERS
BTERES  BX8ED M
SREMGBIIRER - HAMEE
AR B BRI E K
FORMEERE - [t &
METARLTETEEN  #
BERICEMERTEETIEKX

FROM PEACE OF MIND TO NUTRITION AND HEALTH,
ENJOY “LIFE + DELICACY"

1.

Food Safety Control and Construction

Food safety is the foundation to build customers’ brand
trust. The Company places consumers at the center
of its operations and has developed five satisfaction
strategies: “consumers, society, partners, employees, and
shareholders.” Adhering to a “zero tolerance” approach
towards food safety risks, we continue to enhance our risk
management, improve the ethics and professionalism of
our staff and strengthen our product process management.
We believe that building a “Healthy China” requires a
high level of food safety assurance. In this connection,
we have been making continuous efforts in the following
areas to continuously improve Master Kong's food safety
management to the highest level.
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Increase investment in the area of food safety.
Master Kong has invested RMB500 million in the
establishment of the Innovation R&D Centre, which
has been accredited by China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), with
over 1,500 food safety monitoring indicators and
over 3.5 million tests per year. At the same time, the
Company's food safety and quality control team has
over 1,700 staff, who monitor the process of the
industry chain through external inspection of raw
material suppliers, food safety assessment inspection,
incoming inspection of raw materials, process
inspection, factory inspection of finished products, and
market sampling of products.

Improve the internal food safety management
system. The Company actively introduced external
consultant resources to improve the authority
of laboratory data of Food Safety Research and
Management Center, strengthened the basic skills
construction of front-line monitoring personnel
and increased the monitoring frequency of product
quality indicators. During this year, we promoted the
review of Master Kong's own standard “K-GMP"
(Good Manufacturing Practices) to strengthen the
construction of food safety and quality management
system. Master Kong formulated the management
measures for retrospective withdrawal of products and
promptly recovered products with quality problems
to actively analyze the causes, thus formulating
improvement countermeasures to improve product
quality and trace various factors in the production
process. Each business treats the withdrawn products
as scrapped products according to the Company’s

EmEEr 41
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regulations and reports to the local market supervision
and management department. In addition, we
conduct simulated product withdrawal drills every year
and evaluate the results of the drills to strengthen
the construction of product retrospective withdrawal
management system. In 2022, we were not aware of
any products recycled for safety and health reasons.

Launch the food safety publicity month campaign.
Master Kong has held the food safety publicity month
theme campaign for 9 consecutive years, focusing on
the main theme of “safeguarding the bottom line of
safety, investigating potential hazards and ensuring
safety”, continuing to implement the “Five Entrances”
in food safety science popularization (“ " EZEl
), building “Transparent” factories, raising food
safety awareness and strengthening food safety risk
investigation. The Company launched the “My Quality,
My Pride” campaign to collect exemplary deeds of
quality assurance posts, shoot theme videos and
promote food safety and salt science, and launched
“Food Safety Pictorial” and “Creative Food Safety”
themed parent-child activities for employees to actively
carry out food safety related publicity. During this
year, we promoted the construction of food safety
culture to upstream suppliers for the first time, and led
nearly 20 key raw material suppliers to carry out more
than 30 food safety theme activities.
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Launch the “Food Science Popularization into
Campus” campaign. Master Kong pays close
attention to the popular science work on food safety
for young children, and cooperates with partners to
launch the “2022 Master Kong Care for the Next
Generation Food Safety Guarding Action (20224 &
BT T —REZTEITE)". We have set up a
series of online and offline activities, such as “Public
Welfare Classrooms (Rzar )", “Food Science
Popularization into Campus (R %R E)" and
“Works Collection: | Make a Bowl of Noodles for Mom
and Dad (R ASHMEMIERESE)" to stimulate
young people’s interest in learning about food safety
and enhance their awareness of food safety.

Promote the digitalization of food safety. Master
Kong has continued to improve the construction
of the full traceability system, implementing
corresponding information system in manufacturing
plants, and through continuous system renovation
and technological refinement, the execution
effectiveness of the food safety traceability system has
been continuously enhanced to achieve transparent
management of the flow of raw materials and finished
products. Through cooperation with suppliers and
customers and under the guidance of professional
institutions, the Company has strengthened the
upstream and downstream traceability of products
and launched pilot applications. In order to secure
the effective implementation of protection for
food safety, Master Kong has successively planned
and launched digital information systems such as
Laboratory Information Management System (LIMS),
Product Lifecycle Management (PLM) and Business
Intelligence (Bl), and monitored the entire factory area
and production process. In addition, Master Kong
collaborates with external professional organizations
to jointly develop and use “Near-Infrared Analysis
Technology” to detect oil in oil tanks, further
promoting digital construction.
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External cooperation to improve social food
safety governance. Based on Master Kong's
industry status and advanced food safety technology,
the Company was approved to set up Shanghai
Instant Food Engineering Technology Research
Center to undertake food safety testing, research
and development, scientific training and provide
authoritative and impartial third-party services to the
society. Relying on this platform, Master Kong makes
use of quality academic resources at home and abroad
to promote high-end research and development of
food safety technology and the transformation of
R&D results, and actively provides useful references for
the formulation and updating of national food safety
standards. The Company’s Innovation R&D Center was
recognized as a Foreign-funded R&D Center by the
Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce. Master
Kong Master Kong has been cooperating with external
professional institutions and universities to carry out
food safety, product application development, process
optimization and food safety risk research, helping to
improve the level of social food safety governance.
We continue to collaborate with external professional
sensory evaluation companies and laboratories
to establish Master Kong's key odor profiles for
tea beverages and water, and to provide sensory
evaluations and physicochemical proficiency testing
services for carbonated and non-carbonated products
at Pepsi’s beverage factories. We also cooperate with
external professional organizations on microbiology
projects, including microbial strain identification
for spoilage products, microbial identification in
natural mineral water plants, microbial proficiency
testing, and professional skills training for microbial
analysis personnel, to continuously improve our
microbiological testing and analytical capabilities. In
addition, we participate in and cooperate with various
standardization efforts led by industry associations,
government agencies, and other entities.
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7) ERBEALEE - KM 7)  Emphasis on food safety talents training. We
HEAEHSRERR D select outstanding graduates from key universities
RIBETPEEREEE across the country with a major in Food Science and
o BEIEINESEIITE Safety and focus on increasing the proportion for
AA A - ARREEE complex industry talents. The Company recruits quality
HMIHEEEEREER control managers from factories across the country
AB - RittPIRERLE and provide them with special training in areas such
BRI - DATIRA - & as food safety standards and regulations, analysis and
e B5 R B2 5T (R FE A2 S R 1 testing, risk monitoring and assessment auditing, and
KIHIERE 153 - W58 guide staff in the supply chain departments and quality
EEHEMHERIMELEE control departments of each business to implement
EHPFIMABEIEFREZE the “food safety first” concept in their work, so as to
[RLE— B - UK achieve the goal of total food safety management.
REERLEEMERZ -
FOERRZLTES LG
Master Kong Food Safety Research and Management Centre Team
20224 RAESEZEET In 2022, all of Master Kong’s businesses continued to
ERLEEBRERTIE A improve their food safety management systems. All
FEHEEHEFELE TR normal operating plants' of the instant noodle business
3B FSSC 22000 (Food Safety were certified under the FSSC 22000 (Food Safety System
System Certification) & @ % Certification) and maintained good operation of the system.
TRARE  UREFERRT Over 90% of the factories in normal operation have been
EiTo HBIO%IETEL T audited by professional third party certification bodies, to
BBRE = EERERES ensure the safety of the oil used in the processing of instant
%o BREMARELE - FHE noodles. The instant noodle business continued to improve
EEFERRDENEEME its [AIB+] internal audit terms based on the American
R AT T (American Institute Institute of Baking (AIB) audit standard. Comprehensive
EREETHARFREELZ6HMANL A factory in normal operation is one that has been in operation for at least
BTREREE /(& TR TR 6 months during the year and is not in a state of suspension or lockout.
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food safety risk assessments and formal inspections were
conducted at AIB+ demonstration plants in Tianjin and
Hangzhou, using benchmarking management model to
drive all production bases to improve their food safety
management levels. In addition, Jiangmen plant of the
instant noodle business was certified the food safety system
under the Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point, HACCP.
All normal operating plants of Master Kong’s beverage
business and Pepsi’s beverage business are certified under
ISO 22000 (Food Safety Certification System), FSSC 22000
(Food Safety Certification System) and Hazard Analysis
Critical Control Point (HACCP). Among them, 59 Master
Kong’'s bottled water manufacturing plants and 29
Aquafina plants have been annually certified by the National
Sanitation Foundation (NSF) and reviewed by IBWA, The
International Bottled Water Association. All of our Pepsi
beverage plants have participated in and successfully passed
the AIB annual food safety audit. In addition, the Hangzhou
Dingjin plant was certified as a CNAS microbiological
laboratory. The bakery business plant obtained ISO 9001
(Quality Management System) and ISO 22000 (Food Safety
Management System) certifications and the system is
operating normally and passed the 2022 annual system
certificate renewal supervision audit.

Health and Nutrition Product Development and
Expansion

China highly values the health of the people and prioritizes
it in its development strategy and sets the visionary goal of
“building a healthy China” by 2035. As a leading company
in China’s food and beverage industry, Master Kong
understands the significance of improving the nutrition and
health of its products. We deeply recognize that with the
continuous upgrading of consumption, consumers are no
longer only concerned about the convenience and safety of
products, but are increasingly focusing on the nutrition and
health quality of products.
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The Company actively responded to various national
nutrition and health policies, including the National Nutrition
Plan (2017-2030), and incorporated nutrition and health
into various R&D activities such as product formula design,
product innovation and technical cooperation. During this
year, in terms of the R&D of instant noodles, Master Kong
supported the “Three Reductions and Three Kinds of Health
(=R =f%)" campaigns, promoting products to reduce
oil, salt and sugar without using preservatives through
technological innovation, and refining the formulas of more
than 100 product categories such as “Classic Series”. In
terms of beverage R&D, we have completed the R&D and
marketing of new sugar-free tea products such as “Master
Kong Pure Sugar-free - Yunwu Green Tea” and “Master
Kong Pure Sugar-free - Jasmine Tea”. Compared with
traditional tea products, we reduce the use of food additives
to further ensure the safety of consumers.

Master Kong is committed to developing “small but
beautiful” products to meet the needs of consumers in
pursuing a “healthy diet and exquisite life”. During this year,
we launched “Mini Bucket” instant noodles with a capacity
of 60% of the conventional capacity, as well as mini bottles
of “Master Kong Pure Zero Sugar - Yunwu Green Tea”
(350ml) and mini bottles of “Master Kong Pure Zero Sugar
- Jasmine Tea” (350ml), which are more portable and
exclusive, and more friendly to the environment, serving the
healthy eating needs of different groups.
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Spread Health Concept

Master Kong is committed to promoting Chinese Food &
Beverage Culture and continuing to provide consumers with
high-quality and diversified food and beverage products
to enjoy a healthy lifestyle and lead a better life. We fully
support and actively respond to the national nutrition and
health policy, and continue to conduct relevant research
together with various partners to meet the needs of
different groups of people for nutrition and health, actively
advocate the diet concept of reasonable diet and balanced
eating and moving, guide consumers to make suitable
food choices, and promote the nutrition and health of the
general consumer population together with the government
and industry partners.

During this year, based on the principle of “Life + Delicacy”,
Master Kong continued to assist the development of China’s
winter sports, and opened the “Champion Canteen Noodle
Restaurant” to provide nutritional and dietary support
services for winter workers and friends at home and abroad
who participated in winter sports. In addition, we promoted
Chinese food culture to the world through authoritative
media and actively promoted the concept of sports nutrition
diet to enhance brand image and influence, gaining more
than 560 million exposures.

== NP
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Champion Canteen Noodle Restaurant
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Service to Consumers

We comply with the requirements of the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests, the Personal Information Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations,
and focus on listening to the voices of our customers while
establishing and maintaining smooth communication
channels to understand their expectations and aspirations.
The Company has set up a customer service team to
facilitate the collection and feedback of suggestions,
enquiries and demands from consumers. Customer feedback
is collected through our 400 hotline, corporate website,
Sina Weibo, etc. The customer service team has established
standardized operating processes such as the Customer
Service Management Procedure to manage customer
feedback. By cooperating with the responsible departments
in problem solving, the customer service team is required
to respond to customer feedback within the stipulated
timeframe, continuously track and follow up until the case
is closed, and visit customers to understand their satisfaction
and ensure that the issues raised by customers are properly
resolved. The customer service team and relevant business
departments regularly sort out customer feedback, identify
and analyze common problems, and develop optimzed
solutions. During the year, Master Kong received 12,545
customer complaints, with a satisfactory resolution rate of
96%.
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We communicate with our customers and provide high
quality services while protecting their privacy. We implement
systematical and processed management of the information
, set an access limit to client’s information and strictly adhere
to the principle of confidentiality of customer information. In
terms of capturing and recording customer information, we
do not record or keep important and sensitive information
about our customers. In terms of information access, we
endeavour to ensure data security in our internal systems
and implement account login privilege settings to restrict the
access rights and conditions of use of consumer information
by our internal staff to ensure information security.

Advertising and Intellectual Property Management

Master Kong shapes its product image and continuously
enhances its brand influence through responsible advertising
and intellectual property management. We abide by laws
and regulations such as the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other national standards such as the GB 7718-
2011 Labelling of Pre-packaged Foods to standardize
the contents of advertisements and labels and protect
intellectual property rights.

We strictly control the legal performance of advertising
publishers and operators with cooperative relationships to
avoid exaggerated, false or misleading publicity. To ensure
that the promotional content is true and compliant, the
Company requires any external promotional materials and
label designs to be reviewed by various departments such
as legal affairs, research and development, and quality.
And the materials and label designs will be published after
departments have reviewed, so as to protect the legitimate
rights and interests of consumers. In the area of brand
promotion and product marketing, the Company continues
to improve its control mechanism, which requires its partners
and other advertising publishers and operators to perform in
good faith and compete fairly.
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Master Kong actively practices responsible marketing. We
have established the Product Promotion and Marketing
Manual to standardize product promotion activities and
maintain transparent communication with consumers. We
organize responsible marketing related training and regularly
organize special training on marketing strategies and other
activities to enhance employees’ awareness of compliance.
In addition, we regularly conduct audit review on marketing
work every year, conduct compliance self-inspection on
a monthly basis and identify risk points to continuously
improve the control and supervision mechanism.

In terms of intellectual property management, Master Kong
deeply understands the importance of protecting intellectual
property rights, thus comprehensively implementing its
intellectual property management measures and taking
action to defend its rights. In 2022, we actively grasped
the trends of intellectual property rights in the industry and
attached importance to the accumulation and application
of intellectual property rights, so as to better develop the
Company'’s intellectual property strategy. We collaborated
with a number of professional bodies to continuously
protect all aspects of intellectual property, including patents
and trademarks, and applied for registration and protection
of our core trademarks in many countries and regions
around the world. We improve the intellectual property
monitoring line by registering with the relevant authorities in
a timely manner, retrieving intellectual property information
before all kinds of new products go on the market and
conducting relevant analysis. We respect and protect the
intellectual property rights of others while protecting our
own intellectual property rights by severely cracking down
on infringement. We also regularly publicize and train
employees on intellectual property rights and enhance
their professionalism and awareness of intellectual property
protection to safeguard the Company's brand reputation.
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Supplier ESG Management

We value the sustainability development of suppliers and
deeply understand the leading and driving role of our own
behaviour on our suppliers. The Company established
a comprehensive supplier management system that
monitors various aspects of the suppliers (including their
access qualification, production and operation and social
responsibility), which is continuously refining our supplier
management capabilities, and we are committed to working
together with corporates from upstream and downstream
of the value chain to bring high quality products to our
consumers.

In terms of supplier recruitment, Master Kong has
formulated supplier development and management methods
that cover all of the suppliers according to the types of
suppliers, clarified the supplier introduction process and
requirements. In the current year, the Raw Material Supplier
Development and Management Measures were revised to
refine the supplier introduction process and requirements.
We have established supplier basic information files and
evaluated their qualifications in accordance with the Supplier
Evaluation - Information Evaluation Form. On-site audits
of suppliers are carried out to examine and evaluate their
factory environment, plant and facilities, production and
quality management, waste discharge, and environmental
and occupational health and safety management levels. To
assess the level of food safety management of suppliers, we
conduct sampling inspections during the on-site inspection
phase, using both external inspections by third-party
testing organizations and Master Kong's own inspections
to conduct rigorous screening. Only those who pass all
the above assessments will be qualified as Master Kong's
suppliers.
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In terms of day-to-day supplier management, Master
Kong has been improving approaches to supplier appraisal
operations, which strengthens supplier supervision and
conduct assessment to each supplier’s supply quality,
delivery, service and cooperation. In 2022, we added new
review items such as supplier labor policy evaluations and
updated corresponding assessment scoring criteria. At
the same time, we conducted grading assessments of our
suppliers and developed coaching strategies, as well as
implemented reward and punishment measures based on
monthly and annual appraisal results. In terms of supplier
environmental and social risk management policies and
practices, we continue to promote our supplier partners’
awareness and understanding of the Master Kong’s Basic
Agreement with Supplier on Environmental and Social
Compliance. The acceptance and signing of this agreement
by suppliers is a prerequisite for establishing a supply
partnership with Master Kong. We require our suppliers to
meet relevant environmental and social laws and regulations
where they operate, and to commit to the “nine mandatory
requirements” for environmental and social compliance,
including minimum age of employment, forced and bonded
labour, business ethics, serious environmental pollution,
serious health or safety hazards, working hours, wages,
employee injury insurance and food safety. In addition, we
have signed the Anti-Commercial Bribery Pledge with our
suppliers and are committed to creating transparent and
clean supplier partnerships. During the reporting period,
we had signed the Master Kong’s Basic Agreement with
Supplier on Environmental and Social Compliance with all
of the suppliers to manage their environmental and social
risks as well as conduct continuous supervision on their
performance of the agreement.
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Master Kong applied digitalization to improve corporate
comprehensive competence. We applied digital methods
to establish an intelligent supply management system,
which covered parts including upstream and downstream
procurement, transportation and production. Through the
implementation of the Supplier Relationship Management
(SRM) system, the supplier data sharing center can manage
the supplier data in a unified way, reducing duplication
of data in the system, and all divisions can share qualified
supplier resources through the SRM system. The system
can realize digital management covering the entire bidding
process, including issuing biddings, introducing suppliers,
signing and approving the reserve price, purchasing bidding,
and approving the winning bid, so as to achieve paperless
operation, reduce supplier management cost, strengthen
the entire process of suppliers’ coordination and integration,
and enhance the transparency and agility of the value
chain. We carry out SRM system training for suppliers and
related personnel of Master Kong to enhance trainees’
understanding of system functions and continuously
improve the utilization efficiency of the system. In addition,
we continue to promote the implementation of Material
Requirement Planning (MRP), which automatically calculates
the raw material requirements, reduces the labor cost of
manually calculating the raw material requirement planning
and improves the accuracy. We purchase according to the
plan and arrange the production line operation reasonably,
so as to realize stable production, avoid overload or idle
operation of the production line, increase the flexibility of
production scheduling, improve production efficiency and
service quality.

Number of suppliers by region

HERHE

Numbe of

Supplier location suppliers
Mainland China 948
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 4
Foreign regions 5
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Anti-corruption Management and Ethics

Master Kong focuses on enhancing its compliance
management, endeavoring to create a workplace
environment with integrity, honesty and transparency. The
Company strictly complies with the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations, and has formulated anti-corruption-
related management systems such as the Management
Measures on Employees’ Integrity and Self-discipline
Behaviour, and the Management Measures on Contract
Inspection and Review, and continuously improves the anti-
corruption management system, avoiding any direct or
indirect illegal commercial acts including corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, etc.

Master Kong prohibits directors and all employees from
engaging in or profiting from any illegal or unethical
economic behaviours and advocates all of our employees
to abide by professional ethics and moral principles. We
demand our employees and suppliers to sign the Anti-
Commercial Bribery Commitment Letter, which clearly
states that they will not offer or accept bribes and maintain
a good working environment. We enhance our ability
to deal with the relevant issues, constantly improve our
employees’ awareness of anti-corruption, and continue to
build and promote a culture of corporate integrity. In 2022,
we trained all employees on the online learning platform
based on the Measures for the Management Measures on
Employees’ Integrity and Self-discipline Behaviour which
was included in the training for new employees, with more
than 58,000 participants. In addition, we conducted on-site
integrity training for employees, and all the employees who
participated in the training signed the Honesty, Integrity and
Self-discipline Assurance Statement after the training. We
also published articles and shared anti-fraud cases on the
enterprise WeChat platform and online learning platform,
and sent the Audit Fraud Investigation Report to the senior
management, constantly strengthening the directors’
and employees’ awareness of integrity and compliance to
enhance their awareness of business ethics.
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In response to commercial bribery, fraud and other illegal
acts, Master Kong has established a special reporting
channel to encourage internal and external personnel to
monitor each other, and participate in the construction
of the Company’s business ethics and compliance culture
to resist malpractices. In response to external extortion,
fraud and other incidents, the Company has formulated
a special emergency plan and handling mechanism to
improve its ability to deal with related problems. We set up
a Corporate Security Team under the Audit Department,
which is fully responsible for the analysis, investigation and
handling of whistleblowing cases. We have formulated
the Whistleblowing Operation Procedures to regulate
the process of handling reports, the principles of reward
and the relevant requirements for the protection of
whistleblowers, and strictly prohibit any form of retaliation
against whistleblowers to ensure the effective transmission
of whistleblowing information. The relevant employees
of the Audit Department are also required to sign the
Code of Professional Ethics and Disciplinary Guidelines
for Audit Office Personnel and promise to keep the
informer’s information confidential. During this year, the
Corporate Security Team completed the investigation of
44 fraud reporting cases, and conducted the evaluation
and inspection of business ethics and professional ethics
for special audit operations such as internal control and
risk management, supplier and quality management, and
procurement management.

In 2022, the Company discovered 1 case of fraud and illegal
possession by employees of its subsidiaries, which was
transferred to the public security organ for handling. The
case was tried by the judicial authorities, and the employee
involved was sentenced to fixed-term imprisonment and
fined, and ordered to return and compensate for the
Company's losses.
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Brand Breakthrough
A Mellow and Eternal National Classic Flavor

Master Kong Braised Beef Noodles adheres to the brand
image of the Chinese nation with its classic rich delicacy and
fiery Chinese red, and unremittingly promotes social justice to
inspire young people in the new era to achieve themselves.
In 2022, Master Kong and Lay Zhang collaborated on a
new single Move Up to upgrade its brand proposition to
“Move up, we need this flavor”, and combined music and
dance with products to show the positive youthful vitality of
contemporary young people with a youthful atmosphere.

ALREARPAE] B2 - B A (EK ]

Roasted Beef Noodles “Move up, we need this flavor”
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Understanding fans’ interests thoroughly, staying
close to hot topics and stimulating independent
communication

With a deep insight into fans’ interests and behaviors,
Master Kong held a series of brand marketing activities such
as "Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” x “National Actress” Andy
Yang (#5£2), “New Product Royal Feast 30th Anniversary”
X “Hot Topic Character, Yonghao Luo (Z&7k’%) and “Soup
Chef x Cat's Kitchen (H&&2)", which stimulates social
interaction in the circle and attracts a large number of fans
to participate, promoting brand goodwill and preference of

Master Kong.
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W EFMERERAR

EMBEFANExBRZE IHE
“Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” x “National Actress” Andy Yang

Master Kong pays attention to the development of
the sports industry all year round, and actively turns its
attention into practical support for the competition, fully
demonstrating its brand responsibility. During the 2022
World Cup, Master Kong launched scene marketing, closely
followed the fans’ consumption link, and jointly created
content with leading social media platform, forming a
hot topic: “Watch the ball with a bowl of Master Kong
tonight”, which became one of the “out of the circle”
advertisements during the World Cup. At the same time,
Master Kong's instant noodles are convenient, fast and
hearty, which perfectly matches the tension and excitement
when watching the ball late at night, making “#How cool it
is to watch the ball and eat instant noodles late at night#"
quickly become a hot topic during the World Cup, causing
emotional resonance among consumers.



IRIE - LB REIAME | Environmental, Social and Governance Report [ ININGEGEG

RIEMER  KETFHEE
JRHT B

FRENVEEE BB REOER L
BB EIRIBEZE - RS
Sl AEmEET - RIBERE
FTEIRBEES ] BITUFHE
BERERL 0 2022 F - FEARE
TE /B8 T [ A URHR R A3
CEBKR >ZE] EMTE
RPN EAMELES
EADSE *”%@%inﬁﬁﬁqﬂﬂﬁ’]
B RERRAC - WEE AR
L T (RESR R B
FEAE A iR X S OB E T
TR AR AN RT (B R T 45 0 )% ’ 18 B
NE AR ER R R AR
PR R AL EZEE - AR S
FORHT IR T BT YR B
9 o

Launching low carbon products and exploring new
ideas of sustainable development

Master Kong actively mitigates environmental impact and
introduces low-carbon concepts into its product concepts
based on its own development, which demonstrates Master
Kong's determination to make nature evergreen and
practice sustainable development. In 2022, Master Kong
held the “Tea Beverage Carbon Neutrality Path Practice
Achievement Sharing Meeting ” in Shanghai, releasing the
first carbon-neutral tea drink “Master Kong Pure Sugar-
free” and the specific path to realize carbon neutrality of
this tea beverage. We, together with professional scientific
research institutions, jointly launched two domestic first
carbon footprint and carbon neutrality evaluation standards
based on tea drinks, namely, Technical Specification for
Carbon Footprint Evaluation of Tea Beverages and Technical
Specification for Carbon Neutrality Evaluation of Tea
Beverage Products to provide innovative reduction for the
food and beverage industry.

2022 FRMBRPMBECEBRRAZE
2022 Tea Beverage Carbon Neutrality Path Practice Achlevement Sharing Meeting
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At the 2022 Carbon Reduction and Environmentally
Sustainable Development Forum and Launch of Master
Kong's Label-Free Products, Master Kong launched a
“label-free” beverage that practiced the concept of low
carbon. The packaging design of this product complies
with GB7718-2011 National Food Safety Standards — Pre-
packaged Food Labeling General Provisions. This product is
sold with the whole box as the minimum sales unit, and its
production batch number, label and product information
are printed on the outside of the box, and the product
name and shelf-life information are marked on the label-
free beverage bottle by laser printing technology, which is
convenient for consumers to drink in a single bottle after
purchasing the whole box and reduce carbon from raw
materials. The introduction of “label-free” products not only
reduces the use of PVC labels avoids the problem of ink
printing pollution, but also spreads the concept of carbon
reduction to the public to create a new fashion of green
consumption with consumers.
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As a leading company in China’s food and beverage industry,
Master Kong actively takes responsibility for environmental
protection, identifies and complies with the requirements of
national environmental protection-related laws and regulations,
establishes management policies systems and management
framework in the areas of environmental target setting, energy
and water conservation, emission and carbon reduction, plastic
reduction and packaging management, digital production, climate
change response and sustainable raw material procurement,
implements various project practices to reduce its negative
impact on the environment, and continuously contributes to the
realization of “Keep Our Nature Green”.

1. Setting Environmental Management Targets ?

Guided by the Company’s sustainable development
philosophy, we have set our environmental development
targets based on the actual situation of our production and
operation, combined with analysis of past environmental
data and planning for future corporate development,
including:

Energy and water consumption:

e Using 2017 as the base year, the combined energy
consumption per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/
RMB'million) will decrease by 12% in 2025.

Target process in 2022: The combined energy
consumption per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/
RMB'million) decreased by 11.6% compared with
2017.

e Using 2017 as the base year, water abstraction per
RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/RMB'million) will
decrease by 8% in 2025.

Progress on the target for 2022: Water abstraction
per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/RMB’million)
decreased by 15.6% compared to 2017, and the
target has been achieved ahead of schedule. We have
updated our target : using 2017 as the base year,
water abstraction per RMB'million of revenue (tonnes/
RMB'million) will decrease by 20% in 2025.

2 The environmental key performance indicators, including greenhouse gas
emissions, were formally disclosed by Master Kong in 2017, so 2017 was
chosen as the base year for setting environmental management targets.
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Waste:

*  The recycling rate (actual sales volume/theoretical
production) of the main production-based raw
material waste is not less than 97%.

Target process in 2022: The target has been
achieved. In 2023, the Company will still set this as the
target and conduct waste management accordingly.

Emission:

e Using 2017 as the base year, greenhouse gas (Scope
1 and Scope 2) emissions per RMB'million of revenue
(tonnes/RMB’million) will decrease by 18% in 2025.

Target process in 2022: Greenhouse gas (Scope 1
and Scope 2) emissions per RMB'million of revenue
(tonnes/RMB'million) decreased by 16.4% compared
with 2017.

e  Emission concentrations of major air pollutants
(nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides, soot and dust) from
all plants meet or exceed national standards.

Target process in 2022: The target has been
achieved. In 2023, the Company will still set this as
the target and conduct air pollutant management
accordingly.

° Wastewater (COD) discharge concentrations meet or
exceed national standards.

Target process in 2022: The target has been
achieved. In 2023, the Company will still set this as
the target and conduct wastewater management
accordingly.

Master Kong will maintain continuous monitoring of the
progress of achieving the above-mentioned environmental
targets, and regularly review and report on the achievement
of the environmental targets.

Energy and Water Conservation Management

According to the planning arrangements made by the
Sustainable Development Committee and its working groups
at the beginning of the year, the Supply Chain Centre of
each business of Master Kong implemented energy and
water conservation projects at each production base, and
set up full-time management personnel at each production
base.
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Master Kong has formulated the Energy Management
Code, the Energy Unit Consumption Assessment and
Evaluation Method, the Energy Management Team
System and the Energy Management Performance Penalty
System as the basis for the management process, the
reference for work implementation and the guidance for
energy saving performance assessment of energy saving
work. We also clarify the responsibilities of relevant units,
improve unreasonable processes and control measures,
promote key energy-saving projects, and reduce energy
consumption. Performance management indicators for
energy consumption management have been set up in
each business and production base to better assess the
implementation of energy conservation, and the effect
of energy saving and consumption reduction has been
incorporated into the performance appraisal indicators of
relevant posts and combined with incentives to enhance
the importance of energy saving work by staff in relevant
posts. We track daily production energy consumption and
investigate the causes of any abnormalities in the indicators,
and make improvements accordingly. We review and analyze
the production energy consumption indicators against the
corresponding period and budget indicators every month,
so as to optimize and adjust them in time. We organize
relevant training and share energy saving experiences to
achieve continuous improvement of the Company’s energy
saving management level.

20 plants of Master Kong's beverage business and 13 plants
of Pepsi’s beverage business were honoured as “Excellent
Energy-saving Enterprise” by the China Beverage Industry
Association for their respective outstanding energy saving
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The Instant Noodles Business has modified the
existing steamer recovery system to save 97%
steam by recovering clean steam from the residual
heat of frying. The technique has now been
applied by 61 production lines in factories across
the nation, saving a total of 200,000 tonnes of
steam per year.

management achievements.

management system

3,500 %’E 35 million kWh ‘
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Master Kong Beverage Business promotes EMS
energy management system in the factory,
focusing on the electricity saving project of high
pressure air compressors. Through measures
such as optimizing equipment start-up, setting
reasonable blowing pressure and adjusting
equipment loading rate, the factory achieved
a reduction in power consumption per unit of
product, saving a total of approximately 35 million
kWh of electricity in the year.

s B CIl
Recycle heat fram-high
energy consumption machines

Pepsi’s plants in Chongging recycle heat energy
from the high energy consumption machines,
reducing steam consumption in the thermos
bottle machines and saving approximately
60,000 m? of natural gas annually.
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In terms of water conservation management, the Company
has formulated the Water Conservation Management
System as a reference and basis for carrying out water
conservation work and requires production staff to operate
in strict compliance with the system. We put water saving
and consumption reduction into the performance evaluation
index of key supervisors of factory directors in order to
implement effective water saving. During this year, Master
Kong's factories regularly carried out a “water balance tests”
to understand the current situation of water consumption in
the water supply network and each unit, and based on the
measured water quantity data, we judge the reasonable level
of water consumption and take corresponding measures.
We identified production processes and equipment with high
water consumption, strengthened detailed control, actively
promoted key water conservation projects, such as the
utilization of reclaimed water after sewage treatment, and
promoted them nationwide. At the same time, we actively
promote awareness and ways to conserve water resources,
continue to carry out exchanges and experience sharing
among factories across the country, and strive to integrate
the concept of “Cherishing, Conserving and Protecting
Water” into all aspects of our daily production work, so as to
promote the common improvement of internal management
level.

The 17 plants of the Master Kong Beverages Business and
13 plants of the Pepsi Beverages Business were once again
awarded the title of “Excellent Water-saving Enterprise” by
the China Beverage Industry Association for their excellent
management practices.

p-FIN =1
Recovery of concentrated
water

o

79,000 [ 79,000 tonnes ‘

FEEEEIRHEENE
Fl - REEARA - EH4

The noodle-producing plant of the Instant Noodles
Business achieved the cooling and circulating use
of water, reducing operating cost and soft water
consumption by 79,000 tonnes.

18,900 M 18,900 tonnes ‘

BEED R

m%i K=

Master Kong Beverage Business’ Xi‘an plant
refined the cooling water recovery process of the
separator, which starts the recovery pump when
the cooling water reaches a certain water level,
and returns the cooling water to the recovery
water tank, which can save about 18,900 tonnes
of RO water per year.
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The Pepsi factory in Guangzhou recycled
concentrated water from reverse osmosis
system to increase the water utilization rate and
reduce wastewater discharge, reducing water
consumption by approximately 20,000 tonnes.
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Emission and Carbon Reduction Management

For the management of exhaust gas, greenhouse gas,
wastewater and waste emissions, we comply with the
relevant laws and regulations of the country and the place
of operation, including the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Air Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste,
the Comprehensive Emission Standards for Air Pollutants,
the Technical Guidelines for Self-Monitoring of Emission
Units, the Emission Standards for Boiler Air Pollutants, the
Emission Standards for Odour Pollutants, the Emission
Control Standards for Volatile Organic Compounds from
Industrial Enterprises, etc. The internal management system
for exhaust gas, greenhouse gas, waste water and waste
emissions of Master Kong has been formulated as the
basis for management and control. We clearly defined
the management responsibilities of relevant positions,
continuously used advanced management tools, optimized
production processes, introduced advanced environmental
protection facilities and technologies, and carried out various
specialized environmental protection projects to mitigate the

Under the premise that the exhaust gas is
discharged up to standard, Instant Noodles
Business plant realizes the deep disposal of
exhaust gas by setting up processes such as
exhaust gas cooling and dehumidification.

1400 B 1,100 tonnes V

EREM {8 8% Dui‘fﬁﬁﬂf KR
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Master Kong collects and disposes of the exhaust
gas from the process of producing the blowing
and preform for the Master Kong Beverages
Business to be environment-friendly and comply
with the law and regulation. By the end of 2022,
we have installed 90 sets of disposal equipment
on an aggregated basis, reducing the emission of
approximately 1,100 tonnes of exhaust gas per
year.

0 R ZEE T RE SRR IR S
40.41 + H,5#70.02 B8 A 3k 77 J
KR 4.3 o

The Pepsi factory in Guangzhou has installed
exhaust gas disposal system for wastewater
treatment and the blowing and preform
processing processes, respectively, reducing the
emission of approximately 0.4 ton of NH,, 0.02
ton of H,S and 4.3 tonnes of total non-methane
hydrocarbons per year.
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impact of production and operation on the environment. We
commission qualified units to conduct regular environmental
monitoring to ensure that all pollutants are discharged in
accordance with standards. For hazardous waste generated,
we have commissioned qualified professional units to
conduct disposal in compliance. For non-hazardous waste,
we strived to reduce waste generation at the source and
promote the recycling and utilization of resources. At the
same time, we upgrade the skills of relevant personnel and
implement maintenance work for treatment equipment to
achieve stable operation of the wastewater and waste gas
treatment systems.

At the “2022 Enterprise ESG Development Forum " held
at 2022 Boao Forum for Entrepreneurs, Master Kong
and Xinhuanet jointly released the Green Action Case
Collection (hereinafter referred to as the “Collection "),
which collected the successful experiences on green carbon
reduction of various divisions under Master Kong in recent
years. Through five major chapters of the Collection, Master
Kong's green and low-carbon emission reduction cases in
the whole life cycle of products such as source planting,
factory operation, production, product design, logistics
operation, and after-sales recycling are sorted out and
carefully introduced, as a beneficial reference to the green
development of the industry.

FEEE wnxn
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The Release Ceremony of the Green Action Case Collection of Master Kong
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Plastic Reduction and Packaging Management

Master Kong actively responds to the national plastic
reduction policy and requirement, supports corresponding
environmental protection policies, and refines packaging
management at all stages of the product production cycle,
reducing the use of plastics and packaging materials while
securing the satisfaction for product safety and quality
requirements, promoting the realisation of lightweight,
recyclable, degradable and renewable packaging material,
in order to reduce negative impact on the environment and
implement the concept of sustainable development.

At the product production stage, the Company has
developed internal management systems such as the Raw
Material Overconsumption Standard, actively conducted
relevant research and exploration from various components
of product packaging, continuously implementing a series of
improvement programs to reduce plastic usage and weight,
utilizing more environmentally friendly packaging materials,
and reducing the use of packaging materials and generation
of waste from the source.

In the product transportation stage, we analysed the
product cargo transfer process and changed some products
from bagging to tanker transport to reduce the unnecessary
use of packaging in the transportation process.

In terms of waste recycling and disposal, we have developed
systems such as the Factory Waste Management Measures
as a basis for management, sorting, organizing and storing
waste packaging on different materials and types, and
handing over waste packaging to qualified waste disposal
units for recycling, secondary processing and harmless
treatment.
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Foci of our work on plastic reduction and packaging

YEIRER TERE management during the year include:
FEmEE
INSTANT NOODLES BUSINESS
LAY R E) R MR &i% B ETARMAERIY BEMERE AZRHREENFERMEEE
555 D AR R B g 8 Reduce packaglng materlals waste by AMER  ROBERERE
Y FE A recycling cartons Reducing the use of cassava

Change flour, starch raw
materials’ packaging from
bagging to tanker transport
of raw materials, reducing the
consumption of packaging

materials

FEEERmER

starch and salt raw material
packaging bags by switching
to tonne bags for raw materials
packaging

MASTER KONG BEVERAGE BUSINESS

MEERPVCHE B RS ERE
PETGME - BRIERRPE - BF
B PVC #ﬂ*ﬂiﬁﬁ #13,126 14
Optimization of bottle labels from
PVC to easily degradable PETG
material, reducing environmental
impact and reducing the use of
PVC bottle labels by approximately
3,126 tonnes per year

330ml % 500m| % 16 52 18 &9 X o
%ﬁ%lﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁél{’ﬁ T EE
B PET #1249 3,400 1
Reducmg the weight of 330ml
and 500ml beverage bottles is
expected to reduce the use of PET
material by approximately 3,400
tonnes per year

BEERmEE
PEPSI BEVERAGE BUSINESS

BREMMER R D
0.15g /@ - IREEERAER
EFL02RE BFERD
JRK PEFEM K7 340 12
Reducing cap weight of sterile
products by 0.15g per cap,
and carbonated products by
0.2g per cap, reducing raw
material PE consumption by
approximately 340 tonnes per
year

D THPETHEREM25%
MEZE235%  §FRIPETH
FHE A9 413 18

Reducing PET cap weight from
2.5g to 2.3g in some factories,
reducing PET material use by
approximately 413 tonnes per
year

PET 500m| B EEME =Ml 23.2
"EEE21% - 8FRDPETH
FHER %2191

Reducing PET 500ml Pepsi sugar-
free empty bottles from 23.2g
to 21g, reducing the use of PET
material by approximately 219
tonnes per year

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Complete testing of PET 1L

empty bottles from 35g to
339
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With a high emphasis on product innovation and R&D,
we have launched the initiative “Octagonal corrugated
boxes” for product packaging, which can reduce packaging
materials consumption by changing external packaging
boxes structure. In 2022, we have upgraded boxes of
certain products into octagonal corrugated boxes, saving
approximately 42 tonnes of base paper for instant noodle
business and approximately 249.3 tonnes of boxes for
beverage business.
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Octagonal Corrugated Boxes Packaging

BMFEEEYLIUF R - &=
AERZHEERIFEPETERF
RIS I E © 2022 5 + BERDB
BRGh B E 41,100 ME PET B2
RETMIERE KRS
HPETHR - @4 LA R PETE T
THR- B E=RmEEBEPET
MXBEBBHBEEENE
fEITEU - AERBERK
Ak THR - BEBRER
REBERR - HEFREL 19.50
BEEIBRINEE °

We are working with partners on packaging material
recycling and PET recycling research. In 2022, the Master
Kong Beverages Business processed about 1,100 tons of PET
waste, which was turned into non-food grade PET bottles,
fibers, and rPET employee uniforms. Pepsi Beverage Business
handed over waste PET bottles to units with plastic recycling
qualifications for recycling into recycled polyester fabric,
workwear, packaging plastic and other environmentally
friendly recycled goods, reducing the production of 19.5
tonnes of waste plastic in total.

EREMEERA rPET MR EME T IRIREIRIE - AR - ¥ B RSREBEMNARE
Master Kong uses rPET Materials to make Environmentally-friendly Baseball Caps,
Windproof Clothing, Backpacks and other Recycled peripherals
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Digital Production Management

We adhere to the corporate culture of science, harmony,
win-win cooperation and performance, and build a
digitalized supply chain system that fits the culture of
Master Kong. By applying scientific tools and management
methods, we are gradually advancing digital production
management, improving enterprise performance, and
achieving efficient collaboration and harmonious win-win
situations between upstream and downstream partners.

In 2022, Master Kong completed equipment renovation
and digitalization of daily business processes in its digital
pilot factories, realizing real-time monitoring, management,
and maintenance of equipment status, as well as real-time
data collection and automatic analysis of energy usage.
In the production process, we used intelligent equipment
for weighing and feeding, which reduces manpower and
realizes the product traceability in the deployment process,
improving the accuracy and visualization of the production
process. In the product quality management process, we
have already implemented electronic inspection forms for
some products and plan to update inspection equipment to
achieve automatic data collection. In the future, the digital
factory will establish a full production process from material
input to shipment, collect all quality-related data, build a
quality database, and realize the full life-cycle traceability of
product quality.
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Master Kong applies intelligent logistics Transportation
Management System (TMS) to centrally dispatch and
manage factories, carriers, and drivers in the logistics
process, and establishes an information-based, automatic
and intelligent logistics management and control system
with functions such as automatic order acceptance, vehicle
appointment, pre-stocking in the warehouse, intelligent
on-route monitoring, transport route optimization and
performance management, which effectively improves
the management level in logistics transportation costs,
efficiency, cost and service, and promotes the development
of green transportation.

We apply image recognition technology in our warehouse
system, using cameras to recognize the EAN (European
Article Number) codes and spray codes of product boxes,
and matching them with production order numbers to
achieve automatic warehousing, which effectively improves
the accuracy of warehousing. In 2022, we will upgrade TMS
to monitor the on-route trajectory and key logistics nodes of
distribution vehicles in real time and with precision. We will
also connect TMS with the existing system, arrange loading
and unloading work reasonably, and allow distributors to
query the logistics nodes of their orders in real-time, while
ensuring service quality and greatly enhancing the user
experience.

Responding to Climate Change

Climate change is a common challenge facing the world,
and acting on climate is urgent. Master Kong takes active
measures to identify and evaluate the risks and opportunities
brought by climate change, establish risk response
mechanisms, and seize opportunities to promote sustainable
corporate development, driving positive impacts throughout
the value chain with upstream and downstream partners.
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We identify and analyze the physical risks brought by

climate changes, including the impact of extreme weather

such as floods, droughts, typhoons, heavy rains and

snowstorms on material procurement, production, storage

and transportation, and personnel safety, and establish risk

response measures.

Table 1. Identification and response measures for physical

risks

[ B # 3aft
Risks description

BH KRR R EL B
BPE > RELTEEE
REMEE TR  RHMHER
R - RO AN LR o

The adverse weather conditions
may lead to delayed or
interrupted supply of raw
materials, affecting production
schedules;

The reduction in agricultural
production may result in higher
prices of raw materials, which in
turn results in rising production
costs.

2 Bz P

Measures to risks

FHR—-RE - RMRKES
FeaRtEBRRERPESIFER
% BRHERRYEHER
BHEZM - EBRMEHE
PR
FRERDHERITE T &
FIRRRTERARMEA
T HARHHEERELARE
B RRARREFHT
EEPEE R A R A
FEBM - FEHIAEERR

We maintain long-term
partnerships with a number
of qualified suppliers for the
same raw materials at the same
time to ensure a wide range of
suppliers’ raw material supply,
thereby mitigating the risk of
interruptions in raw material
supply;

We conduct price analysis of
raw materials to identify the
types of raw materials that are
significantly affected by weather
and keep an eye on weather
factors that may have an impact
on their prices;

We lock in prices in advance
when entering into contracts
with suppliers to control
production costs.
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Impact area Risks description Measures to risks
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Production Cold weather causes frost In response to unexpected

damage to products and raw
materials in factories and during
transportation, increasing
operation costs;

Drought climate reduces
groundwater, affecting the
supply of groundwater to natural
water factories. Heavy rains and
flooding cause groundwater
pollution and turbidity, ultimately
affecting production water
supply;

Typhoons frequently attack
factories in coastal areas, such
as roof damage in factories,
water leakage in workshops
and warehouses of finished
products and raw material and
factory area flooding, resulting
in direct losses of factory assets
and materials, as well as indirect
losses such as production
stoppages;

Extreme weather causes energy
interruptions, affecting factory
production schedules and
delivery timelines.

energy interruptions in special
situations, we maintain regular
communication with our
suppliers, develop monthly and
weekly energy consumption
plans, and arrange production
reasonably, while carrying out
daily maintenance according to
plan;

Based on weather conditions, we
require factories to make early
preparations for raw material
stocking to meet production
demands;

In conjunction with early
warning information issued
by meteorological authorities,
we conduct comprehensive
inspections of the factory in
advance and rectify any potential
hazards.

EgmEER 73

2022 Annual Report 4 #§



Nl =5 dg kel

#He | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EREEEE [ B 4 4 [ B PE

Impact area Risks description Measures to risks
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Storage and
transportation

%Eﬁ&//\/ﬂﬁ(% N j(ﬁ:“':g N j(:;E‘_
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Cold weather causes frost
damage to products and
raw materials during the
transportation process,
increasing the investment in
quality assurance;

Severe weather such as heavy
rains and flooding, heavy fog,
heavy snow, etc., seriously affects
the transportation of products
and raw materials, causing
stockouts and interruption.

ﬁi%f‘ﬁﬁ%ﬂ e AN R
C KRR RBUTERLE
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E(%Duuu,é °
We keep an eye on the weather
and stock up in advance, pay
attention to the emergency
situation of energy supply,
drainage and hydropower from
high-voltage power houses, and
develop response measures. If
any abnormality is found, timely
report it to the higher-level
government units for handling;
Strictly follow the Company’s
Product Quality Manual to
improve product protection, thus
ensuring product quality.

74 EMHEERERAR
\ \ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



IRIE - LB REIAME | Environmental, Social and Governance Report [ ININGEGEG

EREEEE [ B 4 2 [ B PE ¥
Impact area Risks description Measures to risks
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Personnel safety e  Extreme weather and climate e  Perform comprehensive analysis
disasters pose a threat to of the likelihood of various
personnel safety. natural disasters based on the

geographical and environmental
characteristics, and formulate
the Special Emergency Plan for
Natural Disasters to identify the
types and degree of danger
posed by natural disasters that
threaten the normal production
and operation of the business;

e  Conduct training and regular
drills for employees in accordance
with the requirements of the
emergency plan, so that in the
event of a major natural disaster,
we can promptly carry out rescue
operations according to the
predetermined plan, effectively
control the disaster in a short
time, and ensure the safety
of employees and company

property.
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We assess the transition risks and opportunities brought
about by climate change. In terms of transition risks,
against the backdrop of the Carbon Peaking and Carbon
Neutrality targets proposed by the country, regulatory
and policy requirements for low-carbon development will
become increasingly stringent. Master Kong complies with
and responds to the national policies and requirements
for reducing carbon emissions, keeps an eye on the
corresponding changes in policy and regulatory, predicts
future policy trends, and makes long-term planning for
its own low-carbon development path, so as to better
adapt to the low-carbon trend. In terms of transition
opportunities, with the development of the low-carbon
economy, consumers may be more inclined to choose
products with green and environmental attributes in the
future, which will affect the Company’s product layout. We
launched “carbon neutrality” and “label-free” products,
incorporating the concept of sustainable development into
the product design process. In the future, we will continue
to establish and improve climate change-related policies,
explore opportunities for green and environmental attribute
products, and contribute to the low-carbon development of
the industry.

In 2022, the Company continued to carry out carbon
inventory work, covering the upstream and downstream of
Master Kong’s value chain, calculating Scope 1 and Scope
2 carbon emissions data, and estimating the main Scope 3
carbon footprint in upstream and downstream of the value
chain. In this inventory, we reviewed the carbon reduction
results in the past two years, prompting all units of the
Company to further understand their own emissions to carry
out targeted carbon reduction work and actively explore
carbon reduction opportunities. At the same time, during
the carbon inventory process, the Company promoted the
concept of carbon emissions and carbon reduction to all
units to enhance their awareness of carbon reduction.
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In 2022, Master Kong, as an outstanding industry
representative, attended the “Enterprise Carbon Reduction
Practice Sharing” Roundtable Forum ("1t ¥Rk E B 5
Z"[El=#18) at the Fifth China International Import Expo
to discuss views and experiences on corporate carbon
reduction and green development with representatives from
various industries, assisting policy formulation and industry
development for low-carbon development. We shared
our green and low-carbon practices, including the three-
level sustainable development strategy of implementing
management structure, production and operation, and
stakeholders, the three-step carbon reduction roadmap
of “Conducting Carbon Inventory”, “Setting Emission
Reduction Targets” and “Designing Emission Reduction
Measures”, and carbon reduction cases in production and
research and development, providing new ideas for carbon
reduction in the industry.

14

ERBLEELETEEREOBESCERARERS T |HSHE
Master Kong attended the “Enterprise Carbon Reduction Practice Sharing” Roundtable Forum
at the Fifth China International Import Expo
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Sustainable Sourcing of Raw Materials

When selecting suppliers, we pay attention to the
environmental benefits of their products and services. We
hope to reduce the negative impact on natural resources,
the environment, and society in the production process
of raw materials through sustainable and responsible
procurement. We encourage suppliers to strengthen
traceability and certification of raw materials. We are
committed to reducing the negative impact of packaging

EXNEETE  RMEK
BoAE AasnBERE
E100% HEAERMEREZE S
(Forest Stewardship Council,
FSORBEE FEEEFXE
43.8% M) IR M EE 2 &
SRARESHNE R EREM
(Roundtable on Sustainable
Palm Oil, RSPO)®7E ° FEEETT
BEEEBAREEIE - R
ERMERBERMBENTD
BEHERES T Al EEaRE
(Bonsucro):R#% » :Z A IER

W EEER30% °

and palm oil procurement on forests. 100% of paper
suppliers such as cartons purchased by Master Kong have
Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) certification, 43.8% of
palm oil suppliers in the Instant Noodles Business have
obtained Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Qil (RSPO)
certification. In terms of exercising responsible white sugar
purchase, several white sugar suppliers in the Master Kong
Beverages Business and Pepsi Beverages Business have
obtained Bonsucro certification, and the supply proportion
of such suppliers is 30%.

2022 % - RAVERIFHEBARESIEFIT In 2022, Master Kong'’s environmental Key Performance Indicators
T BRBITHA - BIREEROSA are listed below. Unless otherwise stated, the statistics scope of
EVRE DERMBERNERE EXEETE environmental data® covers the Master Kong building in Shanghai
OEIEANEEIR - RIMFEREAMREE  and all domestic factories directly managed? by each business, while
NERBREERTEHE - KRG RBEER overseas offices are not included in the scope of statistics for the time
BB - being due to their small scale, and will be disclosed in due course
according to the actual situation.
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REREHENAEC (BE 1 REEE2)Y (EBNE)
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions® (Scope 1 & Scope 2)* (10,000 tonnes)

SE1AEREHEMN=(ER)
Scope 1 Greenhouse Gas Emissions (10,000 tonnes)

HE2BRERBNE(EE)
Scope 2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions (10,000 tonnes)

BETARKKGSBEREHNE (M B8 TAREKR)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions per RMB'million of sales (tonnes/RMB'million of sales)

e RREREEY (JKRE)
Total comprehensive energy consumption® (MWh)

BETARBRGHFAEREFEECEKER BBTAREKZE)
Comprehensive energy consumption per RMB'million of sales
(MWh/RMB'million of sales)

BN KEER)
Electricity (MWh)

BETARBKREE NERECKRE, BB TARER)

Electricity consumption per RMB'million of sales (MWh/RMB'million of sales)

yUB TSl KRR
Petrol and diesel (M\Wh)

RARAE K K TR )
Natural gas and coal (MWh)

A AR R (JRFLRE)
Liquefied petroleum gas (MWh)

SN VR (JRFLA )
Purchased steam (MWh)

FK#EZE© (3L FHK)
Total water use® (m?)

BETARKKGERAKE (LK BETARERS)

Water consumption per RMB'million of sales (m3/RMB’million of sales)

EmBEMEEREE " (W)

Total product packaging materials used  (tonnes)

BETARBKGRERBEMHEMAES (M BETAREKR)

Product packaging material used per RMB'million of sales® (tonnes/RMB’ million of sales)

L2 =45 (CHEMICAL OXYGEN DEMAND * COD)BEM 48 & © (i)
Total chemical oxygen demand (COD) emissions® (tonnes)

227.55

17.72

209.82

28.91

5,259,884.85

66.82

1,699,915.45

21.60

12,288.98

885,509.36

649.37

2,661,521.68

53,854,325.09

684.15

1,271,573.98

16.15

132.11
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.

BERBREMREOMNE)
Total hazardous waste!'? (tonnes)

BETARBKGEEEEMHHREB O BETAREKES)

1,204.13

0.02

Hazardous waste emissions per RMB'million of sales"® (tonnes/RMB'million of sales)

mEEEYRE ()
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes)

BETARBKGEZEEMHNRE (M, B8 TARBKR)

205,715.99

2.61

Non-hazardous waste emissions per RMB'million of sales (tonnes/RMB’million of sales)

M
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Based on the nature of Master Kong's business, the main gas emissions
in 2022 are greenhouse gases, mainly from the use of electricity and
fuels converted from fossil fuels. Compared with 2021, Master Kong has
further reduced the use of fossil fuels such as natural gas and coal, along
with continued reductions in sulphur dioxide (SO,) and oxynitride (NO,)
emissions, the impact of which is minimal and therefore not disclosed as a
major gas emission in the current year.

The domestic plants under the direct management of each of Master
Kong's businesses include all plants of the Instant Noodles Business,
Master Kong Beverage Business and Bakery Business located inside the
country, as well as all domestic plants of the Pepsi Business except for the
plants in Shanghai, Wuhan, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Shenyang, Tianjin, Jinan,
Guilin, Fuzhou, Zhanjiang, Changsha, Xi'an and Kunming. Among which,
Pepsi’s business is managed directly by Pepsi International except for 4
factories in Shanghai, Wuhan, Nanjing and Hangzhou. Pepsi's plants in
Shenyang, Tianjin, Jinan, Guilin, Fuzhou, Zhanjiang, Changsha, Xi‘an and
Kunming are not included in the scope of statistics as they are no longer in
operation.

The scope of greenhouse gas accounting for Master Kong mainly covers
carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. The greenhouse gas emission
data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and calculated in
accordance with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
2006 Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas List (Revised in 2019).

Scope 1: covers greenhouse gas emissions directly generated by the
Company'’s operations; Scope 2: greenhouse gas emissions from “indirect
energy” resulting from the Company’s internal consumption (purchased or
acquired) of electricity and purchased steam.

The comprehensive energy consumption is calculated through direct and
indirect energy consumption, based on the conversion factors of the
National Standard of the People’s Republic of China General Rules for
Calculating Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020).

Water consumption is for production and employee office use within the
scope of the statistics. We have no problem in finding the applicable water
sources.
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The amount of product packaging materials used is the total amount of
major packaging materials used for all items of products in each of Master
Kong's businesses.

This year, we have conducted a statistical analysis of the product
packaging material used per RMB'million of sales.

The total COD emissions are the sum of the COD produced by all the
plants within the statistical scope and the final emissions after treatment
by municipal sewage treatment plants.

This year, the Company has centralized the treatment of hazardous
waste, resulting in significant changes in the total hazardous waste and
hazardous waste emissions per RMB'million of sales.

1. Deeply Develop Human Resources and Create an
Excellent Workplace

Master Kong strictly abides by the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of the Rights and
Interests of Women, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Persons with
Disabilities, the Regulations on the Employment of Persons
with Disabilities, the Regulations on the Prohibition of Child
Labour and other applicable laws and regulations, and has
accordingly formulated the Measures for Recruitment of
Staff, the Management Measures for Labour Contract, the
Procedures for Appointment of Staff, the Management
Measures of Staff Promotion, the Management Measures
of Staff Resignation, Probationary Appraisal Measures for
Colleagues, the Management Measures of Staff Rewards
and Punishments, as well as other systems and measures.
Each business has also formulated applicable systems and
measures according to its own situation to regulate the
signing and termination of labour contracts, so as to ensure
that all employment work is regulated and based on rules
and regulations, and to effectively protect the legitimate
rights and interests of employees.
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Equal Employment

The Company insists on the principle of equal employment,
eliminating all forms of employment discrimination,
establishing a recruitment, development and promotion
system that is non-discriminatory in terms of ethnicity, race,
gender and religion. We actively take on social responsibility
continuously recruit a certain percentage of disabled
employees and provide fair employment opportunities and
salary and benefits guarantee. 317 disabled employees were
employed this year, with 43 new employees. We oppose
all forms of forced labour and child labour and explicitly
prohibit such situations in relevant human resources policies.
We strictly examine original and photocopies of identity
cards when recruiting and regularly export the employee
attendance sheet from the Company system to verify
working hours. If forced labour or child labour is found,
we will strictly follow the requirements of the local labour
bureau and immediately stop their work. Each business also
regularly verifies the working hours of its employees through
its internal system. The Company’s internal control and
auditing departments conduct reviews on recruitment and
employment from time to time to avoid forced labour.

Vacation

Master Kong explicitly indicates the working hours
and holidays of its employees in the labour contract in
accordance with the requirements of the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China. Employees are entitled to
annual leave with pay, personal leave, sick leave, marriage
leave, bereavement leave, maternity leave, paternity leave,
breastfeeding leave, parental leave and home leave. The
Company encourages employees to arrange their vacation
plans based on their needs while actively implementing
relevant government policies, and will amend its internal rules
and regulations in accordance with new local regulations to
effectively protect the rights and interests of employees to
take rest.
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Remuneration and Benefits

Master Kong has established salary management measures
for employees, such as salary, performance and year-end
bonus, and pays “five insurance and one fund” in full for
employees in accordance with the requirements of the Socia/
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Regulations on the Administration of Housing Provident
Fund and other national laws and regulations, while
adjusting the insurance and provident fund contribution
ratios, upper and lower limits and minimum wage standards
in a timely manner every year in accordance with policy
requirements. Depending on their own situation, each
business has developed salary management methods,
performance bonuses, year-end bonuses, and employee
welfare management methods while adopting different
levels of incentives such as monthly, quarterly and annual
awards so as to stimulate employee enthusiasm. At the
same time, we provide additional subsidies for staff such as
high temperature/high cold, heating, and rental subsidy. We
also provide soft benefits such as travel, corporate cultural
activities, birthday gifts, and health check-ups for our
employees.

BABIERERE - AFEEERE TIEER & - E—FE(L
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Master Kong is implementing digital transformation of HR across each business, aiming to simplify work processes.
This year, based on the existing work, we have further optimized our electronic personnel file system and
promoted our Human Resources Bl data dashboard project. By implementing an online one-stop operation, we
aim to reduce manual work and strengthen the linkage of business data.
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Promote Staff Healthy Growth and Development,
Create a Smart Workplace

Master Kong has always valued the training and
development of staff. In order to better shape the all-round
talents with “Diligence, Integrity and Competence” and
to enhance the cohesiveness of the team, the Company
established the Management Training Center (MTC) and
conducts customized and functionally diverse courses
for employees at different levels, and each business also
formulates the corresponding training management
system in accordance with its own situation. The Company
conducts quarterly Strategic Talent Review (STR) meetings to
promote the development of key talent in critical positions,
improve talent development platforms at all levels, and
implement development and cultivation plans for individuals
and teams in the reserve pool for entry-level, middle and
high-level management. We provide training opportunities
for employees in various categories, such as general
corporate culture training, professional knowledge and skills
enhancement training and management skills enhancement
training, depending on their job level, career development
stage and functional position. The Company maintains a
long-term collaboration with external professional training
institutions. We work together to create enhancement
training programmes that are tailored to the actual needs
of Master Kong, bringing forward-looking and scientific
knowledge and skills to our employees. We conduct post-
training tracking to evaluate the effectiveness of our training
programs and form a closed-loop management system for
training. We are also committed to cultivating an internal
team of trainers to better cultivate and pass on the wisdom
and culture of Master Kong.
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We adopt case-based teaching for training and offer a
variety of training courses and programs. During this year,
the total training time reached 6.924 million hours and
the per capita training time was 116.0 hours. In 2022, the
Company actively expanded online training, introduced
live broadcasting of courses and continuously updated
mobile learning resources. Employees can strengthen their
management and general skills through the corporate
WeChat classroom and official website learning platform
of the Company. The Company also provides M-series
management training courses to enhance the management
abilities of cadres. In addition, we cooperate with Talent First
(—%), Match Pro (ZHE %) and Carnegie (KiE) to hold
the “Headquarters Career Development System Classroom”
to improve the efficiency of inter-departmental cooperation
and daily communication and expression skills of employees,
providing employees with comprehensive and diversified
learning opportunities.

Bl 2 m B IR %
Technical Exchange Training Site
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Safeguard Employee Health and Safety to Create a
Secure Workplace

Master Kong strictly complies with national laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Work Safety, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
and the Fire Services Law of the People’s Republic of China.
We have accordingly issued a series of internal management
measures and emergency plans, such as Plant Environment
Health and Safety Management Procedures, Plant
Environment Health and Safety Policy and Principles, Hazard
Identification and Risk Assessment Criteria and Method
Standards and Work-Related Injuries Handling Procedures,
to form an institutional guarantee for the implementation of
work safety and prevention of occupational diseases.

The Company highly values the health and safety of
employees and continues to increase investment in
employee health and safety. The Company provides
employees in front-line jobs with occupational disease risks
or high safety risks with a full range of protective gears,
such as eye protection, chemical protective gloves, ear plugs
and safety uniforms, to effectively reduce the health impact
on employees due to special workplaces and environments.
To ensure safe production and operation, the employees
of special jobs require relevant licenses. In addition, we
organize annual health checks for our staff and actively
organize fire safety drills to enhance their awareness of
fire safety and their ability to protect themselves. All new
employees are required to receive safety training before they
are allowed to work in production operations. Meanwhile,
Master Kong strictly implements the safety responsibility
system, establishes complete operating specifications and
emergency handling mechanisms to ensure the proper
handling of sudden safety incidents.
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The Company attaches great importance to promoting
and training employees in health and safety, enhancing
their awareness of safety precautions. All production bases
of Master Kong conscientiously implement the relevant
requirements and deployment of Environment, Health
and Safety (EHS) of the Company. We continuously and
thoroughly carry out EHS management activities and strictly
conduct annual EHS audits. We set up EHS specialists to
continuously carry out safety education, and regularly
organize EHS skills training and competitions to continuously
raise the awareness of our staff on production safety.

Build a Corporate Culture and Create a Better Workplace

2022 marks the 30th anniversary of Master Kong and the
fourth year of the Company’s “steady progress” strategy.
The Company's strong culture has provided key spiritual
support for its development, which is one of the keys to
Master Kong's competitiveness. The Company has correctly
grasped its corporate values while emphasizing internal
collaboration and external cooperation for mutual benefit to
cope with the changing market environment. The Company
has established a culture-building committee that promotes
team collaboration and is headed by Chairman Wei Hong-
Ming and Chairman Wei Hong-Cheng, and has nine core
senior managers as members. This year, the Company
established a culture-building review committee to review
and standardize the Company’s culture-building efforts and
assist in their implementation.
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The Company is creating a learning system for Master
Kong's corporate culture that is being implemented across
all levels of the Company. In 2022, the Management
Training Center will continue to provide value-based training
for 2,245 supervisors and reserve talents, laying a solid
ideological foundation for talent development. Training
for corporate culture construction is also an important part
of new employee training, ensuring that new employees
truly understand the mission that the Company shoulders
and master the basic behavioral standards. This year, we
have updated and completed the training materials, and
completed 413 culture-building training sessions, helping
3,354 new employees successfully integrate into the Master
Kong family.

Higher corporate culture recognition brings more dedicated
professional employees, higher performance level for the
Company and promotes the healthy development of the
enterprise. In 2022, the Company collaborated with the
well-known polling company Gallup to conduct a cultural
identity and job engagement survey with a participation
rate of 98%. The purpose of the survey was to understand
employees’ level of engagement with their work and their
level of identification with Corporate Culture. The survey
results showed that Master Kong employees had a higher
level of job engagement compared to more than 67% of
corporates in the global database, indicating a relatively
good level of engagement. The foundation of Master
Kong’s high level of employee engagement lies in meeting
their needs and creating a harmonious team atmosphere
with a win-win team concept. Master Kong truly considers
the development of the Company from the perspective
of employees, values their feedback and opinions, and
implements action plans into daily management behaviors.
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In 2022, the Company carried out various distinctive
activities to enrich the lives of employees. The instant noodle
business encouraged frontline workers with the slogan “LIFE
+ DELICACY", with nearly 10,000 employees participating,
integrating the concept into their daily work and life.
The Pepsi beverage business has published the interna
newsletter “Sales Pioneer Collection” for three consecutive
years, using influential platforms such as the WeChat
Official Account and WeCom to promote outstanding
employee stories and showcase their hard work. The Master
Kong beverage, instant noodle, and the Pepsi beverage
businesses combined to conduct food safety activities
during Food Safety Month, collaborating with the quality
control department to carry out the My Quality, My Pride -
Extraordinary Ordinary Posts themed activity to instill food
safety awareness in employees. To enable employees to feel
the spirit of rising to challenges, taking responsibility, and
being honest and self-disciplined, the Company has held
five consecutive annual “Master Kong Culture Role Model”
behavior collection and recognition events, which have
received recognition and support from all.
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Promotion of the Collection and Recognition of Exemplary Cultural Behaviors in this Year
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2022 FFZREMEHMBIUENESET
Outstanding Employees Who Practice Culture Selected by Various Industries in 2022

KK AElgmttFESEE In the future, the Company will follow the lead of excellent
EE - EaEEREINER global businesses and make highly valued employee
RAE—TEERE  BERTWE development a norm. We will continue to make good use of
FETHE  BAMAHNHSUER tools for evaluating dedication, enhance the organization’s
FEE  BEBREIMNE cultural identity and dedication, shape a highly resilient
ITHH HEEITANTERD workforce, and stimulate employees’ inner drive. We aim
T BARETE L BE to become a respected and great company in the ever-
BERIHTHBERET - AKX changing and highly competitive market environment.

EWN-E NI
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Cultural Development Training
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BREEE Employment Category Indicators
BE B
Indicators Data
ST ABO 64,302

Total number of employees

BUBIBSET AR ES 42,066
Number of employees by gender Male
58 22,236
Female
BRERBAINET AR FE30F(TEIAT 20,985
Number of employees by age Under the age of 30 (not inclusive)
FERI0EZES505(E) 42,377

Aged 30 to 50 (both inclusive)

FheS0m (TR L 940
Above the age of 50 (not inclusive)
REREREISINETAH PBET 64,302
Number of employees by type of employment Full-time employee
RBET 0
Part-time employee
RUBESNETAR EibwRET 14,768
Number of employees by region Employee in North China
Rit@ET 6,697

Employee in Northeast China

FadbihE 8 T 6,527
Employee in Northwest China

ERMWEET 13,378
Employee in East China

ErhiERET 5,164
Employee in Central China

EEiRET 10,433
Employee in South China

FamitE S T 7,331
Employee in Southwest China

BSMERE T 4
Employee in foreign regions
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BE B
Indicators Data
BTHRRR® 20.8%
Total employees turnover rate @
BURBINETRALLR ES 22.9%
Employee turnover rate by gender Male
ko 16.9%
Female
BREREINETRALE Fi305R(TE)AT 34.4%
Employee turnover rate by age Under the age of 30 (not inclusive)
FER30mES505( ) 13.7%

Aged 30 to 50 (both inclusive)

FES50m(TE)ALE 35.8%
Above the age of 50 (not inclusive)

RihEEIWETHRAL=E AL & 23.2%

Employee turnover rate by region North China

At 16.6%
Northeast China

gl ae] 23.7%
Northwest China

M & 17.0%
East China

Heh i & 19.0%
Central China

G 22.8%
South China
Farg R 22.6%

Southwest China

B 9 b [ 0.0%

Foreign regions

(1) BIBABNRTHERRMEZRNE (1) The total number of employees is the total number of employees of
MEBARINEEEE T AL - Master Kong and its subsidiaries.

) BIRKAR-—ERFEHHIIEELL(S (2)  Employee turnover rate = number of employees who left their jobs

FEDBER  RIK - BIR  THOMETIA (including voluntary departure, retirement, dismissal and death) in the
B TERFEE THEAZ X 100% ° reporting year/total number of employees in the reporting year x 100%.

92 EMEERARAR
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2022 & 20214 2020 &
EE Indicators 2022 2021 2020
TTHAE® Number of work-related deaths © 0 0 0
TTHEER® Work-related death rate @ 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%

(B) ITCBEERIRBE=FRRZEZEESFK (3)  Work-related death statistics are for the past three years for employees
B T THIER who died as a result of safety incidents.

(4) RAITHEER=REITHAZ ZFHK (4)  Work-related death rate = number of work-related deaths/total number of
BETHAE X100% ° employees at the end of the year x 100%.

NREERIEEKRKBEANTEEEH A This year, the number of working days lost due to work-related injuries

7,712K e is 7,712 days.
;E%(S)‘(G) %E
Indicators ) and © Data
BRETHRESNZIE DL = 99.3%
Percentage of employees trained by gender Male
z 99.7%
Female
REIERISINZIEDL SREBEXIEBE T 100.0%

Percentage of employees trained by employee level Percentage of senior management trained

TREEEXIIBESL 100.0%
Percentage of middle management trained

HihB TXA DL 99.5%
Percentage of other employees trained

BRI D A Z IR (/) 3 113.5
Number of hours of training per capita by Male
gender (hours)
o8 120.7
Female
RETERNE WAL ZIRHNE) BREREX IR 117.0
Hours of training per person by Number of hours of training for
employee category (hours) senior management
PREEEX IR 132.9

Number of hours of training for
middle management

Hith 8 TR 115.6
Number of hours of training for
other employees
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Percentage trained by employee category = number of employees trained
in a category/total number of employees in a category x 100%.

Hours of training per person by employee category = Total hours of
training for a category of employees/Total number of employees in a
category.

Key Performance Indicators

0225 BTXEETHRER .
Hours contributed by employee volunteers in 2022:

#17,000 /) B
Approx 7,000 hours

As part of its journey to realizing its vision, Master Kong always
remembers to give back to the society, pay attention to community
needs, take the initiative to assume social responsibilities, and
integrate community investment and public welfare practices
with its own business in order to fulfill its corporate citizenship
obligations. In 2022, Master Kong continued to leverage its
industry advantages, actively participate in community investment
and various public welfare activities, conduct food safety and
water education public welfare activities, support the development
of sports, focus on social care, assist in rural revitalization, deepen
school-enterprise cooperation, and create sustainable value by
serving the society in a tangible way, all while sharing “LIFE +
DELICACY" with partners from all walks of life.

1. Food Safety Science Popularization

Raising public scientific literacy and popularizing food safety
knowledge is an effective way to counteract food safety
rumours. Over the years, Master Kong has been actively
responding to the national food safety strategy, pooling
the efforts of all parties, and continuously exploring ways
to educate the public about food safety, and is committed
to passing on food safety knowledge and concepts to
the society through food safety science popularization to
promote social governance of food safety.
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“Our Space” Painting and Photography Collection Activity
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As a long-term partner of China's aerospace industry,
Master Kong is committed to building a comprehensive
knowledge system, education system and application system
that integrates “aerospace + food safety” to enhance the
knowledge of aerospace and food safety literacy of all
people, especially the youth. In recent years, the Company
has been conducting science popularization activities
relating to “Aerospace + Food Safety” and has held nearly
100 aerospace expert speeches, which have introduced
the quality of space products to over 500,000 primary and
middle school students.

In 2022, Master Kong cooperated with China Youth
Daily, China Space Foundation and the learning platform
“Learning Power” to organize a “Our Space” painting
and photography collection activity to popularize space
knowledge and contribute to building China’s strength in
aerospace. The event invited famous figures such as the
Chief Scientist of the Chinese Lunar Exploration Program
and renowned hosts to support the activity. We received
more than 120,000 paintings and photographs from primary
and secondary school students and photography enthusiasts
from all over the country. We also released the documentary
“China Aerospace x Master Kong”, which became another
successful practice of Master Kong'’s support for China’s
aerospace industry.

(EMEZE—RRARKIZEER
Child’s Drawing:
Facing the Stars Together Towards the Future
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The State Administration of Market Regulation and four
other ministries and commissions jointly released the Schoo/
Food Satfety Guardian Action Plan (2020-2022), which calls
for strengthening food safety and nutrition education in
primary and middle schools. In response to the national
policy and to help promote food safety science popularization
education in schools, in 2022, Master Kong, together with
its partners, launched the “Master Kong Care for the Next
Generation Food Safety Guarding Action”. Through a series
of online and offline activities such as setting up “Public
Welfare Classrooms”, “Food Science Popularization into
Campus”, and “Works Collection: | Make a Bow! of Noodles
for Mom and Dad”, we aim to stimulate young people’s
interest in learning about food safety and raise their
awareness of food safety. By the end of the year, offline
activities had covered about 40,000 primary school students
from 20 schools, while online activities had covered about
300,000 primary school students from nearly 200 schools.

2.

o

RZHEDE
Animation of Food Safety Science Popularization
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ATRERE
Class of Food Safety Science Popularization

Education on Water

The “Education on Water” project is a long-term public
welfare activity initiated by the China Beverage Industry
Association, aiming to cultivate good drinking and using
water habits among primary school students and making
them to be active practitioners and disseminators of
“knowing, loving and saving water”. This is the eighth
year that Master Kong has been working on “Education on
Water” and has successfully extended the “Education on
Water” campaign to more than 10 cities, 30 schools and
nearly 10,000 students across China.
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In 2022, offline activities continued to be limited, so we
actively adjusted our strategies and flexibly shifted the main
platform of “Education on Water” to online. We focused
on the “Education on Water” video platform and released a
total of 17 videos throughout the year, with nearly 70,000
plays and nearly 3,000 interactions on the platform. The
“Education on Water” Video Accounts launched two major
series of videos, “Famous Stories About Water (B2#7K %0
38)" and “"Wonderful Knowledge About Water (F#7K 40
#8)", which aim to help teenagers establish vivid images
and perceptions closely related to water, based on the
historical and cultural stories related to water resources and
water environment in China’s long-standing history, as well
as the rich water use scenarios in modern life. This helps
cultivate good water use habits while enhancing national
confidence and achieving the goal of promoting “Education
on Water” from childhood. Our cartoon IP image, “Kang
Kang Senior (FEFZE )", has also become the spokesperson
of "Education on Water” as it becomes deeply rooted in

people’s minds.
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“Education on Water” in School

Sports Charity Events

China attaches great importance to the important role of
sports activities in enhancing people’s physical fitness and
health, and in 2016, the State Council issued the Outline of
“Healthy China 2030 Plan, making clear plans to develop
mass sports activities, promote a new fashion of fitness for
all and advance the construction of a healthy China. As a
national brand enterprise, Master Kong is committed to
helping the country move towards “Healthy China” and
inspiring public enthusiasm for fitness.

B EER
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Master Kong has been the “Marathon Nutrition and Diet
Partner” for five consecutive years. We advocate a scientific
dietary concept and focus on serving runners, providing
them with sufficient energy supply before and after the
race. "A Bowl of Noodles after the Race” has become a
must-have in the hearts of many marathon runners. During
this year, we support marathon events with a new brand
proposition of “Having More Fun with Noodles”, upgrading
from a single sports energy supplement to encouraging
consumers to pursue sports fun and physical and mental
health.

Hangzhou Marathon

In 2022, we also supported badminton events in Tianjin,
Pearl River Delta and other places, as well as basketball
events and street dance challenges in Guangzhou. In the
future, Master Kong will continue to use safe and reliable
sports support services to promote the development of
sports events in China, help athletes realize their dreams
on the field, and continue to promote national sports in a
sustainable, healthy and orderly manner.

BITEMERRIES

Bicycle League in Fuguan Railway Station

Dragon Boat Race in Diejiao, Foshan
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Focus on Social Care

Master Kong attaches great importance to corporate social
responsibility, actively participates in community building,
and strives to benefit the people by using its own resources
to spread warmth and help others. In 2022, Master Kong
continued to focus on the needs and challenges of various
industries in society, extending a helping hand wherever
possible. We continued to conduct outreach activities to
nursing homes, kindergartens, schools, hospitals, police
stations, troops and remote areas across the country. We
invested resources in rescue and disaster relief and exam
assistance, sending love to hardworking urban workers such
as medical staff, traffic police and sanitation workers in
many places, passing on positive energy. In just the first half
of 2022, Master Kong provided over 1.34 million packages
of instant noodles, drinking water, cakes, and other supplies
to Shanghai, Hong Kong, Liaoning, and other regions. We
are also concerned about the growth of children and have
been sending warmth and support to children through
activities such as charity schooling for children, caring for
autistic children and children with disabilities.

P(

RN B IR R

Master Kong's Donation for the Fight Against the Pandemic
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As an outstanding national enterprise, Master Kong has
established and formed a rapid response mechanism for
disaster relief after years of practice. In 2022, Hunan, Jiangxi,
Sichuan, Chongging and other regions were affected by
floods, high temperatures, earthquakes, and other disasters.
We utilized our marketing network to send love and relief
supplies to rescue workers, helping to solve the food and
shelter problems of the affected people. In Xiangxi, Hunan
and Ganzhou, Jiangxi, where flooding was severe, the
Company delivered instant noodles, drinking water and
other supplies to affected residents and resettlement centers
in a timely manner. In scorching Chongqing, the Company
organized volunteers to deliver refreshing drinks to nearby
supply depots, allowing frontline workers to feel the care
and support from society and enterprises. The Company sent
hot instant noodles and drinking water to affected residents
and rescue workers in earthquake-hit Luding County, Ganzi,
Sichuan Province, offering the warmest care.

In previous disaster relief efforts, Master Kong summarized
its experience of water and electricity supply interruptions
caused by disasters and independently developed and
modified a self-provided “emergency rescue vehicle” with
“water and electricity” to overcome the restrictions on water
and electricity consumption caused by the environment.
The “emergency rescue vehicle” has played an active role
in rescue work, sending “warm assistance” to rescue the
catastrophic floods in Henan in 2021 and to help areas
affected by floods, earthquakes and other disasters in 2022.

Master Kong actively participates in responding to the
Rural Vitalization Strategy and helps to consolidate and
expand the achievements of poverty alleviation. During the
2022 Spring Festival, we integrated into the construction
of the Hainan Free Trade Port and cooperated with the
local government to carry out Spring Festival love and visit
activities in Shezhenpuzai Village, Lingao County, Hainan,
donating food and beverages to support rural revitalization.
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As students are the future of the country, Master Kong
continues to pay attention to the social needs during the
Gaokao, and provide help to the students to the best
of its ability. In June, we launched the “"With You All
the Way"” public welfare activities to escort the college
entrance examination in Beijing, jointly with a professional
transportation organization, to provide mineral water to
the students on the “Love Express” vehicles, and set up
assistance stations at the school gates, preparing cooling
tools and examination stationery for the candidates, to
comprehensively support the students in achieving their
dreams of taking the college entrance examination.

R & SR T P sE N K IR

Master Kong's Donation Against the Flood in Ganzhou, Jiangxi

Earthquake

R BB E X RE TR

Master Kong's “Emergency Rescue Vehicle” Supporting Luding

[ZLHE HERFETIERSE QG
“With You All the Way” Public Welfare Activities to Escort the
College Entrance Examination
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Benefiting the “Agriculture, Rural Areas and Farmers”

As a leading enterprise in deep processing of agricultural
products, Master Kong has actively promoted the strategy of
serving rural revitalisation, increased its support to diversified
rural business entities and supported farmers to increase
their income and property, so as to exercise the objective
of “Sustainable Operation, Contribution to Society”. We
purchased millions of tonnes of bulk agricultural products
every year, and helped farmers to increase their income and
prosperity through agricultural products procurement and
other forms, directly benefiting over 40 million farmers in
China.

Taking advantage of its own technology and scale, Master
Kong has been working with universities for years to
conduct research on “active crop protection system” and
explore new models to benefit the “agriculture, rural areas
and farmers”, which enabled the creation of an upgraded
industrial chain model featuring, “Enterprise plus base plus
farmers”. We have established an "“Environmentally Friendly
Vegetable Base” in the Kangba Nuo'er area of Kangbao
County, Hebei province, which is pure and pollution-free
and has excellent natural conditions. We have sent technical
staff to study the local natural environment to promote an
upgrade to agricultural techniques and to help local farmers
build a new ecological agriculture through counselling
farmers on planting, strict quality control at the production
end and testing and supervision. Master Kong's Food
Safety Research and Management Centre conducts strict
tests on soil, pesticide residues, heavy metals and many
other indicators every year to ensure the safety and health
of agricultural products. The base has helped establish a
total of 200,000 mu of vegetable bases in and around the
Kangba Nuo’er grassland, acquiring about 500,000 tonnes
of agricultural products and driving the employment of
about 150,000 farmers.
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School-Enterprise Cooperation

Master Kong pays great attention to talent development in
society and develops school-enterprise cooperation, insisted
on the concept of “deep ploughing in China, facing the
world” to develop talents, established and deepened school-
enterprise cooperation with 45 universities and 70 vocational
schools nationwide. We are committed to the goal of
“Healthy China, Strengthening Education” and developing
talent training, providing the society with composite talents
with both professional and practical abilities.

In the face of a challenging economic environment and
job market, Master Kong responded to the national call
for policies and provided thousands of job opportunities
for graduates throughout the year. We collaborated
with domestic universities to conduct research on food
safety, production processes and technology, application
development, and supported the commercialization of
core technologies and innovative achievements. In terms of
vocational education, we earnestly implemented the spirit
of school-enterprise cooperation, continued to improve the
education system, promoted the “Ordered Class of Master
Kong"” training model, explored new ideas and methods for
student training and employment from both the perspective
of the school and the enterprise, and created a new
educational model of in-depth cooperation between schools
and enterprises.
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In 2022, Master Kong continued to deepen its partnerships
with top domestic and international universities, establishing
collaborative projects in various areas such as internships,
talent exchange, enterprise case studies, scientific
research projects, and scholarship programs to promote
communication and learning and expand the Company’s
influence. We launched the first phase of “Integrated
Practical Projects” (IPP) in collaboration with the School
of Economics and Management at Tsinghua University,
aiming to jointly create industry analysis and business
recommendations based on “DTC Trend on China’s Fast
Consumable Product” allowing students to better integrate
and apply their knowledge of economic management and
understand the real needs of enterprises. We also signed
a letter of intent with Waseda University for the “New 10-
year Strategic Partnership” and sent the first group of three
supply chain management personnel to Waseda University in
September for further study, deepening their understanding
of international advanced production and management
concepts. In November, the Company was invited to
participate in the Beijing Forum organized by the Peking
University Education Foundation, sharing Master Kong's
sustainable development case with experts and scholars
from China and South Korea. In addition, Master Kong also
participated in the case writing for the Harvard Business
School’s Agribusiness Seminar and successfully completed
the big data co-construction project with the University of
Pennsylvania’s Wharton School and other partners, achieving
complementary advantages between schools and enterprises
and providing strong support for industry development and
talent cultivation.

JBEIPPIHEERRS

Meeting Site of IPP in Tsinghua University
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Trainees of “Helping with Talent Development”
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APPENDIX 1: SOCIAL RECOGNITION AND AWARDS IN 2022
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Serial No. Awards

1 20229 B HBEREERM BT mE PEUEEE 5& [p=miE
Top 3 of “Most Chosen Brands in CRP” under Brand Footprint 2022 issued by Kantar Worldpanel
2 BERAFEERAB 2021 CXSRETER(IHELETEE) &

2021 Corporate Best Practices for Achieving the Sustainable Development Goals (Sustainable Production and
Consumption)

3 2022 FAREMIEREBEITE ]
"Doer" under the Ecosystem Brand Evaluation 2022

4 NE(EREMIEERRE (2022))EH)
Selected into the case of Ecosystem Brand Development Report (2022)

5 2022 BITHOKBILRE S ILRILZE N E Mg
2022 Influential Enterprise of Practicing Lucid Waters and Lush Mountains are Invaluable Assets

6 2022 [RER I BFCBUAEE | FEGERAFERE

Annual Green Innovation Enterprise Award under “Dingge Award 2022 Digital Transformation Pioneer List”

7 [2022 - [ R P8 BB TEE | FEELEIME

Annual Model of Operational Transformation under “Dingge Award 2022 Digital Transformation Pioneer List”

8 [2021-2022 FEH BT ERMITEBFEIFNER K
"Qutstanding Instant Food Innovation Grand Award in the Year of 2021-2022"

9 [N\AEBARM I ERRBREFRERE]

"Octagonal corrugated boxes” won the “Special Contribution Award for Environmental Protection Packaging”

10 [BTNEARZEREOE - ARE D mEE]

“The 19th People’s Choice Ingenuity Awards for Ingenious Brand”

11 [ARM2022 B RBEEIFTEN —2022 IR BEE « 2 1miE]
“People’s Daily Online 2022 National Consumption Innovation Case Study - 2022 National Consumption
Influential Brand”

12 (MR 3EaTam — 2022 il » SR ER E R
“Harvard Business Review - 2022 Ram Charan Management Practice Award”

13 2022 PR B BRI HEERR 1

Asia Pacific PepsiCo’s international “The Best Bottler of the Year 2022" award

14 2021 FHEERHREERRY &

PepsiCo’s international “The Best Bottler of the Year 2021” award
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The Company has always been maintaining and improving the
governance standard of the Company, so as to enhance the Group's
accountability and transparency and increase long-term return for
shareholders. We have, throughout the year ended 31 December
2022, complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code which became effective in the year (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviations from code provisions B.2.2 and B.2.4. The reasons for
these deviations are explained below.

According to code provision B.2.2, each director (including those
with a specific appointment period) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. According to the Company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the chairman of the Board is
not subject to retirement by rotation. He is not included in the number
of directors who are required to retire each year. The Board believes
that the continuity of the leadership of the chairman of the Board is
critical to the stability of the Group’s development and the planning,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies and business
plans. Accordingly, the Board considers that although the provisions
of the above rules deviate from Code Provision B.2.2, it is in the best
interests of the Company.
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According to Code Provision B.2.4, if all independent non-executive
directors have served more than nine years on the board of directors of
an issuer, the issuer should appoint a new independent non-executive
director at the forthcoming AGM (and the appointment shall take effect
in the financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2023). All the
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company have served
on the Board for more than nine years. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun has served
on the Board for 22 years, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock has served on the Board
for 18 years and Mr. Hiromu Fukada has served on the Board for 11
years. The Board considers that these three independent non-executive
Directors have a thorough understanding of the Company’s business
operation, and have expressed objective views and given independent
guidance to the Company in the past. The Board is also of the view that
these three independent non-executive Directors are firmly committed
to their responsibilities and ongoing role, and that the long service of
these three independent non-executive Directors will not affect their
independent judgments. The Board considers these three independent
non-executive Directors to remain independent under the Listing Rules
despite the fact that they have served the Company for more than
nine years. The Board is satisfied that they have the necessary integrity,
honesty and experience to continue in their role as independent non-
executive Directors. The Board believes that the continued tenure of
these three independent non-executive Directors will bring stability to
the Board and the Board will benefit greatly from the experience of
these three independent non-executive Directors, who have over time
gained valuable insight into the Group. Therefore, the Company has no
current arrangement on appointing a new independent non-executive
Director at the forthcoming AGM, which, despite deviation from Code
Provision B.2.4. will not be detrimental to the Company.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

B EER
2022 Annual Report 4 #§

#H+ | Corporate Governance Report I

107



l Bl S XEA%E | Corporate Governance Report

Bige

EXermBEREARANEEER
%i??EEAEé?jEEE%J5<ﬁBFﬂ’\iEE%VF' jt14
BEE BRI TIENT N

{3 = PP B e m&ﬂ&%Eﬁﬂﬁmﬁ
LAEERENERE FIAEESEVEAREK
BHELEBNRE EFSTEZBEW
-

s HARTRRAER:

e HEARANRYREMEKET
M- BEBERERE EARE K
BRLHEEEREE

o HEARBINEEEERERTE
o  EEBAKRNRIMER:
o HLEMEWRE - FIRNAPHHRE -

EXeRTBENT AT URERZN B
AABEEEE TRZZEGETT -

EEeTZAEASE I RBRKER

CEREREREAREEASENA
%@ AREEESHENTEENIA
TEEEN  ERECFERERREOE
ﬁ$Aﬂ%¢%%W&¥%F$?®EH
MEFSIREETEREWHETEN - 5H
EERERARRMRE - BB RFIAT
BREHEER  BUSFVHEE &
AESIME2ENTE UEREERA4L
PEEETHEEBEELINERERS
RBUBENER  (WAEBEZHEE
I8 o

108 mEMiEZERAERAH

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

®  Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

*  Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

e Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
e Supervise the management of the Company;
*  Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees.

The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for the overall strategy
and direction for the Group, while the management is delegated to
manage the daily businesses of the Group. To ensure the Board of
Directors is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner,
the management'’s principle functions include (i) implementing the
Company’s corporation strategy and business schemes; (ii) providing
monthly management accounts and updates to the Board of Directors
for the management report, providing detailed data of the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, so as to ensure that the directors have full and timely access
to all relevant information and may take independent professional
advice if necessary; (iii) daily management of the Group.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose biographical
details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages 137 to 140 of
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors and at least one independent non-executive director with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the members of the Board
must be appointed as independent non-executive directors.

As each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers them to be independent.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relative
relationships among the members of the Board, except as disclosed in
the “Directors’ profiles” on pages 137 to 140.

The Board’'s mechanism of obtaining independent advice

There are three independent non-executive directors on the Board of
Directors of the Company, who have many years of experience in the
fields of financial market operation, corporate finance and financial
planning, and corporate audit, respectively. The Company’s independent
non-executive Directors are in a position to provide independent,
appropriate advice to the Board of Directors, to ensure that the Board of
Directors may obtain the independent views it needs when performing
its duties and making material resolutions. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company’s independent non-executive Directors
routinely attend Board meetings and actively engage in the Board's
decision-making process, providing independent views and advice while
performing their own duties at the Board of Directors. In addition, all
Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice regarding
their duties at the Company’s expenses. Based on the above, the Board
of Directors has reviewed its mechanism of obtaining independent
advice and considered that it has been fully implemented and continues
to be effective.
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Measurable Objectives

During the year, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
separated and held by different individuals to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Group is
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group is Mr.
Chen Yinjang.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. As of 31 December
2022 and till the release date of this report, the proportion of female
members on the Board of Directors is approximately 11%, and the
Company has satisfied the requirements of gender diversity of the Board
of Directors members. The Board hopes that the proportion of female
members will remain at least at the current level and will continue to
seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female members in the
future if suitable candidates are available.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has been delegated
with the responsibilities for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on
an annual basis. During the year, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee reviewed the below measurable objectives and the progress
in achieving these objectives:

EREREE
The Progress of Achieving the Targets

BiE— BEXez A2 TAMMNNES e HZE2022F12A318 ARBESFE
HE—HButEE - BREDEX
Obijective 1 There shall be at least one Director of a e As of 31 December 2022, there is one

different gender on the Board of Directors

SE MEZAT(BREER - Xk KRNES .

female Director on the Board of Directors
of the Company in total, and the objective
has been achieved

02FEEEX T BFHEDNEE T

Objective 2
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Considering candidates for appointment as
Directors from a wide pool of talents taking
into account the background, skills, experience
and perspectives that would complement the
existing Board, and adding Board diversity as
one of the priority considerations

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

£ aBABAERZEIRES

o The objective has been achieved in 2022,
and will continue to identify diverse,
appropriate candidates to propose
directors for appointment
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Measurable Objectives The Progress of Achieving the Targets
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Objective 3 Assessing the composition, the structure and e The objective has been achieved in
diversity of the Board of Directors on an annual 2022, and the assessment process
basis includes the evaluation of Board diversity

and considering the composition and
performance of the Board of Directors

objectively
BZm B —ERAERMRZ TR BEESE o 202FE2EK  KERWEREEE &
TAEB ARANZEREEREENZ T 8

BRETRREETGMERE -HEFS
MRZTEmE  EEZAENESRR
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FER2ERR L AR BEER N E &
ERREZ  REENZTENEEYF

a7 -
Objective 4 Developing a pipeline of potential successors e The objective has been achieved in 2022,
to the Board of Directors to achieve gender and the Company has taken steps to
diversity promote gender diversity at all levels,

including but not limited to the Board
of Directors and management levels.
With regards to gender diversity on the
Board of Directors, in selecting suitable
candidates for directorships and proposing
recommendations for selection, the
Board of Directors takes the opportunity
to increase the proportion of female
members as time goes by. The Company
will continue to promote gender diversity
when recruiting staff at middle to senior
level, so as to reserve a number of female
senior management staff and potential
director successors for the future.
The Company aims to keep a proper
balance of gender diversity by referring
to the expectations of shareholders and
international and local best practices.
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The Group’s male and female staff account for approximately 65% and
35% of the total number of staff, respectively. In the past year, the
proportion of female staff in the Group was substantially the same as
that in the previous year.

The Board of Directors conducts an annual review on the gender
diversity policy of all employees. During the year, the Board of Directors

DERIERIENEE has reviewed the programme below and the progress in achieving these
objectives:

=T & ENEENEE

Programme The Progress of Achieving the Targets

BiZ RARSEIREGTEReERMERZTL - I o 2022FFEEENK - AaRERABRES

ERMEEETERE MERZ T LT MK

R

Objective

opportunities and gender diversity, monitoring
and measuring its performance in equal
opportunities and gender diversity o
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The Company encourages and advocates equal

TLABEHIE

o BHEBIRALHEE  EERMEASED
Z I HE

The objective has been achieved in 2022,
providing diversity and inclusion training
for senior management staff

Continuing to reinforce the diversity
and inclusion of talent recruitment,
management and promotion

The Board applies good corporate governance principles and is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties with its
written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(©)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the year under review, the Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance practices and ensured compliance with the CG
Code (especially the principles of good corporate governance) and the
requirements disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting. Board
meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to each
Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial year ended
31 December 2022 six Board meetings were held. The attendance of
individual director to the Board meetings in year 2022 is summarised
below:

HiE BT
EESSERY
Number of
Board Meetings
Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 6/6
Mr. Junichiro Ida 6/6
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 6/6
Mr. Koji Shinohara 6/6
Mr. Yuko Takahashi 6/6
Ms. Tseng Chien 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 6/6
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 6/6
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 6/6

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discusses
and approves major issues such as the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group's financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 162 to 169.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of
his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments in
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and
reading material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where
appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company's expenses. All directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice on their responsibilities, expenses
paid by the company. To ensure that the directors have deepened their
understanding of the Group, senior management of the Company has
conducted a continuing professional development plan for the directors
during the year.
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Summary for 2022 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(@ learn about China’s various regional channels operating
conditions; and

(b)  understand the production and operation status of each factory.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors, on
corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules amendments and
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all the directors for
their reference and studying.

In accordance with Code Provision C.1.4, all Directors are required to
provide their respective training records to the Company. A summary of
the training received by each Director during the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 is set out below:

SMESHEFE
EXRREE  BEAE
EHRAREMBEREE
ERNRHBRBE R B

Participate in the
Directors’ continuing
professional development
programme and read
materials on the latest
developments in relation
to the Listing Rules

and other applicable

== Directors regulatory regulations
HITEE Executive Directors

BERALE Mr. Wei Hong-Ming v
HHEG—EE Mr. Junichiro Ida v
BARRESE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen v
BRERFTE Mr. Koji Shinohara v
afEBEESLE Mr. Yuko Takahashi v
Ex+t Ms. Tseng Chien :;
HUIFHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors v
RIERELE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun v
FRERE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock v
RS A Mr. Hiromu Fukada v
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
integrity of accounts, risk management and internal control systems and
their effectiveness, as well as maintaining good corporate governance
standards and practices. It also acts as an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the
group audit. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and will meet regularly with management, internal
auditors and external auditors, as well as review their reports. During
this financial year, the work conducted by the Audit Committee include:
review of financial statements, annual and interim report and result
announcements of the Group, regular meeting with management,
internal auditors and external auditors, as well as review of their reports.
Four meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December
2022. Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as

follows:

HEBITEBRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 4/4
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 4/4
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 4/4

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on 11
August 2005. The Committee now comprises four directors, namely,
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong
Hock, Mr. Hiromu Fukada and executive Director, Mr. Wei Hong Ming.
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the Committee.

One meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 December
2022. Details of the attendance of the remuneration and nomination
committee meeting are as follows:

HEBTERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 7
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 11
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 11
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming Il

The Committee was set up to review the structure, size and diversity
of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, advise the Board on the remuneration of individual executive
directors and senior management, and consider and approve the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and other
long-term incentive schemes. The Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time, assess the
performance of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the
Executive Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of
Directors and the succession planning for Directors, and to ensure that
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors are in accordance
with fair and transparent principles. With regard to the policy on the
nomination of Directors, the Committee will take into account the
experience, knowledge and professionalism of the nominees in order
to enable them to bring efficiency and effectiveness to the Board
and to promoting diversity in board membership (including gender
diversity). During this financial year, the Committee implemented works
including: review the structure, size and composition of the Board;
assess the performance of the Executive Directors; review diversity
status of existing members of the Board and give advice; evaluate the
biography of the Director candidates and advise the Board in respect of
the re-appointment of the Directors; advise the Board in respect of the
remuneration of senior management.
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The Company's remuneration policies are as follows:

(@  Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should
be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
requirements;

(b)  The remuneration of directors should be set at a lever sufficient
to attract and retain them to manage the Company’s operations
without excessive payment, while taking into account the
Company's requirements for the time required to perform their
duties; and

(©) A director must not be involved in the making of his personal
remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the nine senior management individuals during

FEEB AL ZBEARAT

BEESHEAR

3,018,543 ARME %= 3,449,763 AR
(3,500,001 %L 4,000,000 7T)
4,312,204 AR¥EZE 4,743,424 AR
(5,000,001 8 7LE 5,500,000787T)
4,743,425 ARWEZE 5,174,644 AR
(5,500,001 #JLZE 6,000,000 7T)
5,605,865 A R % 6,037,085 AR
(6,500,001 %L 7,000,000 7T)
6,037,086 AR¥ % 6,468,305 AR
(7,000,001 7L2E 7,500,00087T)
7,330,747 AR¥ZE 7,761,966 AR
(8,500,001 L2 9,000,000 7T)
7,761,967 AR#% 8,193,187 AR¥
(9,000,001 #JLZE 9,500,000 7T)
8,624,408 ARM % 9,055,627 AR

(10,000,001 # 72 10,500,000 78 7T )

the year ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:

Emoluments band

RMB3,018,543 to RMB3,449,763
(HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000)
RMB4,312,204 to RMB4,743,424
(HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000)
RMB4,743,425 to RMB5,174,644
(HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000)
RMB5,605,865 to RMB6,037,085
(HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000)
RMB6,037,086 to RMB6,468,305
(HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000)
RMB7,330,747 to RMB7,761,966
(HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000)
RMB7,761,967 to RMB8,193,187
(HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000)
RMB8,624,408 to RMB9,055,627
(HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000)

BEAZ

Number of individuals
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The principal spirit of the internal control and risk management
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure,
control activities, information and communication, and monitoring.

i.e. control environment, risk assessment,

The goal of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group
within acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for the Group’s
long- term development. Meanwhile, it can achieve the goal of
defining the management structure and authorization so as to enhance
the operational performance and efficiency as well as asset safety
protection, which ensures the reliability of financial reports while
complies with the requirements of national regulations.

Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established an
organization structure, responsibility and authority in the construction
of three lines of defense for risk management. The Audit Committee
will assist the Board to review the design and operation effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. As of
31 December 2022, the Group has been carrying out self-assessment
of internal control where a prudent and effective self-inspection system
has been established to achieve full coverage of external and internal
inspection on each aspect thought the management circle. Meanwhile,
more efforts have been put in supervision over subsidiaries where
management regulations have been formulated with a priority to
processes of higher risk. In addition, the Group has been promoting the
monitoring work in respect of laws and regulations anti-fraud and the
construction of internal control culture.

The Board conducts review for the Group’s risk management and
internal control system at least once annually. The Board recognizes
it has overall responsibility of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reviews their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
achievement of the Group's business objectives and the Board can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. For the financial year ended 31 December 2022,
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems. According to the internal audit of the internal
inspection department, we have not identified any material deficiency
in risk management and internal control. Therefore, the Board and the
Audit Committee believe that the Group’s risk management and internal
control system are effective.
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The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursuing
sustainable development and assuming social responsibility” as
management objective. The management process includes risk
identification, risk assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall
monitoring. Firstly, the implementation of risk management objectives is
set through systematic and scientific methods. Then, through interviews
with management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk
management framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the
discussion through senior management to complete the risk assessment,
and then formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to
implement risk control activities and supervision.

We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. Through implementation of risk response measure to
our regulation and system, structural planning and operating process,
we further establish the enterprise risk management strategy to support
the Company in achieving the enterprise mid-to-long term vision and
strategic objective.

In response to the ever-changing market trends, the Group has been
learning from international benchmark enterprises and improving the
operation of three lines of defense for risk management. Meanwhile,
in accordance with the three-line framework newly promulgated by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (lIA) of the U.S., the Group formulated its
risk management strategy for the next three to five years. Under the
instruction and guidance of the Board and the Operation Committee,
the Group focused on management of five major risks in three
categories, namely environment, social and governance in 2022 with
specific countermeasures and strategies as detailed below:

1.1. ENVIRONMENTAL POLLUTION RISKS
1.1.1 Definitions:

o Improper management of raw materials and
energy consumption in the production and
processing process leads to the risk of resource
waste and excessive emissions.

o Improper disposal of hazardous wastes in the
waste disposal process leads to environmental
pollution risks.
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1.1.2 Coping strategies:

Adhering to the guidance of the sustainable
development concept of “Keep Our Nature Green”,
the Group focused on resource conservation and
accurately accounts for energy consumption and
resource input in the production design process. For
recyclable resources, resource wastage is reduced and
input of redundant materials are managed from the
source through efficient reuse in the production loop.

The Group promoted environmentally-friendly
packaging through innovative products, and reduced
the consumption of plastic packaging and the
circulation of plastic products in society through
effective management.

Combined with the actual situation during the daily
production process, the Group fully supervised and
counseled the production process to ensure that the
efficient production process was put into operation
effectively. The yield rate was improved in the
production process and wasted material and spoilage
was reduced.

The Group ensured that hardware and software
personnel were in place during the waste disposal
process, optimized the waste management process
and closely monitored the discharge treatment
process to ensure that it met or exceeded the national
standards.
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2.1 FOOD SAFETY RISKS:

2.1.1 Definitions:

o There are many kinds of raw materials and
items, and the management level of suppliers
is uneven, which threatens the risk of
contamination of raw materials.

o The supply chain process from raw material
procurement to product terminal sales is
complicated, and some links may be risky due to
poor monitoring.

At present, the dissemination of media information is
not effectively managed, consumer awareness of rights
violations, and if the food information acquisition,
transmission or communication is not timely, or the
clarification of the rumors is not properly handled, it
may cause consumers to panic or misunderstand, and
eventually affect brand reputation

2.1.2 Coping strategies:

Learn from advanced countries or standard enterprise
management experience, establish a food quality
screening and access system for raw materials, and
prevent plugging from the design side to effectively
control risks. Continuously improve the testing
capabilities of local factories and laboratories to ensure
the quality and safety of products from raw material
procurement to sales in retail outlets.

Cooperate with relevant national requirements,
implement the main responsibility and quality system
of the enterprise, promote the “three-level” self-
examination system of food safety quality, optimize
and implement regular unannounced inspection and
unqualified supplier delisting mechanism, and pay
attention to process traceability management and
inspection.
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° Do a good job of science popularization on the food
safety topic of concern to consumers, communicate
regularly with scholars and experts and government
regulatory authorities, use external professional
resources to transmit correct information, and improve
the food safety defense mechanism from crisis event
technical department to respond to SOP.

2.2 CORRUPTION RISKS
2.2.1 Definitions:

o Personal behavior norms or professional ethics
may deviate and administrative behavior is
out of control because of selfish desires, self-
interest and other ideological and moral errors,
or family affection and other circumstances, or
to instruct others to violate professional ethics,
resulting in unjust and unfair results of work
behavior, damage to the interests of work
targets or improper gains, which constitutes
serious consequences such as “abuse of power
for personal gain”.

o There is a lack of effective supervision and
internal control mechanism for mutual
interaction and balances in all aspects of
business process, resulting in the risk that
managers are prone to fraud.

o It may cause incorrectly performing
administrative duties or inaction by on-the-job
personnel, constituting serious consequences
such as dereliction of duty, malpractice and
"abuse of power for personal gain” due to
the particularity of post responsibilities and
the practical risks in terms of ideology and
morality, external environment and institutional
mechanisms.
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2.2.2 Coping strategies:

The Group has established and continuously
improved its anti-corruption mechanisms, focusing on
prevention, implementing punishment and prevention
in parallel and clarifying the key links and key areas
of anti-fraud to standardize the whistleblowing,
investigation, handling, reporting and remedial
procedures for fraud cases.

The Group has promulgated at least 20 management
policies and systems related to anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, covering the directors and all employees
of the Group, as well as cooperative suppliers,
customers and distributors, in order to continuously
strengthen its construction of anti-fraud system.
The Group has clarified the professional integrity of
employees, strictly prohibited job fraud, implemented
fraud reporting and supervision and review, and
stipulated corresponding punishment measures.

The Group continuously promoted integrity culture
building and conducted anti-fraud publicity for
employees to reinforce the awareness of business
conduct, and create a healthy culture and clean
atmosphere through various training forms such
as new employee training, corporate micro-signal
publicity and online learning platform, ensuring that
all directors and employees were covered by anti-
corruption and anti-fraud business ethics training.

The Group took advantage of informatization
measures to strengthen the internal control system
measures to business systems, enhanced the coverage
of business control, so as to identify and collect fraud
clues in a timely manner, and set up preventive,
identifiable and corrective internal control measures in
business systems and applications. The Group regularly
reviewed and supervised the business conduct and
professional integrity of business departments.



EEATRE | Corporate Governance Report [N N

3.1. EfEE: 3.1 INFORMATION RISK
3.1.1 A - 3.1.1 Definitions:

s EBHEHZzEE- e Risk of operation is interrupted due to failure of
BE-BEXE IT safety, operation and back-up system, such
ﬁﬁ%@qﬂ 2 & as prevention and handling of system disorder,

C N R FE R system crash, safety protection or computer
=) *r,% 2R virus.
B HES AN EE
B

e BHEHZERE e Information management and control rights,

BB R network threats, data center physical security
g2 .88 5 0y risks, such as malicious rights, network intrusion,
ZEREAR - WEE data center power, access control security or
R WmBEAR unauthorized access to the information system
BERFRLES M as a whole.
222 B BB Bk R 48
XREEATERH
EHEY L 3
[EBg o

. RS BRE e  Risk of out-of-control information systems
B BIFFEC K caused by external threats such as theft of
ERERNFER - A equipment/data, computer fraud, unauthorized
REBWREZINA access, and vandalism.

BB RSl E

AR amE -

e FREMRLMES e Failure to effectively integrate business
BRI R HE information among IT systems.
PN
=

o HNEEMZTEIERE e The regulations related to information security
ERBBEBRE - B are becoming more strict, while employee
THREMNRES awareness of information protection is weak,
BECESS  TEE there is the risk of information leakage.
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3.1.2 Coping strategies:

Improve the operation and management regime
for information system based on PDCA to maintain
an effective support of information system to
organizational development and business continuation
and ensure its stable and effective operation,
thereby avoiding company losses and safeguarding
shareholders’ rights and interests.

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments, laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected system operation
controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on control
measures based on the strategy, procedures, laws and
regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Reinforce the information security management
system of the Company according to adopted
ISO27001 information security management standard.

Achieve an upgrade of management system through

enhancing systems in aspects such as organizational strategy,

staff awareness, user access, information assets safety,

emergency management, system operation, outsourcing

management and legal compliance management.

Achieve self-improvement of information security

management system through online and offline publicization

and implementation, theorical penetration by departmental

safety liaison officer, periodic tour inspection and audit

under the guidance of external certification institutions and

ongoing follow-up on corrections.
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Through the aforesaid, the Group is able to further expand
the coverage and management dept of the information
security management system and continuously and
effectively reduce the risk in leakage of information relating
to its core strategy, technology, operation, financial reports
and human resource, etc.

*  Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration. Deeply tap the value of information, build
an effective inter-system connection of information
and construct a commercial intelligence platform for
cross-system information analysis, thereby improving
the digital-based operation capability.

3.2 SUPPLY CHAIN RISK
3.2.1 Definition

e In the context of a fluctuating raw material
price, enterprises may be unable to avoid risk
of fluctuations in market prices as they fail to
make reasonable procurement prediction due to
inaccurate judgement on market trend or failure
to adopting diversified procurement strategy
and tools.

® Due to much reliance on a single supplier,
enterprises may be unable to develop or
switch a new supplier in a timely manner in
case of supplier exit or occurrence of quality
problem, thereby impacting the operation of the
enterprise.

e There are still room for improvement in the
EHS management in production process: the
tightening standard in emission cut and energy
conservation, enhancing staff awareness on
health and certain safety control and monitoring
still to be improved, which may pose challenges
on the Company.
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3.2.2 Coping strategies:

The Group has established a diversified
procurement strategy with two procurement
approaches which are centralized procurement
by the headquarter and separate procurement
by local operations. Through centralized
procurement, the Group will have more
bargaining power and standardized procurement
process, while through making good use of
local procurement, the Group could fully utilize
the advantage of local resources, which could
be an effective complement to centralized
procurement.

Establish the operational mechanism for daily
development and emergency switch to the
alternate supplier of key materials. Based on
the important levels of raw materials, the top-
level material shall have at least one principal
supplier as well as three to four (and more)
alternate suppliers to ensure prompt availability
of the material at any time of emergency. In
the context of the global pandemic, the Group
has formulated risk control plan for imported
materials and supplies to ensure a safe supply.

Establish and improve the supply chain EHS
management system and actively push forward
the certification of 1SO45001/14001 dual
systems. Main while, improve the relevant
warrants obtaining efficiency through internal
management and optimize the design side
to effectively manage risk and conduct daily
safety inspection to reinforce the effective
implementation at the execution side.
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To ensure sustainable operation of the Group and to show gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group enhances risk
management and internal plan control. Through evaluation and support
from external professional independent consultant, adhering to the
operating idea and corporate culture spirit of the Group, the 2023
guidance of optimization of risk management and internal control
system is specified and formulated.

Point 1: Keep optimizing the significant risk management system
of the Group in line with the up-to-date philosophy in the world

The Group identifies, assesses and monitors group-level significant risks
on a regular basis. In addition, based on the data of risk assessment,
to assist the management in formulating risk coping strategies
and increasing the risk management standards. Daily supervision is
conducted over the implementation of risk coping plan with a view to
reduce the remaining risk to an acceptable level.

Point 2: Continue with the authority management of the IT
system to enhance corporate governance of the Group

The Group designs and sets up IT authorization management policies
according to the control requirements of different businesses. The
approach from gradual piloting to full rollout ensures operational safety,
the segregation of incompatible responsibilities and the efficiency and
compliance of business operations, thus meeting corporate governance
and compliance requirements.

Point 3: Continue with the digital-based transformation to realize
the objective of ex-ante warning with information system

As the business model becomes increasingly complicated, the ex-
post manual inspection adopted in the past has become outdated.
Meanwhile, the increasing labor cost also makes the traditional
operation mode unsustainable. As such, the Group has carried out the
project to construct an IT inspection system tool, with a view to enhance
the control effectiveness of the three lines of defense.

B EER
2022 Annual Report 4 #§

129



P EEATRE | Corporate Governance Report

ARBABMEZAFISBLELNL - BER
BREZS GCEFSRRBEAR FE
EITARE AR MR FRATRE
VTEFERALERANERZZEGRES
E#E - AEE B ARE 2 EME
ARBEHTENEARR K ERBEEER
g ETEY  FENARERNARE
O REHETIZREEAM  RE - HE
M 2B ARBRSERRRE
R TESEHEBEGIRE - BT
il BEEERE  BAEER  EEFAE
THIARER - UHEEARREE kAE
BERAGHARMN - REFEHFFAEEAR
BRMBRE R EEZ  EBHEEER
LBy 55 B2 2 450 e BB S {b S| O 32 2% -
BIERREEBEIREREREENER
HIT - BB LBRBRETRBAFHAR
R EIE N ARREE IR T R A B AR M
& HEEEEFANR  LAhEEEH
AR S - AERTE R ARFT B M E 1T
MR BRRAEREARERREER
WEPEFEH T B - AN ET R T2 B &Y AL
BN ABEHIR BRI - (T B AR
SERREERR - BIEKERE R RERR
RS o

AN - R ERTE R B P& BB IR EAE T
RERBE A B ERETHERBELLE R
ENEFE - WERB A EBEEITH QAR
ERRONER AT E ER A R R B TR - RIS
B R E R ETE R BT LA R BRE S N
= ol AR

130 EMEERERAE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The Company’s internal audit department is an independent unit
directly under the Board. It is specifically responsible for performing the
Group's internal audit and anti-fraud investigation functions, as well as
reporting them to the Audit Committee and the Chairman on a regular
basis or when necessary, within the authorization given by the Board.
The internal audit functions conduct independent, objective and risk-
oriented internal audits of the Group's significant risks in relation to
its operation and execution of its significant strategies as well as its
related monitoring systems. The scope of audit mainly covers major
risk management systems such as information, food safety, supply
chain, finance, operation, and compliance with laws and regulations,
mainly focusing on the five substantial elements of internal control,
such as control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and monitoring, so as to assess their
effectiveness. The anti-fraud investigation functions, through making
investigation into whistleblowing and anti-fraud audit, facilitate the
management to enhance anti-fraud system and the incorruptible culture
and system, so as to improve the overall governance environment
of the Company and enforcement of corporate culture. Results and
recommendations on risk management and internal control inadequacy
from each audit and whistleblowing investigation projects will be put
into detailed discussion with the management, and the management
will formulate improvement plans while internal audit department will
track the executions to improve the risk management and internal
control inadequacy within reasonable time, in order to continuously
enhance the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control, thereby helping the Company accomplish business
goals, reducing operation risks, as well as protecting the interests of
Shareholders.

In addition, the internal audit department also, through providing
consultation services on risk control, assists the management of the
Company in accomplishing its goal to safeguard business operation.
Such services may include internal consultation and in-house training
in respect of potential problems facing the Company, internally or
externally, in management of risks, internal control and compliance.
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The Company strives to promote and maintain a liberal and probity
operation environment and corporate culture, and to formulate
whistleblowing policies and responding measures. The Company strives
to promote and maintain a liberal and probity operation environment
and corporate culture, and to formulate integrity policy, whistleblowing
and protection policies. The Company has set up a reporting mailbox
and hotline, the internal audit department receives whistle-blown
information and conducts investigation and has announced the above
reporting channels in multiple places including the Company's website,
so that employees and business partners can report in confidence.

2023 will be a high-quality development stage for the Group
in promoting self-assessment of internal control to continuous
enhancement. Over the past five years, the Group has established
a normalized and stable self-assessment system on internal control.
In the future, the Group will further foster the risk owners’ sense of
ownership in respect of risk management and internal control, thus
providing reasonable assurance for the Group’s accomplishing of its
operation goals. All these are established based on tools such as time
series analysis, trend analysis, structure analysis, decision tree analysis,
regression analysis and compliance analysis. Through the automated
analysis and continuous monitoring of risk data, we can achieve the
goal of positioning and management from the source of risk. Through
the steady implementation of the above steps, we can effectively ensure
the Company’s corporate reputation and brand image maintenance,
value creation and risk management mechanism are in line with the
expectations of stakeholders.

In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

e  The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

e  The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website; and
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e  The Group has established the inside information management
rules throughout the Group and provides to its employee trainings
in respect of inside information management. Senior management
and general staff who can access inside information due to
their rankings or duties are required by the Group to assume
confidential obligations in respect of inside information. In respect
of result announcement or material transaction, strictly controlling
and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing information, the
material sensitive information is concealed by confidential code
(including electronic, written and verbal), and giving a written
notice about the lock-up period and other matters required for
special attention to avoid insider information.

Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB7.952 million and RMB0.866 million
respectively and no significant non-audit services were involved during
the period.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Kuowei LIU, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 31 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company convened and
held one annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) and one
extraordinary general meeting (”Extraordinary General Meeting”). The
attendance records of each Director at the general meetings are set out

REg]) - BEERBRRAGZHFELREHT

wm below:
HifE BT HE BT
=6 P8 SENE
Number of Number of
Meetings Meetings
Attended/Held  Attended/Held
BRRAFAE BRRERIAE
Annual General Extraordinary
Es Directors Meeting General Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
Nl Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 11 01
HHAE—R L Mr. Junichiro Ida 0/1 0/1
MARREE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 0/1 01
RRERAE Mr. Koji Shinohara 0/1 01
SRBEELE Mr. Yuko Takahashi 0/1 0/1
wEZ L Ms. Tseng Chien 0/1 01
HUIEHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
RIEREE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 11 171
FREEE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 171 171
REARTE Mr. Hiromu Fukada 0/1 0/1

B~ RIA EPERFER A AR SR
NABRRARENRERNBRBEEARARFD
BRI 10% B RR AR AR A
EXQEXRERRR  BREFEREA
NEEHERS ST REFABRERERIRE
IEREEMBRTINANER - ZFE
E KU BREFRERELREREAR R
B - IRBERFRE 21 XA
EEWRABEEH  BWREERRAR
AIEBERE ST REERRERIKRE -

BRENAGNERBLBAINEEER
FTELEMHARNWERE  TELE
WHEEAXRFRN AR ER G HF

it o

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% in total of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the
Board to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles of association. Such
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
office of the Company. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the
requisition may do so in accordance with the provision of Article 57 of
the Company’s articles of association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company’s article of
association.

The Company is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ interests
and believes that effective communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the business performance and strategies of the
Group. To achieve this, the Company has established the shareholders
communication policy (the “Shareholders Communication Policy”)
setting out various formal channels of communication with shareholders
and other stakeholders, which include publication of the Company'’s
financial reports, circulars and notices of annual general meetings and
other extraordinary general meetings that may be convened, and other
information in accordance with the regulatory requirements published
by the Company on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website
of the Company under the relevant laws, regulations and the Hong
Kong Listing Rules, providing corporate communication to shareholders,
encouraging shareholders to participate in general meetings, for
ensuring fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting
of the Company’s performance and activities. Shareholders who
have any questions (including any questions about the shareholders’
communication policy), comments and suggestions relating to the
Company may send their questions, comments and suggestions by post
to the Company's operating locations in Hong Kong (Suite 5607, 56th
Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong) or email to
ir@tingyi.com. The Company reviews the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has reviewed the
Shareholders” Communications Policy and confirmed that it has included
channels for shareholders to express their views on various matters
affecting the Issuer and that the Company has taken appropriate and
sufficient steps to seek and understand the views of shareholders and
stakeholders and is satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders” Communications Policy.
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The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover,
additional information is also available to shareholders through the
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company'’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

There were no changes to the Company's articles of association for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company'’s profit and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, the Group's liquidity levels and future development plans,
general economic and financial conditions, business cycle of the Group,
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance of the Group, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.
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The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2022, the Group
conducted more than 300 meetings with approximately 1,800 analysts
and fund managers (person-time). Investors can also obtain useful
information and updates on the Group’s business development from our
websites. The Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency
and the quality of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng Index. The Group is
currently covered by more than 20 investment banks and securities
firms, which shows our investment and development potential.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.



EENSHEERASRN

Directors and Senior Management Profile

HITES

BEB > HF4558 R2019F1A1H
BEFAEEESSER - MAKRLEZ
R MEBEERBRBGIAAZHT
BIISBEN  REAEBAZRKSEL
B UAREERLFHABMSEIREE
T2 - FERBRMEHA IR ARE
¥ % & 89 = B Makena Capital 2 @ -
NEBERBEDOWA I - MERLER
2006 FIIAREE - HEBHEZTRK
B WR2015FEAEETSEANTE
- HRETEHLSKBEBRABERATES
MMSEBKEEERZRABREBEEX
R RAREERFAEALLER R E
HRIRL R BNRE

FHEA—B - BFE60RT ' M2013F 11 A
ISARZAASEEEGRIEF - FHT
—BBSEAEH 2002 F5 BRI EAREEENTT
ET BATHFRMMAGH AR - §
R198SFRURABZEWNE TIRTT
RIS 7SF - B 1992 F 1A = F B Mtk =
2t B1998F 6 ARREMF = FR MK
AEHZHER BEEBREF=FRREH
BRAFHNITES * Caraway Pte Ltd(=
FEB @A Olam International Ltd &) ZE M
MIBREERRWITES  ERXRFTT
BEESEEESE  —FRAEEHER
REE —HFRRXLEFREFBEARE
BE . AANFERATERSEE AKX
MOREGEERRIHAETEHIR -
202 FEXBABNHNEEESTRE

o

BMEAXR - RFEA40m - B2019F1H1H
BETAEERTES  RERLEZR
HoMERFEABEERNATHE
bt - WESBARRBARSETSE LG
HEBRIHERELTSMN - BRAREE
CHBREAEEMONAE  UEKAE
NEVEED o WH 2015 F 2 AT EME
RMIERERAGES - HESEERS
FHEERTEEERR BEESERE
BEREBEHEE -

Executive Directors

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 45, was appointed as Chairman of the Group
on 1 January 2019. He is the elder brother of Mr. Wei Hong-Chen. Mr.
Wei holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from King's
College London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel
University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University in the U.S..
He had worked as an asset allocation analyst at Makena Capital in the
U.S., which was invested by Paul Allen, the co-founder of Microsoft. Mr.
Wei joined the Group as a project manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006,
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015. Mr.
Wei had led many projects such as the development blueprint of the
MIS Group management system promoted by a number of international
consulting companies, and made long-term effective planning for the
digital transformation and supply chain layout of the future group
system.

Junichiro IDA, aged 60, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Group
on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. After
graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji Bank,
Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in June
1998. Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America
as well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package foods
business between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd
in Africa) and Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Morocco in Gunma.
He is also the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Scholarship
Foundation, the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Culture and
Sports Foundation, the Director of Japan Convenience Foods Industry
Association, the Chairman of the Board of Save the Children Japan and
the visiting professor of Rikkyo University. He was awarded the “Medal
with Blue Ribbon” by Japanese government in 2021.

WEI Hong-Chen, aged 40, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is the younger brother of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming. Mr. Wei received his Bachelor degree from Imperial
College London, Master’s degree from Waseda University, and MBA
from Harvard Business School. He had worked at Blackstone Group's
New York office and the headquarter of Pepsi Co. He was appointed
as a Director of KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.) since February 2015. Mr. Wei
has accumulated many years of experience working in the Group, and
during which has contributed to the forming of strategic partnerships
with international corporations such as Starbucks and Disney.

B EER
2022 Annual Report 4 #§

137



H Bl == SEEEAS/BN | Directors and Senior Management Profile

HITES(E)

BIR=ER - TFS55% © N 201595 H 28
AEERERNTES - RREENR 2014
FEAMA=ZFREMKA G - HAEBTT
EFEMSTHALR - FR1990F £
¥NBABEERAEBEER  RFHEARNO
AEE(EAR)  RERETH XK 0%
FEEITE 2007 FHER O AL(H
) @RIBITIHEI A - WK 2008 F H (£ 7]
ARETHEARNTSRETREBE =8
BRERIMTE R BNERZ B IE © 2010 F HER O
(AR REBTHESSREIBE  ®R
EERBBTHEEREE - +HFEEL
%ﬁ o

EREEE MF60 ' MN2019F8AH9
AEEREBRITES - 2B EER2015
FMAZFREEA G - EBINEER
R BREZFEREEERARAL
B FEENBARRILAE 198654 A
Z2015F 8 ARBHRIKRZEZBERAR - I
EZERURR  BETR2ZHFEAR
AEIMBTHIBAE K22 EERGO A
AIEARIR - BUMKRIEM B ERBIED4RE -
EREEEEHRRBITERBI0FLR -

B IWF6E35 B2019F12H31H
RETEARERTES - BERBERR
REBLEZ - 1996 F8 AIMALE - F(E
SEEHHHEE  AEESEVER
HExE AmEEVSAIEE - REAE
FmERF R SEEFZRENERE
NEIFBR o EEAREEF - ZEBN
A8 M RARIRAKRN BRA RIS -
REETERME - BR2003FXINE A
RMEBEEEMILSAP LR @ BRI &S
BESOPEXER] - AEEM g R AIEIEE
REEIL R AR - 218282004 F A
AR 2013 F B EFEIMBEREE -

138 EMEERAERLE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Executive Directors (Continued)

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from the Department of Economics, Keio University, Japan
in 1990, he worked in Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales
and business management. In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand
marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior
Director of ready-to-drink (RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-
Cola Atlanta headquarter. In 2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice
President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than
20 years working experience in the brand marketing industry.

Yuko TAKAHASHI, aged 60, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 9 August 2019. Mr. Takahashi joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. in 2015 and is the executive director, Head of Overseas
Business Division and President of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America. After
graduating from Tohoku University, he worked with Ajinomoto Co.,
Inc. from April 1986 to August 2015 and served in various positions
in its Overseas Business Division, including as Marketing Director of
Ajinomoto Co., (Thailand) Ltd., President of Ajinomoto Poland Sp z
0.0., and Corporate Planning Director of the Europe and Africa Division.
He has more than 30 years of working experience in the global food
industry.

TSENG Chien, aged 63, has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group since 31 December 2019. She graduated from the
Department of Economics at Soochow University in Taiwan and
joined the Group in August 1996. She has served as the Head of
Accounting Department of the Group’s headquarters, Head of Finance
and Accounting Department of the Instant Noodle Business, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department of the Beverage Business, Chief
Financial Officer of the Group's Beverage Business and Chief Financial
Officer of Ho Te, one of the main shareholders of the Group. While she
was serving in the Group, Ms. Tseng has successfully introduced the
computerized SAP to the Beverage Business in 2003 and formulated SOP
operation guidelines for various functions of finance and accounting as
well as internal control. Later, she participated in the cooperation with
international partners Asahi and PepsiCo in 2004 and 2013, respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. From 2002
to 2012, he served as the chief financial officer of Yingye Da Co., Ltd.,
a listed company in Taiwan, and from 2011 to 2017, he served as the
chairman of the board of directors of Yitong Solar Energy Technology
Co. He has also served as a director and supervisor of several Taiwanese
companies (including listed companies) since 2000. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 82, has served the Group as an Independent
Non-executive Director since 27 September 2004, a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee since 2004, a member
of the Audit Committee since 2004, and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee since 2005. Mr. Lee has over 30 years of experience in
commercial banking, investment banking and risk management, in
particular the management of investment risks and internal system risks.
Mr. Lee began his banking career in 1961 with Malayan Banking Berhad
and had worked in its Kuala Lumpur Head Office and Singapore Branch
before he was transferred to Hong Kong to oversee the bank’s loan
portfolio in 1964. From 1977 to 1987, Mr. Lee was the senior manager
of the marketing department of Development Bank of Singapore, Hong
Kong Branch and concurrently the general manager of two deposit-
taking subsidiaries of the bank. During his tenure, he specialised in
the development of banking products and assessment of their relative
risks. During 1989 to 1997, Mr. Lee was engaged in corporate advisory
businesses, and since then in private financial consultancy business in
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
since 30th July 1995, the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
since 11th February 1998, and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Director since 1st August 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 93, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had served as
Minister of the Japanese Embassy in the U.S., Ambassador of OECD,
Singapore and Australia, and director of Economic Affairs. Mr. Fukada
had been the Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry, Ltd. from 2006
to0 2016, and he is currently the Advisor of the same company. He is also
the auditor of Kajima Institute of International Peace.

IP Pui-Sum, aged 63, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom)
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He also obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration in 1996.
Mr. Ip has 25 years of experience in public accounting and company
secretarial practices. He is also a certified public accountant (practicing)
in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in September 1995.

Richard CHEN Yinjang, aged 59, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group. Before his appointment on 1 January 2021, Mr. Chen had
served as the Chief R&D Officer in the Group since February 2013. Mr.
Chen made excellent achievements in developing local talents, building
win-win relationship with external partners and qualifying technology
platforms. Mr. Chen, after graduation from the Department of Chemical
Engineering in National Taiwan University, had worked for Procter &
Gamble for 25 years in global R&D management, prior to his joining of
Master Kong. Mr. Chen, trilingual in Chinese, English and Japanese, was
leading in consumer product innovation and R&D capability building
across the U.S., Japan and China.
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KuoWei LIU, aged 51, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was Special Assistant and Assistant
Manager of Finance Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical
Engineering of Taiwan National Cheng Kung University, Master of
Computer Science of Imperial College London and an M.B.A. from
Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in
Wharton School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix
Chang'’s Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.

Walt WU, aged 62, Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group. He
graduated from the Institute of Human Resource Management, National
San Yat Sen University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November
2005 as the Senior Assistant Vice President and Vice President of human
resources of the Beverages Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO
office in September 2014 and since November 2014, he has served as
Chief Human Resources Officer. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in Twinhead International Corp. as an Assistant Manager of Human
Resources, Tsrc Corporation and The Home World Group as an Vice
President of Human Resources. Mr. Wu has 31 years of experience
in human resources management, with expertise in strategic human
resource management, human development. He endeavors to build the
sustainable development talent team, to promote organizational change
and make full advantage of human resources benefits, realizing the
organizational transformation.

Frank WANG, aged 51, is the Executive Vice President of CEO
Office. He joined the group in 2008, has been the Head of Strategic
Management dept. of Instant Noodles business, Head of Strategic
Management dept. of Master Kong Beverage business and Pepsi
Beverage business, Head of Chairman’s Office, Board Secretary and
Head of Corporate Development dept. Mr. Wang is responsible for
corporate strategy, organization restructure, information technology,
legal, public relations, public affairs in the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wang served as Associate Director in KPMG Taiwan, Senior
Consultant in Computer Associates’ JV, where he was in charge of Asia
Pacific business. He has years of experience in digital transformation
and value chain integration, value chain integration, sustainable.
Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science in Bioenvironmental Systems
Engineering from National Taiwan University, a Master Degree in
Civil Engineering from Columbia University, and a Master Degree of
Graphic Communications Management and Technology from New York
University.
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Max HUANG, aged 58, is the Executive President of the Group's Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
30 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.

TSAI, TZU-YUAN, aged 62, is the Executive President of the Group’s
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in December 1994, General
Manager of Shenyang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd in November 1998, Vice
president of South District of the Group’s Beverage Business in March
2016 and was appointed as the President of the Group's Beverage
Business in November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
Fukeyule Co., Ltd and Qiaoju Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Cai is particularly
familiar in sales & marketing and business strategy, familiar with the
China market operations. He has rich management experience and
strong execution capabilities.

Vincent LIU, aged 62, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of Chong
Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou Tingjin.
Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading Company
TAIT CO. Mr. Liu is particularly familiar with- management in sales and
marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles and beverages in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

PR EF (BE)
Profit (Loss)
Uk % attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

ANR¥T T AR ETFor ARETFT ARMTFor

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

pakid il Instant noodles 29,633,696 28,447,646 1,374,530 2,004,335
Km Beverages 48,335,730 44,801,936 1,378,164 1,837,467
Efb Others 747,994 832,710 (120,382) (39,320)
=X Total 78,717,420 74,082,292 2,632,312 3,802,482
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A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2022 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 10 to 20, the section headed “Prospects” on pages 21 to 22 and
in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” of the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 119 to 131 of this annual
report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2022 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 20 of
this annual report.
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 170.

The directors approved and paid a special interim dividend of RMB44.38
cents per ordinary share, recommend the payment of a final dividend
of RMB23.36 cents per ordinary share, and a special final dividend of
RMB23.36 cents per ordinary share, totalling RMB5,132 million.

The special interim dividend has been paid on 14 December 2022. The
final dividend and special final dividend will be paid on or before 12 July
2023. Shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register of
members on 13 June 2023 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong
dollars.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 174 to 175.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.



M 20084F 3 A20H £ 17 &Y & R & 5l KX
e ARRIREBBEMERETE
([2008 FHEARAERTEI]) - FHIHEMA
HARBET 104F o

B 2008 FHE R EET EIF BRfE M - A
AR E R 2018F 4 A26 H 1T R E
Rl RE L@mm g ERT£1(12018
FRERERTE]) - FEHHEMB AR 10
£|z o

(a) 2008 FHEMRAERTE

NEZE2022F12A318 1F+=1@&
B AQRIELERE 2008 FER
B E TR K BB R -

2008 FF & B #E 5T &I MV IR R TT &
MARAFIT7TENGR BREAR
A1 2008 FIE T 8l 2 ZHERF AT
5l

BIZRA

RHRE
Number of share
options granted

RHBH
Date of grant

2008 F3 A20 H 11,760,000
20 March 2008

2009 F4 A22 B 26,688,000
22 April 2009

2010 F4 A1 H 15,044,000
1 April 2010

2011 F4 A12 H 17,702,000
12 April 2011

2012 %4 A26 H 9,700,000
26 April 2012

2013 ©F5 A27 H 11,492,000
27 May 2013

2014 %4 A17 H 12,718,500
17 April 2014

2015 F6 A5 H 17,054,000
5 June 2015

2016 7 A4 A 10,148,000
4 July 2016

2017 F4 A21 H 11,420,000
21 April 2017

5%

At the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company
held on 20 March 2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the
share option scheme (the “2008 Share Option Scheme”), with a term of

ten years from the date of adoption.

In view of the expiry of the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the shareholders
of the Company adopted the new share option scheme (the “2018
Share Option Scheme”) at the EGM held on 26 April 2018, with a term

of ten years from the date of adoption.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, no share
options were granted by the Company in accordance with the

terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2008 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:

Table A

1T

Exercisable period

2013 43 A21 BE2018 3 A20 H(1)
21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2014 4 A23 BHZE2019 F4 A22 HQ)
23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)

2015 %4 A1 HZE2020 43 A31 HQ)
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)

2016 4 A12 BHE2021 F4 A11 H@)
12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)

2017 %4 B26 HE2022 F4 A25 H(5)
26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)

2018 %5 A27 HZE2023 F5 A26 H(6)
27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)

2019 %4 B17 BE2024 F4 A16 H(7)
17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)

2020 6 A5 HZE2025 F6 A4 H(8)

5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)

2021 %7 B4 HE2026 F7 A3 H(9)

4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)

2022 F4 A21 BZE2027 F4 F20 H(10)
21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)

TEEE
Exercise price
(&)

(HKS)

$9.28

$9.38

$18.57

$19.96

$20.54

$20.16

$22.38

$16.22

$7.54

$10.20

B EER
2022 Annual Report 4 #§

R+ | Directors’ Report [N

145



ll Bl ==S955 | Directors’ Report

AT ZEE 58 22022612 8318 1t The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
+ = {B B 1R #5 2008 F B A% #E 5T B BT % options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2022 pursuant

2 BB S to the Share Option Scheme:
E%B Table B
EREHE
Number of share option
SERTEA
iz
RFREZ RaonE  THURE
RirhmE R20nE ER FRCHEH 12A318 Weighted
Closing price 181H FREL B /%R 284 average
T8  of the shares i Granted Exercised  Cancelled/  Balanceas  dclosing price
#e RTYEH Exerise  onthedate  Balance asat during during lapsed during at31December  immediately M
Name Date of grant price of grant 1 January 2022 the period the period the period 2022 hbefore exercise  Note
B BT BT
HKS$ HKS HKS
HTES
Executive Director
o 2012547268 20,54 19.88 112,000 - - 112,000 - - EAD)
Tseng Chien 26 April 2012 Table A (5)
2013558278 20.16 20.05 140,000 - - - 140,000 — BAB)
27 May 2013 Table A (6)
2014F4F17H 2238 2235 164,000 - - - 164,000 — BAQ)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
201556 A58 16.22 15.92 232,000 — — - 232,000 — EAQ)
5 June 2015 Table A(8)
BEA 01754A218 10.20 10.20 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — EA10)
WeiHong-Ming 21 April 2017 Table A(10)
RER 017547218 1020 1020 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — [EA10)
WeiHong-Chen 21 April 2017 Table A(10)
et
Chief Executive Officer
RER 2014548178 238 235 262,000 — - - 262,000 — EBAD)
Chen Yinjang 17 April 2014 Table A(7)
2015%6 A58 16.22 15.92 380,000 - - - 380,000 — BA@®)
5 June 2015 Table A(8)
201657A4A 7.54 7.54 500,000 - — - 500,000 — BAO9)
4July 2016 Table A (9)
017548218 10.20 10.20 500,000 - — - 500,000 — EA10)
21 April 2017 Table A(10)
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B#B Table B
BEREHE
Number of share option
SRR
g
BFREZ H022E THKHE
Gl 20225 £R FRDHES 12A318 Weighted
Closing price 1818 ERRE Bk Ves: 2t average
fTf¥E  of the shares it Granted Exerdised  Cancelled/  Balanceas  closing price
#e ezl Exercise  onthedate  Balance as at during during lapsed during at31December  immediately fzF
Name Date of grant price of grant 1 January 2022 the period the period the period 2022 before exercise  Note
B B B
HKS HKS HKS
TERR
Substantial Shareholder
RN 201254R 268 20.54 19.88 1,368,000 - - 1,368,000 - — BAjD)
Weilng-Chou* 26 April 2012 Table A (5)
2013%5K27H 20.16 20.05 1,390,000 - - - 1,390,000 — EA®)
27 May 2013 Table A (6)
2014F4R178 2238 22.35 1,486,000 - - - 1,486,000 - A7)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
201556858 16.22 15.92 1,726,000 - - - 1,726,000 — BA®)
5 June 2015 Table A(8)
EftEE 2012547268 2054 19.88 4,816,000 - - 4,816,000 - — BA®)
Other employees 26 April 2012 Table A(5)
in aggregate 2013%5F27H 20.16 20.05 6,236,000 - - 912,000 5,324,000 - A(6)
27 May 2013 Table A (6)
201454 R178 238 22.35 7,049,000 - - 1,118,000 5,931,000 — BAD)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
2015%6A50 16.22 15.92 11,196,000 - 458,000 1,528,000 9,210,000 1711 BA®)
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
201657 A4A 754 754 1,706,000 - 564,000 - 1,142,000 14.43 A(9)
4 July 2016 Table A (9)
2017%4A218 10.20 10.20 6,950,000 - 2,170,000 - 4,780,000 1417 BA(10)
21 April 2017 Table A(10)
st
Total 48,213,000 — 3,192,000 9,854,000 35,167,000
EEEER 147
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(b)

BE2022F12A31HILE+Z@A
M AEBEBEIRHRETE
3,192,000 /42 - IIHEFH1T(EE
/10.5987T - 1718 B 2 AT hniE ¥
BT EAR14.648TT - FHEREH
RS B T SRR MIRE30 ©

# BEMNAARBINAMERTSEEREM
AITES - EMEETENHNT
= A Z W E(EFE D B A Profit
Surplus Holdings Limited A Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited 25%
# % ° Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited MEFBIEFH(FE 5 )E
A% B PR A F182.165% By %5 + 1
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited
MEFERFIFEE)ERER
AF17.835% Kt o JRFT (=
EBIERARAREEFEARR
1,882,927,866 x5 °

2018 B MR Bl (b)
201 8FHE AR AEET BIRE KT & LR
AIEE17EREX - BRI AREI20184F
BT 8 2 R InTA
EEXe

REHBE
LB H Number of share
Date of grant options granted
20184 A27H 2,478,000
27 April 2018
2018F 4 H27H 5,626,000
27 April 2018

148 EaEZRRERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2022,
3,192,000 options had been exercised under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$10.59
and the weighted average market closing price before the date of
exercise was HK$14.64. For details, please refer to note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited is indirectly interested in 82.165% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

2018 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2018 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table C
1T1EHA TEE
Exercisable period Exercise price
(Bx)
(HK$)
2021 F4 A30BZE2028F 4 A26H (1a) $16.18
30 April 2021 to 26 April 2028 (1a)
2021F 4 A30HE2024%F 4 A26 H(1b) $16.18

30 April 2021 to 26 April 2024 (1b)
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ATHEHRTEE2022F12H31H The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
IF+ = A BRIE201 8 BT M AT 2 options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2022
B2 B ES pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Scheme:
BZD Table D
EREZA
Number of share option
RIETREN
RFAH RnE ronE  ETHRHE
ZRBEHE 1518 FREE/ 128318 Weighted
Closing b M 28t average
price of Balance EREH EREAE Cancelled/ Balance  closing price
g4 the shares asat Granted Exercised [apsed asat  immediately
1 R¥RH Exercise on the 1 January during during during  31December before i
Name Date of grant price  date of grant 2022 the period the period the period 2022 exercise  Note
AR BT BT
HKS HKS HKS
ez
Executive Director
AR% 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - B
Wei Hong-Ming 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
018547278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
REX 2018548278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - B
Wei Hong-Chen 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
018547278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
ThEE
Chief Executive Officer
ks 018547278 16.18 15.02 144,000 - - - 144,000 - B((1)
Chen Yinjang 27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
IZRR
Substantial Shareholder
REN 018547278 16.18 15.02 470,000 - - - 470,000 - B
Wei Ing-Chou* 27 April 2018 Table C(1b)
EthEEET 018547278 16.18 15.02 1,708,000 - - - 1,708,000 - B
Other employees 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
in aggregate 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 2,975,000 - - - 2,975,000 - B
27 hpril 2018 Table C (10)
it 6,263,000 - - - 6,263,000 -

Total
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HZE2022%12A8318 1+ 1@ A &7
A )R BTE2018F AR 8T T
R BB AR MR T TIE o

# BENAXRANAESTE LR
MAMITEER - tBEMEFETH
Xa A ZmEEEIAIFER
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited }
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited
25% #Ez © Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited @B B IEF (=5 ) %
B% B PR R A182.165% B #E 25+ M
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, no share
options were exercised under the terms of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited is indirectly interested in 82.165% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

MERaEN(HESS)ERER
NE17.835% W o XS
EIERARAREEFAARAR
1,882,927,866 RER% (7 °

REBZRITERZFBHREREETHR
RMIFE32 ©

AERAMBEAREERAYPLZAR
REERITHAHR

HITEF
REBELE
HFHE—RELE
mRERTE
MERRSELE

BEBELE
it

BUIBTTEE
RIEEFEE
FRELE
REREE
TTIB B
BRIEE AL

EEEMERARBFILERMARREE
MESTAIR—FRRLEZRBEEL -
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Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming
Mr. Junichiro Ida
Mr. Koji Shinohara
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen
Mr. Yuko Takahashi
Ms. Tseng Chien

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Yinjang

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment

of compensation.
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BEENERERABZEAAERSENAE
WE137EEFE 1428 -

2022912 A31 8 EFERITRAER
AAmIRERABEZIBE(EEREFLFRAE
B[ 5 REIE MR ) B+ 1EB) 2 ik
7 MERDRESP 2R IARE ()
BEFFRAERIETABELREN
DEMERRAREBRERIFABRA
AI([EE R FT D (BRERIEZ S G0 E 1Ek
WRBER  BEEIAR) (b)) IRIEFE
% R HAE G015 352 1R 48 T 50 8- 10 52 16k FT
iz Bl (O RIBE EM AR ES#ST
BER G 2 BESFRIEME AR T REAZ
Fran T -

(a)-1 RROREEROHRR

HE Name

55 Directors
BARE Wei Hong-Ming
R K Wei Hong-Chen
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The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 137 to 142.

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RGEAR IR 2
Number of Shares Bok
BARER EEER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
5,000,000 — 0.09%
5,000,000 — 0.09%
MR
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(a)-2 RELFBRERNRR (MEE2) (a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)
IR
BaLE
S RERME ik ¢E| Percentage
Capacity and Number of of the issued
®H Name nature of interest shares share capital
55 Directors
BR%E Wei Hong-Ming ERFEAA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner
AR K Wei Hong-Chen EmEEA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner
B Tseng Chien EmlEEA 536,000 0.01%

Beneficial owner

TEHER Chief Executive Officer

ReR R Chen Yinjang EmlEEA 1,786,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

M5E Note:

1. 3% %1,882,927,866 D ATEF(H = 1. These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name

S)ERBRARTEN DB RUES of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin"). Ting Hsin is

BEL BIANEAR(MEDEEE beneficially owned as to approximately 51.925% by Ho Te Investments

BH#51.925% © IR BRAR([E Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.240% by Rich Cheer Holdings

43 1)¥5HE430.240% - Rich Gold Capital Limited (“Rich Cheer”), and as to approximately 17.835% by Rich Gold

Inc. ([Rich Gold])#5%8 17.835% - f{E K& Capital Inc. (“Rich Gold"). Ho Te and Rich Cheer are owned as to 100%

4= TR Profit Surplus Holdings Limited by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus”). Profit Surplus is the

(TProfit Surplus]) 100% # & - Profit trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four discretionary trusts in

SurpIUSE*ﬂE fEFEMRFEA - At equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary objects of the four trusts

BAEFREAOENEETIRES LI are as follows:

A o PmMERBEFEAKZARNIER

mALT

-  BRESZALMER—ERBEF —  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
oI AVNE EZE’]’F%%%M%%?E%%% with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei Ing-Chou as discretionary objects;

MM BEIEEEA

-  MERALMER—EARERETN —  Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with Lin
LA - IS EFE AR 2 3R Li-Mien and Wei Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;
ERXARBEXEA

- BHAFSBALMER—ERBEF —  Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
BIRKIZA - IS EFELAZRRT 548 with Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien and Wei Yin-Chun as discretionary objects;
RBEFTABEZEA R and
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RichGoldlHTE R E A =R B R A A
(Tingho Capital Holding Co., Limited) 2%
HAE - MIERERER AR A & 8 Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited ([ Profit Surplus
3DFTFEE - Profit Surplus 3R—EEAE
FEREEEA (L fEFEFR B ERE
SRR E F‘ %‘ﬁ o ATt E BB EFE
B AR 20 A B 51 8 AR 1557
BELEZE -

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited £ il fTz
BERIEEFEZEEA °

2. ZRFEJN{E AR 13,942,000 BRAE 5 R A
#E2E - W45 H 5,072,000 10 BERLHE (D BIEE
HIGNEE 147 B BIRB R 149 B BKD) »
BRGEEATEMNE BINE AR EE
NI 2 IR 1D RABREIR (D R i e o

PRAEFTHEEE SN - BE2022F 12 A31
AIEHRNEREESERTEANESEIES
FEB 2B FRRRN T N\me FrEE
AEBARRAZROIES MESHE
L HER o 1% 5 P BRA IR AT 50 (AR L S A
Fl o RARSHEAFMME AT BEBEE]
TR - BUEEE R MM EMEA
E RS ERE -

PR 7R ER P4 58 & Ah - 7R 2022F 12 A31

H #EEERITHAHNARRISEM
wilw%ﬁ E5 REIE GRS T RE0)
ZEMES R 2 #A () RIEFES L
ERFIBE+TABELRBE \SBAEERA
ARBRA(BEREZSGOE ElE
REBHB ZERIAR) » (b)) RIBEZFS
R ERE GBI56 352 647 7E re SR TE 2z M6 Pt
ZERM () BEBELTARESEST
BER G 2 RESFRIZBANE AR R
P ©
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—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with
Wei Tu Miao and Wei Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.

Rich Gold is wholly owned by Tingho Capital Holding Co., Ltd., which
is owned by Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus 3"). Profit
Surplus 3 is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four
discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary
objects of the four trusts have similar structures to those listed above.

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of each of the discretionary
trusts mentioned above.

2. Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,942,000 shares and
holds 5,072,000 share options (details shown as Table B and Table D on
page 147 and 149 respectively) under the share option schemes of the
Company. Wei Chang Lu-Yun, being the spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also
deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares held by
Wei Ing-Chou.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine months ended 31
December 2022 were there rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

B EER
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MARAIESHATHAI A - 712022
F12A318 BREBEBHFRBEGHNE
336 EAETHEEMNELRMATREE (AR R
BEME) TERREREMATEAEERR
AR RABBERGOAERSORB T ¢

]

Name of shareholder

FERERER

Interest of Substantial Shareholders
TEF (R M)A

Ting Hsin (see Note 1)

M AR (R 1)4

Ho Te Investments Limited (see Note 1)4
LlERREBRRAR(ZHT )4

Rich Cheer Holdings Limited (see Note 1)4
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (2 47z 7)4
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (see Note 7)4
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (2477 1)4
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (see Note 1)4
ERERERERAR(ZHZ1)4

Tingho Capital Holding Co., Limited (see Notes 14
Rich Gold Capital Inc. (£ 477 1)4

Rich Gold Capital Inc. (see Note 7)4

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limted (2 /3% 1)4
Lion Trust (Singapore) Limted (see Note 1)4
ZHRmRA gt

Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

A IR R2ERANFRE1S2EEE 1538
EEE(OE=3-)

B EatESN - 7202212 A318 R
(BHRBEKRN)EIBIKEATHEHE
AR EE - BEE M A THA AR AR
(B Y=
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So far as was known to any Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

BB T
B
ZBED%
% of the
ELn) BERNEE issued share
Capacity Number of shares held capital
BREBA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Beneficial owner
RENFER 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
VNGl 3 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BRUERXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BREFEXTA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Trustee of a unit trusts
VNGl 3 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
R NaEs 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BEELIXEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Trustee of discretionary trusts
ERBEAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42

Beneficial owner
A Note 1 and 2 are set out on pages 152 to 153

Note: (L): Long Position

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2022.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB10.143
million.

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.
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Tingzheng Supply Agreement

On 21 November 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Tingzheng Supply Agreement”) with Tingzheng (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Tingzheng”), pursuant to which, Tingzheng and its
subsidiaries agreed to supply flexible plastic packaging materials and
plastic products to the Group for a term of three financial years from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Tingzheng is beneficially owned
by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman
of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei
Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. The Tingzheng
Supply Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 16 January 2020. Details of this agreement may be found in the
Company’s announcements and circular dated 21 November 2019, 16
December 2019, 23 December 2019 and 16 January 2020, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Tingzheng
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,069.013 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Fung Supply Agreement

On 16 December 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Fung Supply Agreement”) with Tianjin Ting Fung Starch
Development Co., Ltd. (“Ting Fung”), pursuant to which, Ting Fung
agreed to supply modified potato starch, modified cassava starch
and seasoning flavour products to the Group for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Ting Fung
is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei
Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the
Company. Details of this agreement may be found in the Company'’s
announcement dated 16 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Ting Fung
amounted to RMB241.367 million. Such purchases have been disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements of the Company and were
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules.
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Ting Chuan Agreement

On 22 October 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Chuan Agreement”) with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) in relation to the supply of products of
the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for Ting Chuan and its
subsidiaries to provide sales promotion services to the Group for a term
of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023.
Ting Chuan operates the “Family Mart” convenient stores in the PRC
and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and held approximately 33.48% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the Ting Chuan
Agreement. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company'’s announcement dated 22 October 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the transactions with Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB115.833 million. Such
transactions have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Weizhen Supply Agreement

On 27 November 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Weizhen Supply Agreement”) with Weizhen Investment Limited
(“Weizhen Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen
and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from
Weizhen Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Weizhen Investment
is owned as to 75% by Great System Holdings (Private) Limited (" Great
System”), a company which is beneficially owned by family members
and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an
Executive Director of the Company, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 27
November 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB387.608 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Marine Vision Supply Agreement

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Marine Vision Supply Agreement”) with Marine Vision Investment
Inc. (“Marine Vision"”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of carton
box products from Marine Vision and its subsidiaries for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Marine
Vision is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director
of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of
the Company. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company's announcement dated 18 October 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Marine
Vision and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,447.480 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Nature Investment Supply Agreement

On 25 September 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Nature Investment Supply Agreement”) with Nature Investment
Group Ltd. (“Nature Investment”) in relation to the Group's purchase
of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Nature Investment is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong- Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 September 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB229.275 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Success Forever Supply Agreement

On 31 December 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Success Forever Investments Supply Agreement”) with Success
Forever Investments Group Ltd. (“Success Forever”) in relation to the
Group’s purchase of plastic products from Success Forever and its
subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. Success Forever is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 31
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Success
Forever and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,009.013 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Tong Logistics Services

On 22 June 2020, the Company entered into a logistics services
agreement (the “Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement”) with Ting
Tong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Tong”) in relation to the
Group's purchase of logistics services from Ting Tong and its subsidiaries
for a term from the day of the Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement
to 31 December 2022. On 30 September 2021, based on the rational
expectation that the transactions would exceed the original annual
caps, the Company entered into a supplement agreement with Ting
Tong to revise the annual caps for fiscal year 2021 and 2022 under
the Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement. Ting Tong is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transaction above may be found in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 June 2020 and 30 September 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from Ting Tong
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,876.252 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better which are no less
favourable to the Group than those available to/from independent
third parties; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions have nothing that would cause them to believe
that the transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(©)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the respective annual cap as set by the Company.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB BEBE I18HPIRES 4212
Tel |35 : (+852) 2909 5555

Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 170 to 337, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,259 million at 31 December 2022. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2022 was RMB10,969 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgement and estimation involved in the
impairment review and test of machinery and equipment including the
consideration of the indicators of impairment and the determination of
the key assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(p), 5(ii) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures on sample basis where appropriate in relation

to management’s impairment assessment of property, plant and

equipment included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgements applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) and equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s FVPL and Designated FVOCI
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are RMB254 million and
RMB159 million respectively at 31 December 2022.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines
the fair value of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI with reference to the
valuations performed by the investment manager or trust administrator
of these investments by applying valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques, in particular those that used significant inputs that are not
supported by observable market data and are based on assumptions
that are not supported by prices from observable current market
transactions. The sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions used in the valuations may have significant impact on the
valuation of these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of FVPL and Designated FVOCI classified as
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as a key audit matter because of their
significance to the consolidated financial statements and the judgement
and estimation involved in determination of the fair value of these FVPL
and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation to
the valuation of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI included:

a)  Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment
agreements of the financial assets;

b)  Obtaining and understanding of the Group's valuation process;

)  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the investment managers or trust
administrators;

d)  Discussing with the investment managers or fund administrators
and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions, key inputs
and underlying data used; and

e)  Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2022 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: PO5132
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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
it ARETF T AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue 6 78,717,420 74,082,292
HER AR Cost of sales (55,818,003) (51,571,867)
EF Gross profit 22,899,417 22,510,425
E bz Other revenue 7 650,412 783,501
E b A Other net income 8 874,820 1,024,195
P2k =] %N Distribution costs (16,809,780) (15,708,282)
THER Administrative expenses (2,396,714) (2,469,530)
B & A Other operating expenses (750,648) (229,996)
B %58 A Finance costs 9 (446,021) (223,494)
BB ENEE N NFEE Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 20, 21 127,318 121,824
BR B AT R Profit before taxation 9 4,148,804 5,808,643
AL Taxation 11 (1,072,970) (1,424,976)
AEERF Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
FEAERER Profit attributable to:
PiN/NET 3 Owners of the Company 2,632,312 3,802,482
DR RE LR Non-controlling interests 443,522 581,185
R EE A Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
BRER Earnings per share 13
HAR Basic AR#46.73% AR#E67 575
BE Diluted AR#46.710 AR67.515
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
it ARET T ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
R E i F Profit for the year 3,075,834 4,383,667
Ha2mds= (F8) - Other comprehensive income (loss) :
TEELEEERMIEL  Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
ARERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations 33 798 (5,652)
FEERAAEESBRRIEEAM Fair value changes in equity instruments
PHENEREENEZTE  designated as at fair value through
DABECE other comprehensive income 7,874 —
8,672 (5,652)
ARG RIEZ A ESIEE Items that are or may be reclassified
Ba kP RIEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
PEH =% Exchange differences on consolidation (1,640,813) 292,959
RemsEh Cash flow hedges (1,011) —
(1,641,824) 292,959
AEEHMEE(EE)WE  Other comprehensive (loss) income
for the year (1,633,152) 287,307
AEE2HKRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 1,442,682 4,670,974
B2k SEasE Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NN 323 Owners of the Company 1,124,397 4,070,213
DERIR R MR Non-controlling interests 318,285 600,761
1,442,682 4,670,974
AN IE AR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
202212 A31H At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
"B FE Investment properties 14 1,832,200 1,807,100
W - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 15 21,259,417 21,510,028
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,625,714 3,691,741
mEE Intangible assets 17 162,480 155,970
BES Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
RN ey Interest in an associate 20 93,316 94,847
HE N AR Interest in joint ventures 21 614,316 625,163
BAREBEYIRRE Financial assets at fair value through
BRERENSREE profit or loss 22 254,543 626,901
BERAAEMESIRKLE  Equity instruments designated as at
HEme2mEla=EREED fair value through other
T A comprehensive income 22 158,518 137,317
BEEFIEEE Deferred tax assets 34 481,923 518,605
EHEFHEFER Long-term time deposits 26 5,841,900 5,376,900
34,422,237 34,642,482
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 5,254,592 4,671,477
FEM BRFR Trade receivables 24 1,808,281 2,043,744
A Ui Bl % T8 Tax recoverable 20,354 14,729
FEMFRIB R A EUGRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,897,389 2,352,553
FEHEITEFERZBVEAERS  Current portion of long-term time deposit 26 1,710,000 725,000
IR TER Pledged bank deposits 26 12,531 20,746
IRITEHRNMIARS Bank balances and cash 26 12,323,922 15,838,492
24,027,069 25,666,741
HEE Total assets 58,449,306 60,309,223
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A R 4 Capital and reserves
AT Issued capital 27 235,741 235,633
f& =8 Share premium 28 825,364 786,965
(] Reserves 29 12,310,421 17,637,378
AARRREMRER Total capital and reserves attributable
B to owners of the Company 13,371,526 18,659,976
DERRER Non-controlling interests 19 3,443,949 3,748,524
RERERBE Total equity 16,815,475 22,408,500
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M2022% 12 A31H At 31 December 2022

2022 2021
HtaF AR¥TFTT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FREEE Non-current liabilities
RABERE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 8,415,871 6,350,369
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 145,448 195,519
SIRMNEMT Employee benefit obligations 33 69,026 79,920
RIERIARE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,298,948 1,449,910
9,929,293 8,075,718
REEE Current liabilities
BRRAREBETIRIE Financial liabilities at fair value through
BRERENSRAE profit or loss 39 — 9,959
FERTBR IR Trade payables 35 9,489,908 9,046,518
Hi M B R B UWIRESE  Other payables and deposits received 36 9,783,497 9,593,331
EEBE ZRVEER S Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 9,203,139 7,311,444
EMREasE Other current liabilities 39 — 40,000
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 155,665 159,520
TTESmIA Derivative financial instruments 31 92,729 —
B IERRIE Advance payments from customers 40 2,571,730 3,342,990
I8 Taxation 407,870 321,243
31,704,538 29,825,005
waE Total liabilities 41,633,831 37,900,723
BRERREEHETHE Total equity and liabilities 58,449,306 60,309,223
BREBEE Net current liabilities (7.677,469) (4,158,264)
HEERARBAR Total assets less current liabilities 26,744,768 30,484,218

FI170E337E AV ERREAES
E@MN2023F3A27TAMERERESE
THUTALTRREE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 170 to 337 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2023 and signed on its behalf by

H# M4 —BB Junichiro Ida
FZ Director

BiE % WEI Hong-Ming
EZ Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

RAREER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RERER
88 DURRER RE
BiRA RIVEE Tota Non- fERsLE
Isued Share & capital and controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Teserves interests equity

ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR ARBTR ARETR
RVB'000 RVB'000 RB'000 RB'000 RVB000 RVB000

RNE1F1R At 1 January 2021 235422 730,075 20147227 N112,724 3,626,659 24,739,383
KEEEH Profit for the year - - 380 3802482 581,185 4,383,667
Hp2EHE(5SR) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERMEEZERE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - 4.260) 4.260) (139) (5652)
EXZE Exchange differences on consolidation - - 17,991 71,991 20,968 292,959
A2 mhsies Total other comprehensive income - - 267731 267731 19,576 287307
REERANEAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4070213 407013 600,761 4670974
BALNRRRZRE Transactions with owners of the Company:
REGHT Contributions and distrbution
EREERATN A Equity settled share-based transactions - - 5,075 5,075 - 5,075
REERET IR R0 Shares issued under share option scheme M 56,890 (13,693) 13,408 - 13408
BHEREE2000K8R 2020 final and specialfina dividend approved and paid
BHRERE - = (H062263)  (4062263) (463903 (4,526,166)
BHERIEE 2021 5RIREHRE 2021 special interim dividend approved and paid - — (2500000 (2,500,000) — (2,500,000
N1 56,890 (6,570,881) (6,513,780) (463,903) (6,977,683)
HEERY Changes in ownershyp interests
EEHYBIHEOHELT  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiry
FRERY without change in control - - 9,181) 9,181) (14993) (24,174)
HANARRZRA4EE Total transactions with owners of the Company 211 56,890 (6,580062)  (6,522,91) (47889 (7,001857)
RO1ENE3NA At 31 December 2021 235,633 786,965 17637378 18,659,976 3,748 524 22,408,500
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HZE2022F 12 A31 AIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

KaARRRR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BxRs
88 HUkRER B&
B hiraE Total Non- BRAE
Issued Share i cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves eserves interests equity

ABRTE  ARETZ  ARETT  ARRFL ARETZ AERTX
RMBUS0  RMBYR0  RMBOO)  RMBUN  RMBUR  RMBYOD

RANE1A1A At 1 January 2022 235,633 786,965 17,637,378 18,659,976 3,748,524 22,408,500
KEREH Profit for the year - - 2632312 2632312 w350 3,075,834
Hp2ahs(FB) Other comprehensive income (loss)
REnsHn Cash flow hedges - - (147) (747) (264) (1,01)
RERFIETZEREW#33)  Remeasurement of defined henefit obligations (ote 33/ - - 836 836 (39) 79

BERLABEFERELL Fairvalue changes in equity insruments designated
2ENAERENERTA as at far value through other comprehensive income

MEEEY - - 1874 1874 - 1874
EXEE Bichange differences on consolidation - - (1515878)  (1.515878) (124935  (1,640813)
Efp2EEEAT Total other comprehensive loss - — (1507915 (1,507,915) (15381 (163315)
REERENEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,124,397 1,124,397 318,285 1,442,682
BANIRRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEFT Contributons and distribution
EREERNTN IR Equity settled share-based transactions - - 522 522 - 522
REERE TR Shares issued under share option scheme ote 27)
(Wiz27) 108 38,399 (9.3%3) 29,154 - 29,154
BERIRE 2021 REIR 2021 final and specialfinal dividend approved and
FRIRERE 1) paid (note 12) - - sy (5y) (62,860)  (4565.383)
BHERIEE 2002551 58RE 2022 special interim dividend approved and
(W) paid (note 72) - - (2,500,000) (2,500,000) - (2,500,000)
HRNAREZRHAE Total transactions with owners of the Company 108 38,399 (6451350)  (6:412,847) (622,860) (7,035,707
R02E12R318 At 31 December 2022 235,74 825,364 12,310,421 13,371,526 3,443,949 16,815,475
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#HZ2022F 12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
et AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REXKFBES Cash generated from operations 37 6,022,166 7,386,100
EAFBEPEMSEE The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") enterprise income tax paid (1,106,248) (1,751,040)
EENE Interest paid (440,605) (216,981)
ReETHMERESFHE Net cash from operating activities 4,475,313 5,418,079
REER INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2T B Interest received 488,936 783,501
e R HTFE Increase in long-term time deposits, net 26 (1,450,000) (3,666,900)
BWAEE N F T Dividend received from joint ventures 21 121,957 91,681
B U — e B o 7] B A Dividend received from an associate 20 17,739 20,015
BUUE A EEYIERREIE  Dividend received from financial assets
HERRENSMEEK at fair value through profit or loss and
BEEAABEYIER equity instruments designed as at
FEEMEEUSEERIEIES  fair value through other comprehensive
HEZE T ERCH income 8 1,413 2,522
HEZAAEBEIER Proceeds from disposal of financial
T8 AR BR 12 assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 441,953 963,895
BARAABEIERR Purchase of financial assets at
FIEFERENSEEE  fair value through profit or loss 22 (6,992) (103,187)
BABLEE Purchase of intangible assets 17 — (17,086)
BBAME - s B Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,123,833) (2,966,094)
BAFERAEEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (115,111) (14,482)
HEYE  WENREN  Proceeds from sale of property, plant
FERAEEEZE and equipment and right-of-use assets 216,920 195,778
EmnEadEomsd Decrease in other current liabilities 39 (40,000) —
Uk B8 — FEI BT B A B Net cash inflow on
FrigiRem A F5 acquisition of a subsidiary — 8,829
HEWB ARG Net cash inflow on disposal
BEeMAFHA of subsidiaries 41 116,890 250,989
ENERZ FEE)2TE Net movement of loan receivables 25(a) (50,000) 407,000
REZTBHFIARSFHE Net cash used in investing activities (3,380,128) (4,043,539)
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#HZE 2022512 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Mat ARMTFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BMEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERNARRREZRE Dividends paid to owners of
the Company (6,452,482) (6,562,263)
BN LHBREEZR ZE  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests 37(a) (623,618) (463,040)
RIR R IR E Issue of shares under share
BT 2D option scheme 27 29,154 43,408
YNHEAE Payments of lease liabilities 37(@a) (213,967) (190,095)
HIZIRITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(@a) 13,434,412 3,160,010
EERITREMER Repayments of bank and
other borrowings 37(a) (14,127,767) (4,150,754)
HGHEE 228 H%  Net movement of other
short-term borrowings 37(a) 3,336,763 1,251,107
S D SR R = Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests — (24,174)
RMETBHAREEE Net cash used in financing activities (4,617,505) (6,935,801)
REeERASEEYN Net decrease in cash and
R cash equivalents (3,522,320) (5,561,261)
FRZEERRESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 15,859,238 21,431,153
ExgeowE Effect on exchange rate changes (465) (10,654)
FRZESRRESZEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year 26 12,336,453 15,859,238
BRAREIER
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.
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These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2021 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB7,677,469,000 at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(a) wmHEE (a) Basis of measurement
RER A BERRFAREE The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
AESERE  RIZAALEEY consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for

RZRBERME  BRARE
BIRLRERGEREENSH
BE WHERALEBEIER
FHME2HENREREEOER
TR -BRnEEIREER
sREETRABNRITESR
B FREN T Z &K

<

# H B

investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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(b) HEEEE) (b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)
HHEZ Changes in ownership interests
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Changes in the Group'’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date, amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs”). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When an existing property becomes an investment property,
any difference at the date of change in use between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation in
accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.
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)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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(9)

(h)

Intangible asset (Continued)
Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

7)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
term time deposits and trade and other receivables.
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A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments
in unlisted equity securities as Designated FVOCI
because the Group intends to hold these equity
securities for long term for strategic purposes. The
details of the Group's financial assets at Designated
FVOCI have been set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

4)  Financial assets at FVPL (continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds and listed equity securities as further detailed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings, other
current liabilities and derivative financial instruments. All
financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL,
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

(i)  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

(i) they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

(i) they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged (see note 3(k) to consolidated
financial statements).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

() past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).
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S HEERAEMBEL.ZHE Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

(%)

EXNTERE Definition of default

RNEBRABULNTERANLEZE The Group considers the following as constituting an event

REBEEBERNNENEH of default for internal credit risk management purposes

BRELEHRBER  MRFTEMU as historical experience indicates that the Group may not

TEAEZEENeRIEAE K& receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the

ek EE A RO KREEN financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

EREHE -

(i) NEBESISRAEINERRRIE (i)  information developed internally or obtained from
BHEEBEREB AT external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
eI MHEERA 8 pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
BAER(TEBEAE taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
FAENEMERRD) 5k or

(il REHFTERMBEL - (i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

TE Ll KREBERE - Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that

EemEEB BS990 K default has occurred when a financial asset is more than

BEEHABRRYE  BRIEAEER 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and

BEAEARZHENEEERT supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

BRENIZET BEE - default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

* actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

() it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iiiy  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,
related parties and certain other receivables are determined
to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Group enters into and designates certain foreign
currency forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign currency-denominated
borrowings. The Group’s hedging objective is to hedge
the foreign currency exposure to the cash flows variability
arising from the principal repayment of the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings whilst the Group’s overall impact
on exchange difference could be maintained at a reasonably
low level. The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts
to manage the foreign currency risks until the repayment
date of the foreign currency-denominated borrowings.
The Group hedges to the extent that the foreign currency
exposure arising from the Renminbi ("RMB") denominated
borrowings made by certain group entities of which the
functional currency is United States Dollar (“US$"”). Under
the Group's cash flow hedge arrangement, the terms of the
hedging instrument basically match with the terms of the
hedged items, the Group expects the value of the hedging
instruments to move in the opposite direction as compared
to the value of the hedged items, and thereby ensures
hedge effectiveness. Therefore, the Group applies a hedging
ratio of 1:1. The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in
these hedging relationships principally arises from any late
designation of the hedging instrument.

The Group documents at the inception of the hedge the
intended relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements.
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(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)
Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within
equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other net
income/(expenses).

When foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge
foreign currency borrowings, the Group designates only the
change in the fair value of the forward contracts related to
the spot component as the hedging instruments. Forward
element and foreign currency basis spread are separated
and excluded from the designated hedging instruments
and the Group treats these excluded elements as costs of
hedging. The fair value changes of these excluded elements
that relates to the hedged item is recognised in the cash
flow hedge reserve within equity. These excluded elements
at the date of designation (to the extent that it relates to
the hedged item) are amortised on a systematic and rational
basis to profit or loss over the period.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the
years when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The
movement in spot rate is recycled from equity to profit or
loss to offset the foreign exchange gain or loss arising from
translation of the hedged foreign currency borrowings. Such
reclassification from equity will offset the effect on profit or
loss of the corresponding hedged item to achieve the overall
hedging result.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that
remains in equity at that time remains recognised in equity
and is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss. When the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and
deferred costs for hedging that were reported in equity are
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

B EER
2022 Annual Report 4 #§

205



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

0

(m)

ReEED

BEERRERERTE B
SEYRER BN B ERK
BHRE - MERRTE (W
B) - EREABERER A
TTENEE -  HEEEZIPRA
BRAR

W zs 2 R
WA
BEMENESWARYE D

R HEE GRRAEREE
R MEESHESKRARIR
REHELRER -

"E BB EHEERE 158
HIE =B KA

M S RIS R 1 E
AEBERHOEmBIRBH M

BT B E R R E
HE -

a8k 71| B 40 3 75

EEOMME  NEEgFG
HEFPIUMNAKNMAENE
m IR - WHEBSREGEE
BREEFPRNAZERBENE

9

(a) AT Bl & dn S AR 75 (3K
—EFRmRB) ¢ X

(b) —ZEHAERIAE SR
% EEEmE k%A
Rl ¥ EAEARERZP
BREHER -

206 EEEZERERDRE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

U]

(m)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages, etc.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs,
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

() the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles, beverages, etc., are recognised at
a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until such
time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the
performance obligation.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
(Continued)

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payments from customer until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payments
from customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is US$ and majority of its subsidiaries have RMB as their
functional currency. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.
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(n) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

(©)  All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(n)

(o)

(p)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(e)  On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest in
an associate and interest in joint ventures may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).



(p)

(a)

(r)

=
)

HittEEWRE  T2BHE(E)

WAREGFRAEEXR S
EABAZ A E B ENE
REE: MZBEEXREE
EEUREEAREEER
W Bl E1E - IR E B 18 K B B A

& R EREBRRED
AIZBEEXREELEN 2
FREEREMESHGE ZA
WEEE - HEEngzREE
NGB LA F E I B E
BREMEE ZREE- - G/E
JE&5 18 T8 (o] BRF 315 B R A 48 2 R R
R AR o

BEAA

Wi REXEESREREE
(B2 -—RERKMEREES
HEREMAghECEEIZE
BEEREBERAE  EMREE
fEREZERERERER 19
EEAEAAE R T EEXA
Z—&bn o BUFEEANE L
EERERERBER - %
EREXRAKEEFELERC -
PR EME B ARG B3 E
HRZEM °

B HEE

B#B B AEEERE
R E RS MERER M
P E BRI ERFIU AU SRR -

BHIEERRMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements I B

HZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(p)

(a)

()

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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(s)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.
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HEE) (s) Leases (Continued)

ERETN (B) As lessee (Continued)

TE@EABIRD 2 NEBRE Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a

NRBHEE AP EESLHNRNE separate component are considered to be part of the total

SEBIE S 2 BB — B consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

7 e components of the contract.

REBNBEEFRG A EBAERE The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease

AREEREEARE - liability at the commencement date of the lease.

FREEEYSIEKANTE - The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

N2k comprises

(@ HEBGBEZURFER (@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
5 liability:

(b) MFBAESRIEL 2 (b) any lease payments made at or before the
FAHENFORERBE R commencement date, less any lease incentives
HEES received;

() AEBBDELEZEMVIA () anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
BEERAN R

(d) AEE/FEHILBERIEE (d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
BE - BB EME S5 in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
HABEEEEHEIKR restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
RAGEFT R E 2 AR s the underlying asset to the condition required by the
Ed st A(GIES terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
ATy RELEFEME are incurred to produce inventories.

H) e
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(s)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years

Land use right in respect of Over the leasehold
leasehold land period

Machinery and other equipment 1 year to 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of

the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced

to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement

of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(@)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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(s)

®

Leases (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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®

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("”vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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(v)

Taxation

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to item recognised in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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(v)

(w)

Taxation (Continued)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group and parent of the Group.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).



LA ITEHRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements IV B
HZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(w) BEBEBAL(E) (w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) (%)

(vii) B (a)(i) AT s Bl A £
HEBREARE
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(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the

jjji}%m ERE (% key management personnel of the entity (or of a
L ORSYNSIDE - parent of the entity).
EIREKE -
(vii) Z BB HEMB (viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
SEZEMKER it is a part, provides key management personnel
—(EAEKE D - R services to the Group or to the parent of the
HEAREEABR Group.
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IE?EM@W?EE@EL RBETRS
B TEHATIRE @2 ATk
REZANTHENRERBEL R
¥

(a) BEBEATZFEZREE
RIE1E
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BEFL R

(0 BBALTHZBALZE
BREEHENKES

BEREBMALHNERT BEQ
EEZECEA A NI
A AERRBEEZAERT

ZHEB AT -

members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(¢)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

(x) ZH|E (x) Segment reporting
BB ZRETANBATEL Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
BRREEIREANAIRE 2 with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
FR—B e RRRIBENEE decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
TR FFZ 2B o S RIBAOT are responsible for allocating resources and assessing

BEFEDWEL AT RERT
MTBLERERE -

performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Disclosure of
Accounting Policies !
Definition of
Accounting Estimates!"
Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction!”
Insurance Contracts "

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information !

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current/

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants®

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture

m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

Bl The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group’s financial
information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 16: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements for proceeds
received by any entity from selling items produced while testing
an item of property, plant or equipment before it is used for its
intended purpose. An entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss and
measures the cost of those items applying the measurement
requirements of HKAS 2.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract).

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its requirement
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS 37. The
exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of
updating the reference.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle

HKFRS 9: Fees in the ”
Financial Liabilities

10 per cent” Test for Derecognition of

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of performing
the “10 per cent test” for derecognition of financial liabilities —
in determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements. As currently drafted,
Example 13 is not clear as to why such payments are not a lease
incentive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements

are made by the management in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

affects future periods.

0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s certain investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on these
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on land
appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value of
these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases. Any change in the judgement may
affect the measurement of the lease liabilities and the right-
of-use assets.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.
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(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 3 assets or liabilities have
been agreed with the management of the Company. The
management determined whether valuation techniques and
assumptions applied are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Group. The estimation of fair value of level 3 assets
included some assumptions not supported by observable
market prices or rates. Change in assumption could affect
the reported fair value of the assets and liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of gooadwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company's
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group's sales and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose and supportive
functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit (loss) for the year and profit (loss) before taxation,
share of results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated
income (expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of
employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated
FVOCI, are located in the PRC. No revenue from a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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DERRE L Segment results:
2022
A0 8
FEE Inter-
Instant #m Hftt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ARETFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
2 Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts
with customers 29,578,253 48,327,716 738,570 — 78,644,539
WRERT 2K Timing of
revenue recognition:
EX BRI Recognised at a pointin time | 29,578,253 48,327,716 738,570 — 78,644,539
REMTFEE ZMA Revenue from other sources:
KEREERME S WA Rental income from
investment properties — — 72,881 — 72,881
LR EPal e Inter-segment revenue 55,443 8,014 700,353 (763,810) —
A EM Segment revenue 29,633,696 48,335,730 1,511,804 (763,810) 78,717,420
PHEZ(CMREBEER)  Segment results after
finance costs 1,839,554 2,275,213 (121,539) 20,762 4,013,990
[EEIE DB A RNAIEE  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (339) 128,810 (1,153) — 127,318
EOEZFHA Unallocated income, net — — 7,496 — 7,496
BB ATERF (B8) Profit before taxation 1,839,215 2,404,023 (115,196) 20,762 4,148,804
HA Taxation (464,685) (582,337) (25,948) —  (1,072,970)
REEZRA(EE) Profit (loss) for the year 1,374,530 1,821,686 (141,144) 20,762 3,075,834
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SiEE  (F) Segment results: (Continued)

2022
A0 8
FEE Inter-
Instant #m Hftt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ANRETFT ANREFH ARETT AREFT AREFZT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
DEEE Segment assets 20,015,049 34,145,275 4,710,542  (1,462,128) 57,408,738
BeNmER Interest in an associate — 93,316 — — 93,316
AEAlER Interest in joint ventures 464 610,216 3,636 — 614,316
APREE Unallocated assets 332,936
WEE Total assets 58,449,306
8% Liabilities
NEBEE Segment liabilities 10,844,982 20,545,661 11,430,662  (1,256,500) 41,564,805
xoEaE Unallocated liabilities 69,026
BEE Total liabilities 41,633,831
Hirg g Other information
WEREH Depreciation and amortisation 871,679 2,335,508 179,792 (121,402) 3,265,577
B Capital expenditures 530,314 2,548,530 22,493 — 3,101,337
FIEMA Interest income 285,211 409,987 13,385 (58,171) 650,412
e Interest expenses 31,984 210,063 270,236 (66,262) 446,021
HEMB A F Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 36,304 69,688 — — 105,992
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PEBEE : (&) Segment results: (Continued)
2021
RV
ki Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ARETFL ARKTT ARETT ARBTT AREFIL
RMB00O ~ RMB0OO ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000

W #E Revenue
REFPANEE W Revenue from contracts

with customers 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
WERT 2K Timing of

revenue recognition:
EE-EHR7 Recognised at a point in time 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
REMRREEZWA Revenue from other sources:
REHREUEEHEZHEUWA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 84,134 — 84,134
D EE L WE Inter-segment revenue 15,606 1,954 932,003 (949,563) —
SEE Segment revenue 28,447,646 44,801,936 1,782,273 (949,563) 74,082,292

PHEE(CHBRMBER)  Segment results after

finance costs 2,626,994 3,052,225 35,276 (5,847) 5,708,648
eI DB MAERAIEE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures 428 132,974 (11,578) — 121,824
AR ZFTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (21,829) — (21,829
BRBEATRA Profit before taxation 2,627,422 3,185,199 1,869 (5847) 5,808,643
I8 Taxation (623,087) (766,547) (35,342) —  (1,424,976)
REE 2T (EE) Profit (loss) for the year 2,004,335 2,418,652 (33,473) (5,847) 4,383,667
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SiEE  (F) Segment results: (Continued)

2021
P
HEE Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANRMFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Assets
NHEE Segment assets 19,917,991 35,239,108 5,020,610  (1,278,657) 58,899,052
BeNmER Interest in an associate — 94,847 — — 94,847
AR DAER Interest in joint ventures 803 619,571 4,789 — 625,163
AOREE Unallocated assets 690,161
HEE Total assets 60,309,223
a8 Liabilities
NEEE Segment liabilities 9,018,715 20,305,649 9,531,235  (1,034,796) 37,820,803
xHE&EE Unallocated liabilities 79,920
oY=y Total liabilities 37,900,723
Hipg g Other information
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 831,358 2,230,326 193,056 (113,064) 3,141,676
BARZ Capital expenditures 521,388 2,448,225 28,049 — 2,997,662
FIEUA Interest income 393,426 426,996 16,820 (53,741) 783,501
AT Interest expenses 20,106 89,962 177,187 (63,761) 223,494
HEMB A Alka Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 160,104 48,646 — — 208,750
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A Interest income 650,412 783,501
2022 2021
(k3 ARETFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
S BE 2 s Gain on sales of scrapped materials 208,992 207,189
EAnBEYERKEREEZE Change in fair value of
EENEREEY financial assets at FVPL, net
MABEZEFE 10,099 (21,239)
EAnBEYRKEEEZE Dividend income from
FRIR 8 & R E E NMIETE financial assets at FVPL and
BASEBEYEREEM  equity instruments designated
HKERRIER as at FVOCI
T A7 BRFWA 1,413 2,522
HEMB QRS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 41 105,992 208,750
T B Government grants 418,514 356,718
HEME - MR REMAEKR  Loss on disposal of property,
TREEEZEE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (60,288) (29,527)
X (18 ) e 558 Exchange (loss) gain, net (30,164) 36,031
Ht Others 220,262 263,751
874,820 1,024,195
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MR (GEA) TPIIEB R -

This is stated after charging (crediting):

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B%E A Finance costs
AR S FNBHEEZIRIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
REMER2FEZ T wholly repayable within five years 429,900 204,049
ARSFULBHEE Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMERZ wholly repayable over five years
FEXZH — 2,867
HEaBEEEZHKER Finance costs on lease liabilities 16,121 16,578
446,021 223,494
2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hig B Other items
ETHMA(BIFEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e Ko Salaries and wages 7,684,056 7,306,001
NEREE RN Equity-settled share-based
Yt 2B payment expenses 522 5,075
RIRE A Pension costs:
AEEREE Defined contribution plans 806,408 683,997
RERNEE Defined benefit plans 5,599 (501)
ZEEN £ Auditor’s remuneration:
EZER Audit fee 7,952 8,172
FEZER Non-audit fee 866 776
BEGFEKA! Cost of inventories* 55,818,003 51,571,867
FEMIEGIAEM Written off of inventories
wEBR) (included in other operating expenses) 364,243 34,021
E - Depreciation:
VI - R KRS Property, plant and equipment 2,936,451 2,827,355
EREEE Right-of-use assets 322,447 306,808
A E Amortisation of intangible assets
(EBRERD ) (included in distribution costs) 6,679 7,513
# EEFENAPBIEHEE T - # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,802,349,000 (2021:

ME - BELRRE - FRAEEE
ZHERBEVEERHEARE
4,802,349,0007T (20214 : AR
#4,724,716,00070) - &S EEEIN
ST ALA LB 5 2 [ERIA 5T -
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RMB4,724,716,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and amortisation on
intangible assets which amounts are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above.
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ARABAEERITHRAZED MR The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
JEf 2 Bl @ zEmn T Company's directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2022
Bfe
X REEN
Bhe
DY HE T2
ek Xffz  Retirement
HftEe FE  payments and
E3he Salaries 4 Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based to pension fit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ABBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB000  RMBU00  RMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBU00  RMBOOO

HTEE Executive directors:
iy Wei Hong-Ming 677 547 2,578 143 - 8,815
FEL—E Junichiro Ida 541 17 - - - 758
REX Wei Hong-Chen 677 5,207 2,484 143 - 8,531
BRER Koji Shinohara 338 17 - - - 555
BREE Yuko Takahashi 338 17 - - - 555
g Tseng Chien 338 866 140 - - 1,384
BUHHTEE Indeeoendent non-executive directors:
Gy Hsu Shin-Chun 406 108 - - - 514
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 406 108 - - - 514
REE Hiromu Fukada 406 108 - - - 514
RS Chief executive officer;
Rz Chen Yinjang - 4,000 2,250 59 - 6,309

4127 16,485 1452 345 - 28,409
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2021

R’ire

XRREEH

&g

PAR1A SRR

B2 R Zf52  Retirement

HE#e FE  paymentsand

Ezhg Salaries el Share-  contribution
Directors' andother  Discretionary based  topension ait
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

AERTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  AMBUOO

HIEE: Executive directors:
BE% Wei Hong-Ming 644 5,303 2,080 731 - 8,758
i Junichiro Ida 515 103 - - 618
RER Wei Hong-Chen 322 5113 2,004 731 - 8,170
BRER Koji Shinohara 30 103 - - - 425
BREE Yuko Takahashi 30 103 - - 425
25 Tseng Chien 322 598 124 - - 1,044
BUFHTEE Indlevendent non-executive directors:
rEH Hsu Shin-Chun 355 103 - - - 458
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 355 103 - - - 458
RER Hiromu Fukada 355 103 - - 458
e - Chief executive officer:
Rz Chen Yinjang - 4,000 1317 449 - 5,766
3512 15,632 5,525 1,911 - 26,580

HE2022F %2021 12 A31 81k
FEVESERSURSHFALTRE
BEHE -

AEBERERDFEENSUREH
AEMAREEMAMEREES
MAREBEEN LM RESRK
ERAIELERE -
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No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NEFBSHUESHATBEE2MES The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
NATBEF (20214 : 2= FH) Group for the year, two directors and the chief executive officer
EfaFEZaE N EX E&20 (2021: two directors) whose emoluments are reflected in the
(2021 5F : 3fU) AT ZEN S B W analysis presented above. Details of the emoluments of the
T remaining two individuals (2021: three) are as follows:
2022 2021
AR¥ T ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e kHEMME Salaries and other emoluments 11,000 14,011
LARRAD S50 2 5K E Share-based payments — 208
BRASZNREESN Retirement payments and contribution
RIREET B K to pension scheme — 7,470
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 6,371 7,605
17,371 29,294
S 262(2021 F - 3R HBEF AL The emoluments were paid to the two (2021: three) highest paid
ZBESARIMT individuals as follows:
EEAE
Number of
individuals
< 48 Bl Emoluments band 2022

AE¥ 8,624,601 TE AR 9,055,830 RMB8,624,601 to RMB9,055,830
(10,000,001 7T% 10,500,000/87T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 2

BB AH
Number of
individuals

< 48 B Emoluments band 2021

AR¥8,288,333 LE ARKES,702,749 7T RMBS,288,333 to RMB8,702,749

(10,000,001 7T 10,500,000 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 1
AR¥9,117,166 TE AR 9,531,582 7T RMB9, 117,166 to RMB9,531,582
(11,000,001 %72 11,500,00087T) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
AR¥11,603,666 TE ARE12,018,0817C RMB11,603,666 to RMB12,018,081
(14,000,001 7T = 14,500,000 7 7T) (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000) 1
3
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEHIE Current tax
PE R EMSH PRC Enterprise income tax
RERZ Current year 966,194 1,294,663
AT (%) VIR B (Over) Under provision in prior years (37,532) 10,518
928,662 1,305,181
ERANER Hong Kong profits tax
rEE Current year 5,109 2,293
EERE (3£ 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
EEREDZEREREFE  Origination and reversal of
temporary differences, net (35,891) (116,825)
BAEERTPBEZHEARE  Effect of withholding tax on the net
G| #ﬁ:ﬁﬁ%‘J;Féji%ﬁEZ distributable earnings of
AR the Group's PRC subsidiaries 175,090 234,327
139,199 117,502
RNEEHIRE Total tax charge for the year 1,072,970 1,424,976

RERETTHARARANEKEEZ
WA BAE AT IR -

H E20229F %20219F12 8318 1k
FE  BENNEHSIRBRAFESH
FIEFTRTEH o TERMARFS T R H
ET BB EEMNE2008%ETH
15 128.25% (2021 4F : 8.25%) Y
FHREF - 2008 LA LR F)HE
#5 3% 16.5% (20214 : 16.5%) H) Fi
KR o

RAAEBERNHBAR - HPEMSEMR
BRMIET B X B25% (20214 -
25%) o IRIBFEI RS - 5B BEH
REBNEZHABMOCEARTSE
FABRABLEMERBENRE)
(BT EER A 2020 F 5 235%) » (U
FaEih @ AN IR E D - HEE
HEENZEBRAGEERRARN
60% A (20214 : 60%) * 2021
F1A1HE2030412H318 7
PEBERIE 15% BB BB R 3
FriSfi o Bt - AEEETRE
& 2 M B A R B E A 15% (2021
£ 15%) °
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The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%
(2021: 8.25%), and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2021: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice
(Announcement of the Ministry of Finance [2020] No. 23)
on the Grand Development of Western Region jointly issued
by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration
and National Development and Reform Commission, foreign
investment enterprises located in the Western Region of the PRC
(the “Western Region”) with over 60% (2021: 60%) of principal
revenue generated from the encouraged business activities are
continuously entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030. Accordingly, certain
subsidiaries located in the Western Region are entitled to an
income tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%,).
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NEE 7 BRSO E A E R IE The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERWAT - for the year as follows:
BERY HE Reconciliation of tax expense
2022 2021
ARTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A B A Profit before taxation 4,148,804 5,808,643
BRARBUEERE 25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
WIB(20214F - 25%) in the PRC (2021: 25%) 1,037,201 1,452,161
JEMREE R AEARIELE  Share of results of an associate and
joint ventures (31,830) (30,456)
AR B 2 Non-deductible expenses 78,834 14,492
s ST ON Tax exempt revenue (33,379) (58,905)
RIERV AR B Unrecognised tax losses 71,304 73,407
REREREER Unrecognised temporary differences (6,222) (5,835)
MBRBE W ARFERFIIERE  Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (35,043) (81,983)
BRAREENFEZHE Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
RAAMHSEFEZ profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
TARBL (A et 34) (Note 34) 175,090 234,327
WEBAE zHlkEER" Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries” (143,015) (180,198)
LARTFE (%) D IREHE (Over) under provision in prior years (37,532) 10,518
Hith Others (2,438) (2,552)
REFHRIAFRX Tax expense for the year 1,072,970 1,424,976
N MEARZHWEEBENTI M A Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries includes the tax relief on PRC
% /) A B B B A R 2 B USOR & T subsidiaries in the Western Region, additional deduction for certain
FONETHIRR - HMBWEERS - expenses and other tax relief.
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@) AARKRERKEEEE K (a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
B the year:
2022 2021
AR¥FT ARMTFr
RMB’000 RMB'000

RE BRI KRR E Final dividend proposed after the end
FREEBARBE23.36%  of the reporting period of RMB23.36 cents

(*2021 4 : (*2021: RMB33.76 cents) per ordinary share
AR 33.767) 1,316,156 1,901,241
B REREIR 2 RIRER Special final dividend proposed after
REGRERRARE the end of the reporting period of
23.36 (%2021 4 - RMB23.36 cents (*2021: RMB33.76 cents)
AR#33.767) per ordinary share 1,316,156 1,901,241
2,632,312 3,802,482

M2023F3F827H M & &
EETERRERFIRERE
BREBIRAR® 23360 K&
REBREBEERERBRARE
23369 © IR KRR H K
B RARHERERGRE T BN
RETRBEMNRKRE - position.

RER - HFRIP R EFRE
B A R 44389 (%2021 ¢
AR 44435 ) B #E & MK

% £ AR 2,500,000,000 7T RMB2,500,000,000).

(2021 : A K % 2,500,000,000

JL) °

* LB iR A REE IR * Comparative figures are re-presented in RMB
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At meeting held on 27 March 2023, the directors
recommended the payment of a special final dividend and
a final dividend of RMB23.36 cents and RMB23.36 cents
per ordinary share respectively. The proposed special final
dividend and final dividend have not been recognised as
dividends payables in the consolidated statement of financial

During the year, special interim dividend of RMB44.38
cents (*2021: RMB44.43 cents) per ordinary share was
approved and paid, totaling RMB2,500,000,000 (2021:
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(b)  AAFE NI Mk 2 55 B A R (b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
BIREE TARATIRE ZES to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the
&2 year:
2022 2021
ARMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RZF R L ROk 25 B Final dividend in respect of the previous
PRI ERERE  financial year, approved and paid

BRE @K during the year, of RMB33.76 cents

AR¥33.76 9 (*2021: RMB36.11 cents)

(%2021 4 - per ordinary share

AR 36.115) 1,901,241 2,031,132

RAFARHENIKEEE  Special final dividend in respect of the

BT B E R R previous financial year, approved and

NEAMR B BT EAX paid during the year, of RMB33.76 cents

AR¥33.76 9 (*2021: RMB36.11 cents)

(*2021 4 : per ordinary share

ARME36.115) 1,901,241 2,031,131

3,802,482 4,062,263
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AT A& E A G F =8 E s The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as
Mz&E - follows:
() BRERGF (a) Basic earnings per share

2022 2021

RNAFIERAAREELM  Profit attributable to ordinary

M (ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 2,632,312 3,802,482
BEITEBRZ Nk Weighted average number of
TR E(TIR) ordinary shares ('000) 5,632,791 5,627,083
BRREAGEF (ARESD)  Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 46.73 67.57
(b) BREHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2022 2021

RATE B REWEEF Profit attributable to ordinary
(ANREFT) equity shareholders (RMB'000) 2,632,312 3,802,482

B IEFE (%)  Weighted average number of

(F42) ordinary shares (diluted) (‘000)
E#EITE BRI Weighted average number of
FHRE ordinary shares 5,632,791 5,627,083
RNAGERAERTE 22 Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 2,694 5,251

BRETESREEEF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary

TR T8 shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share 5,635,485 5,632,334
FREEZM(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 46.71 67.51

252 EMEERERAFE
Q TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



LA ITEHRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements IV B
HZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

AR¥ T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

DNREE At fair value

REH] At beginning of the year 1,807,100 1,771,700

NABEZEE Change in fair value 25,100 35,400

REER At the end of the reporting period 1,832,200 1,807,100
(a) AREFEZEKEEEHE B (@) The Group's investment properties, which consist of

HAYMERFEESUREER
TH{E R AR E ST
BITTIE R EK 16785% % 1686
55 DA R AP B K03 T AR £ M B
B EH AN KR AR
M-

AEENEERERHEEMR
EENETREMEWE - F
HEBRIEIF BN
THHRJE 18 VAT IR 2 48
B

2

<

KEgBEHEZHSBAFS
A M HmRMEE3(m)

HEARNEERHNAFHER
mRZEEZS  BRAKE
—ReFTuHEERE  Fit
TR SYRENHE
EEMERE - HARKEELZ
BN EEZ A REE
H o

commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated at No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 1-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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(a)

(b)

(%

AT RBKREREREEEE
HMEZARFRBENKZEH
BT °

(a)

(Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

2022 2021

ARMTFT ARETFT

M12H831H At 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000
19FERN Within one year 43,652 47,981
FE2F In the second year 28,177 38,653
FE3IF In the third year 3,761 20,942
75,590 107,576

DRBEFEMFTER

FEREEEMENARER
B ASBMEEDIERST
EXEEBMEEMETHE
BE-ERERBIEXESER
M EMZETEE B EE
B & EH A RIEEER B
B A o HENNEE A%
REEE L AFH (20214 -
W ER(LIE) ©

R EAROEBES - BX
WEPRA A H B M TS5
e H2EA AR EWERNE
AR TBUMENE R
RIBRF AT - BEFPATRAA
BER L XRTDESEHEERMH
ZiEN BN RE RGN
Wik - BRI A (E A FT A
MAEHENEARNEERER
AERRA MEEYLLIAMR
B HRTHELEELZ
ZHRE™S LS 2 AL EH
EXSEH - BEHEEMEAIR
BER MENRSR&EER
BREBRAR -

254 EEEERERDE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach and direct comparison
approach (2021: income capitalisation approach).

In income capitalisation approach, the market rentals of all
lettable units of the commercial properties are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well
as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to the
yield rates observed by the valuer for similar properties in
the locality and adjusted based on the valuer’s knowledge
of the factors specific to the respective properties. In direct
comparison approach, comparable’s average unit selling
prices are referenced to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties
is their current use.
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(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

(b) DABEFEMFERREGE)

AEBzREEEHENATL
BEAENHEEAARBENSE
3R RAFEEARNREEHR
BEERRI3HARSIEL

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

BERE R EEES R

The following table gives information on significant

BRBAGENT unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:
2022 2022
TR &R A
HARBENER
REMEE HEETREEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques BEARFRAEAHA unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
R EgRkRE  WaERNMER
BB RN BRI
BEE Income capitalisation
Commercial approach and direct

properties and
car parks in
Shanghai and

comparison approach

TEHA

The key inputs are:

i Bk B BB UAERL  BANE FROEMEOEIREEE
LEESREMNAGENERENR L+t @<REUBHEN
OB FRAVEREESNE QAAEBETHR R2TA-
TUWRXELED R RLTS% R
4.75% » FERERI D I /5.00% =
6.00% }3.00% °
Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into  An increase in the reversionary

account the capitalisation of the
rental derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary rental potential of the
commercial properties and car parks
of 4.75% and 4.75% respectively in
Shanghai and 5.00% to 6.00% and
3.00% in Tianjin respectively.

yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

REMEBE RERTREERA
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EXATAENBEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

RO BRBA
BAABENBE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

BHMSHEE

Daily market rent

256 EMEZERERARE
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BEYE
ZERINMHE B RHREENE
EMERGZENENREZ - 115
mEFE - FEARXEEAVES
AmEHe T AR HEEETE
FHADRREBARETIOTEA
R#E1M30TRARK30TEA
R¥4.937T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.10 to RMB11.30
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.00 to RMB4.93 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES
ZEINMHE B RERMERY
ExgzHENENEE - mARK
KN EBERREEFELNE
EmsHe D R/ARE27.507T
MAR®E15.237C

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.50 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB15.23 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmEEEER L
o egcREUEHEND
REELT RZTA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) AABENENVGREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
TR &R E A
HARBENER
REMEE HEETREEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques EXFRAEAIHA unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
HRTFHENLEE BAEYE

ZRIME  PUARHBEEANE HRTHENEEERL
EYERGHENEMES . b8 A @REUEHEND
RREMBDEURTHENE ABELF RZTA-
BIRBIARDIBAARK
43,150 TE AR 57,300 T R AR
#16,530 TE ARW 18,2457C °

Comparable’s average Commercial properties

unit selling price Comparable’s average unit selling  An increase in comparable’s
price, taking into account the average unit selling price
location, size and other characters  would result in an increase in
between the comparable and the the fair value of the investment
commercial properties, ranging properties, and vice versa.
from RMB43,150 to RMB57,300
per square meter in Shanghai and
from RMB16,530 to RMB18,245 per
square meter in Tianjin.

EEZ

ZRIME KN REREBYE
BYEAGZENEMER - L8
ERE2BEFESHERTHEN
EEBDHIR/ARKE 156,800 K A
EE#100,0007T °

Car parks

Comparable’s average unit selling
price, taking into account the
location, size and other characters
between the comparable and
the commercial properties of
RMB156,800 per unit for car park
spaces in Shanghai and RMB100,000
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.
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(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
2021 2021
TABRARE A
HRAEENBR
BREMEME HEETREZHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EATRAE R M@ A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
R EERRE WRERLE
P YA Income capitalisation
BEG approach
Commercial .
properties and EEEA
car parks in The key inputs are:
Shanghaiand  AERHEHE ERIMEUAESL  BANE FAHABAWDEEES
eniin REESRAROARNEER LA ESRAMEREN
SOH AAVEREESHNE AREBETK R2HA-
SWRAXE LED B RB5.00% K
4.50% @ EREA D HIK5.00% =
6.00% £23.00% °
Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into  An increase in the reversionary
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account the capitalisation of the
rental derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary rental potential of the
commercial properties and car parks
of 5.00% and 4.50% respectively in
Shanghai and 5.00% to 6.00% and
3.00% in Tianjin respectively.

yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) AABENENVGREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
TR &R E A
HARBENER
REMEE HEETREEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques EXFRAEAIHA unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
BmniEe BAYE

ZERINMHE MBEREREANE FANBETSEEEEL
EMEAFIAMNENREZ 15 A gSREUEFHENA
mEkFE - EEARXEEEAVES ABELA RZTFA-
AmSES ARALERETE
FHRDBAARETI20TEA
R#E1M40TRARK3.06TEA
R¥4.907T -

Daily market rent Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into  Anincrease in the daily market
account the time, location, and rent used would result in an
individual factors such as frontage increase in the fair value of the
and size, between the comparable investment properties, and vice
and the commercial properties, versa.

ranging from RMB7.20 to RMB11.40

per square meter per day on lettable

area basis in Shanghai and from

RMB3.06 to RMB4.90 per square

meter per day on lettable areas basis

in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIERE  ELERYEEY
ERFzRMERNEE  mhmk
KN FBERRREEFELNE
AmsHED R ARK27.29T
RARE16.177C

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.29 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.17 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.
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B
XA BERRE  Electrical
EELH Machinery  appliances HERE HRIE
Freehold g and and Miscellaneous Construction st
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABBTL  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFZ
RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(Hiia) (Hi#h)
(Note a) (Note b)
FEEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2021512318 year ended 31 December 2021
LEE
RE At beginning of the year 119,203 7552562 12457192 29,600 1,311,598 464416 21,934,571
AE Additions 39,145 215,207 6,648 1,023,563 1,681,531 2,966,094
RE-WE-H Additions - acquisition of a subsidiary
HERA 57,148 20,775 3 3 113 81,830
R AR Transfer upon completion 84143 1128171 3483 26340 (1,652,137) -
HeE Disposals (54,837) (94,175) (1473) (56,034) - (206,519)
HE-HEMBAT  Disposals - disposal of subsiciaries (160948)  (248543) (197) (18,365) (1153)  (439,589)
he Depreciation (498373)  (1,793,141) (9,996) (525,845) - (2,827,355)
EREE Exchange differences 3% 47 (14) (1) (19 992
REER At end of the reporting period 7219198 11,685,439 28074 1,975,027 482312 21,510,028
REEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
202F12831A year ended 31 December 2022
LFE
RE At beginning of the year 7219198 11,685,439 28074 1,975,027 482372 21,510,028
hE Additions 42,128 275,660 9,674 1,096,640 1,561,524 2,986,226
e Transfer upon completion 367,008 858,382 119 405297 (1,638,406) —
e Disposals (58,637) (117,135) (1,576) (85,508) — (262,856)
HE-HEMBAT  Disposals- disposal of subsidiaries
(Wiza1) (Note 41) (43,981) (3,210) (182) (321) - (47,694)
e Depreciation (503.836)  (1,728920) ©776)  (693919) = (2936451
ERES Exchange differences 6,592 (1,435) 4 5 6,519 10,164
REER Atend of the reporting period 7020072 10,968,781 BIT 269722 42000 21,5947
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ERNRE
XA BERRE  Electrical
EELH Machinery  appliances HERE HRIE
Freehold B¥ and and Miscellaneous Construction @t
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR ARETZ ARETT  AREFT  AREFZ
RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000
(Hiia) (Hih)
(Note a) (Note b)
R2022%1518  At1January 2022
RfE Cost 119918 12340115 32,649,807 162,35 576,384 482372 51,516,946
ZEMERMFESE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (5120917)  (20,964,368) (134276)  (3,787,357) —  (30,006,918)
BHFE Net carrying amount 119,918 7219198 11,685,439 28,074 1,975,027 482372 21,510,028
R2022E12 318 At31 December 2022
RE Cost 118357 12535499 32,704,998 162,522 6,500,888 412,009 52434273
ZHTENFESE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (5506,427) (21,736,217) (128,545)  (3,803,667) —  (31,174,856)
REFE Net carrying amount 118,357 7,029,072 10,968,781 3977 2,697,221 412,009 21,259,417
FaE - Notes:
(@) THFRRAIABEBLAING KA SERE (@)  The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.
i e
by NREEH XEEETHRENEER (b) At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
HEEFRANEERBEERTZ certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
THESREMEAES  BEEEE carrying amount of RMB34,509,000 (2021: RMB38,893,000) have
4 FE B AR # 34,509,000 7.(2021 not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
F: ARK#38,893,0007T) ° == land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
RE NEBASKXEBEURERE Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.
LR R o
() FER - REBEEHHFHERKRD (©) During the year, the Group continued to implement a rationalisation

EBEREEGLFE - AEES
BEEDCAEEBREIEERNK
BESORE R EERA - NEE Y
REEEEMRAAE - £EMRE
B RIEA YR - HER N REETT
RERAT

plan for both instant noodle and beverage segments under
which the Group had devoted more efforts on promoting asset
activation through the optimisation of capacity allocation so as to
improve operational efficiency and reduce operational costs. The
Group carried out the impairment review on the property, plant
and equipment which have been idled for a prolonged period of
time and technical obsolescence with comparably low production
efficiency.
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ERAEEE Right-of-use assets
BRURF
HELHZ
T EARE
Land use HeER
right in HAiti% 5
respect of Machinery
leasehold B and other HEg
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
REEHE- Reconciliation of carrying
HE2021F amount - year ended
12A318ILEE 31 December 2021
REA At beginning of the year 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
INE Additions 14,482 273,242 9,231 296,955
MEET Lease modification — (19,766) (316) (20,082)
HE Disposals (18,786) — — (18,786)
HE-HENBERAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (53,976) (9,896) (122) (63,994)
e Depreciation (99,436) (201,104) (6,268) (306,808)
NEEH At the end of the reporting period 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
AREE R — Reconciliation of carrying
HE2022% amount - year ended
12A318LEE 31 December 2022
READ At beginning of the year 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
NE Additions 115,111 179,261 10,204 304,576
MEET Lease modification — (23,404) 5,085 (18,319)
HE Disposals (14,351) — — (14,351)
HeE—HEWMBARAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(Bet41) (Note 41) (15,486) — — (15,486)
e Depreciation (98,877) (215,218) (8.352) (322,447)
R&EER At the end of
the reporting period 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714
M2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022
DN Cost 4,260,555 678,903 22,562 4,962,020
ZEtiNE Accumulated depreciation (957,320) (302,230) (10,729)  (1,270,279)
IREDFE Net carrying amount 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
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ERAREEE) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
BRLRF
HETHh
T e
Land use s R
right in Hthsk s
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other wEE
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
720224 12831H At 31 December 2022
BFN Cost 4,342,883 664,470 29,283 5,036,636
R E Accumulated depreciation (1,053,251) (347,158) (10,513)  (1,410,922)
HREFE Net carrying amount 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714

AEBAHEEEMHEESRTY
¥ OBEBEREMEE - BENT1E
AZE304 -

PRI R E

BRI REH2HEE - &
FFELBALE BRIEREEE
ERHAKEER  MAKENE
HEREGHRBEE -

RMEHEMS - AKEEAKEH
MERBEZTHEARR  XRBEEE
m B A BB R AR AARR S

TEESER

TERE AR EZSHRE TR
RGN TREEEERRED
SEHRERENH -

ERRKILEER

AEENIOEFZ2HEAREE
REREIEEE - BERAER
EAREERBEIGITR Ui
FEE R -

W

H

The Group leases various properties, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
month to 30 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.

B EER
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HEAE Lease liabilities
2022 2021
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEAE Lease liabilities

MENE D Current portion 155,665 159,520
EMEN D Non-current portion 145,448 195,519
301,113 355,039

REEREECHERIATHA

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2022 2021
AR¥ETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
REEE Short-term leases 153,225 147,452
KEEEE Low-value assets 3,985 1,356
P8R 2 X Expenses recognised in profit or loss 157,210 148,808
WIEAR THE B FIE 2 A]#  Variable lease payments that do
MENRERAEAAN) not depend on an index or
MEE a rate (as lessee) under leases 46,695 58,497
MRERRTER 2 BRE Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 203,905 207,305
BREEEA IR Mm% Total cash outflow for leases 433,993 413,978

HEAE

720229128318 AE£EEB &
EEARBZBEBKSERINE
¥CHESH - mAZMAEMAKR
MREEEERCEEREN R A
AR #3,387,00070(2021F : AR
#22,029,0007T) °

MN2022%F 128310 AEEF D &
¥ A R 141,900,000 7T(2021 £ -
AFR#33,922,0007T) 7 EIFRE o
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Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2022, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB3,387,000 (2021: RMB22,029,000).

At 31 December 2022, the Group was committed to
RMB41,900,000 for short-term leases (2021: RMB33,922,000).
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KERFAE
BTk R Water
Concession resource #at
right licenses Total
AR¥TFT AR¥FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEYR Reconciliation of carrying
—#HZE2021%F12831H amount - Year ended
HFE 31 December 2021
REA At beginning of the year 147,430 18,238 165,668
NE Additions — 17,086 17,086
B Amortisation (4,853) (2,660) (7,513)
HE-HENBAT Disposals — disposal of subsidiaries — (17,159) (17,159)
b 53R Exchange realignment 2,112) — (2,112
REER At end of the reporting period 140,465 15,505 155,970
REEYE Reconciliation of carrying
—-EZ2022%12H31H amount - Year ended
IHFE 31 December 2022
REA At beginning of the year 140,465 15,505 155,970
B Amortisation (5,098) (1,581) (6,679)
fE 5 AR Exchange realignment 13,189 — 13,189
REEH At end of the reporting period 148,556 13,924 162,480
M2022%1A41A At 1 January 2022
DN Cost 187,296 17,086 204,382
BT E Accumulated amortisation (46,831) (1,581) (48,412)
140,465 15,505 155,970
720226 12831H At 31 December 2022
[B#N Cost 205,096 17,086 222,182
RETEESH Accumulated amortisation (56,540) (3,162) (59,702)
148,556 13,924 162,480
EEMER 265
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SHCEERIER2012F3 A%%
GHFRFRTEA ZFETEEE - Fir
KERERTAEEURE - £
BE  DEKHEEEERERRK
EBRERBER UARERFEK
B B9 5 TE PR I U ER MR R - PSR
RIZAHINRBAZHZ9FE - BELE
JERTIREESE -

KERTAIEREEPERRANE
EESRRLE AR SRR - %R
FE10E 15 (2021 : 10E204F )
RABE AR

BREERBRAEAFELE L
BREDREETRERR -

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource licenses represent rights to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 10 to 15 years (2021: 10 to
20 years).

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
PR 7R & BRE{E Cost and carrying amount
M2021F12 A31 B K At 31 December 2021 and
2022% 12 A31H 31 December 2022 97,910 97,910

BEEANRER REEBMNHH
REERLBETHRBALR K
KB RERMEEEEROAR S
BRI - EEMETERE
BoRAER BAEfMTTa A #
MENEENERZRE - Bt MA
BB A EAEH o
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Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group’s
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2022 2021

AR¥ T ABREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEBEFEECNEE((RARS
EABEN )IER 2017 FWEIING
Ea LR ERAR(HIMNE =R
2 1)25% MR B E o RR20224F
12A318  REELEMMEEA
LONESREERN  FTERRRS
EXBEMHKRESE- - fFERR
BEFEMENTFHMBEEN
Reme’A - BASFHRER=
BEAEIA2% (2021 4F : 2% ) By R Hj 14
REHEEHR - EEERERER
HEAMITELRTER - W TEBA
BTN FHRAERE -

KmReELEMREEMREE
HwrlEeRBBEEREE
S ERBORE -

ARFTEFEREENEZEREZMNE
AR :

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. (“HZPS") in 2017.
At 31 December 2022, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow
projection of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the board of directors
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
have been extrapolated using a 2% (2021: 2%) long-term growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
are as follows:

2022 2021
EH = Gross profit margin 34% 36%
R R Average growth rate 7% 9%
RAEIE R = Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
FrRE Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBAEARBENEE TS E
ENEHETREEMNE - FER
MHTIR KB THAT - R BR E AR 3R
SELABEVERNEERR -

BriEERmBReELEM A
CEBBERIN ARBEEEL
TRMEBEMEMAIERFEE R E

THERLED -

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company's
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.
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MR2022F 12 A3MBEZEE AT
2B A SRR 47 -

BEEAMBRRRAFERALE
BRRKAEES -

EERERDHRRER ZHELRMN
MBER

TRINRASEE-RBEERDH
BRRESOME R F - BRAE R R
ERAR QAR ER R ) RE
MEARMNER - HMBERME
RENBE R RIEEHEA 22 -

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 are shown in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interest (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”) and its subsidiares,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations.

A 20225 R20214

12A831H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

DEESIR Z AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
DEERRE Z IR ZRE LB Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 27%
72022 F 20214

12A31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AR¥Frr ARBTF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

RBNEE Current assets 15,311,416 16,462,352
FERBEE Non-current assets 19,537,391 19,491,174
meEnaE Current liabilities (17,736,722) (17,848,960)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (2,826,824) (2,480,529)
FEE Net assets 14,285,261 15,624,037
DERRERAREE Carrying amount of NC| 3,366,287 3,695,634

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BRER(E) material NCl (Continued)
H5ZE2022% HE20214F
12A31H 12 A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR¥TFT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ek Revenue 48,335,730 44,801,936
IR [k A Profit for the year 1,821,686 2,418,652
Hip2m(BE) ke Other comprehensive (loss) income (566,298) 87,992
FHEWEEE Total comprehensive income 1,255,388 2,506,644
D ER R AE S R i A Profit attributable to NCI 443,522 581,185
DR RERIENS Total comprehensive income
EEW B attributable to NCI 318,410 600,626
B ERR R RS Dividends paid to NCl (616,818) (466,244)
S (FR)IReREFEE Net cash flows from (used in):
KRS Operating activities 2,205,630 3,440,271
HEED Investing activities (3,151,987) (2,764,733)
BEEE Financing activities (1,411,914) (160,982)
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2022 2021
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEETRS - RERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
JEIE BB R A Share of post-acquisition results 126,840 110,632
B W iEZ B W F Dividend received since acquisition (104,202) (86,463)
93,316 94,847
REEE FEEL N T Z MY T - Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
TEEES
i B AEERELZ
Principal place BERBERESILH
of operation / FMEA  Proportion of effective
BENTEE place of Registered  ownership interestheld ~ TE#7#
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
HRBEUESHBR A i US$16,000,000  38.96% 389%6%  RENEERS
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
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LA FEE N B IR R RS BRTELR The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
SR P o the consolidated financial statements.
ERIFEEABE AT ZEBER Financial information of individually immaterial associate
TRV RANEBIRHEEZ EZRY 2@ The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's
RIZEE R E NBIMATREEN share of results of an associate that is not individually material and
REBERELE - accounted for using the equity method.
R2022 F 20214
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR F T ABRETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEREE Carrying amount of interest 93,316 94,847
BZE2022F  HE2021F
12A831H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

AEEFELS Group's share of:
NE R A Profit for the year 16,208 20,060
Hih 2 ES Other comprehensive income — —
PHEWEBEE Total comprehensive income 16,208 20,060
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2022 2021

AR¥TFTT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

LMD - FERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 363,679 363,679
JEIEW B R EE Share of post-acquisition results 1,109,102 997,992
B U BB 1% 1 B AR A Dividend received since acquisition (858,465) (736,508)
614,316 625,163

REEREGE QR CAMFNT Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:
IEEE/
S rEEREZ
Principal place BREREERLA
of operation/ FM|RA  Proportion of effective
BENTER Place of Registered ownership interestheld B
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
RERYAMERAF HE US$11,000000 = 31.82% | 31.82% MIRHERZER
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
LERFEALRHERAR HE US$28,120,000  38.96% = 3896%  EERHEHM
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
EEESIEHHERDA(ERES]) HE RMB150,000,000 = 62.33% = 6233%  EEREERR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ("JNPS”) PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
FREFEEBERAR HE RMB400,000 = 25% 5% Rt BERRBES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and

agency of advertising

A EFAGERATIRERETIRR
EEAMBHRET

All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.
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AEEEE-HEERKAEERSE
0% B AREZ I EHRAMBE R
AMBEBERBEE62.33% 2 ERE
BietEsm - A REZE2ER
EMBEARREMREE ZMNA
R HRENHRBAERATEN
RS ARSHER B F A LK
BRAREFSHEBB0% MR
KR REBEAHWERN - NEBRAEK
MEEMSREENHAERIRE
FOEASREEEEFIEER
165 181 B RO B 755 SRS A0 & BRI R
BEZFFEEREMBRARMEM
BREEDRG —ZURE  AUAKE
RARENEEO L EHEAEGE
B A LRI -
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Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group’s contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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BEREEASE AT ZHEER Financial information of individually immaterial joint

ventures

TRIVURA SR EIZ # a % 2 {85 3F
ERARERAMAFREERASE

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually

BELELSE - material and accounted for using the equity method.
2022 %F 72021 4
12H31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR¥ T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
E=RAEE Carrying amount of interests 614,316 625,163
HZE2022% BHE20214F
12HA31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
AR¥ T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

NEE RN Group's share of:

ANF & s A Profit for the year 111,110 101,764
E 2w Other comprehensive income — —
FHE R AAEE Total comprehensive income 111,110 101,764

In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually

EEZRR AEEXREEMNEKRN
'AE}\‘

=N material to the Group.
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2022 2021
HaF AR¥ T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ZFVPLEEMWESREEE Financial assets at FVPL
—-KREES® — Investment funds (a)d) 254,349 626,707
— ETRAE S — Equity securities, listed (b) 194 194
254,543 626,901
EE FVOCI Designated FVOCI
e N — Equity securities, unlisted (o)(d) 158,518 137,317
413,061 764,218
Hist - Note:
(@) WEHESANRETESZE®RE T (@)  The investment funds represent investments in certain funds which

IR EBRE B AN BB E (T
BBOEURBRHOERETAT -
NeRERsEENESS TR
BERMEAEM - REER 1B
BRGMARBELHEBEST

were set up as a limited partnership or companies with liability
limited by shares in Hong Kong or outside Hong Kong, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset. The
fair value of the investment funds were valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the

B E BB AGHE - reporting period.
(b) EFHARAFELEHNQASEBEREHRA (b)  The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on

EBHRZHRANTISRETE -

FELEMBRARENARBEEEH
BEMRELBERS ARME-
N EEZEH ARK7,874,0007T
(20214 : E)ERAKRESHER
H(TAEE) -

SR AR EENEETERE
RBABERN G ST BREN
44 o

a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were mainly
valued by the respective investment managers at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value of RMB7,874,000 (2021: Nil)
were credited to investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling).

The valuation technique and significant inputs used in the
measurement of the fair values of these investments are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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TREETATIEETIE

The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021
ARETT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

EI us$ 361,183 715,939
AR RMB 51,684 48,085
EAfb Others 194 194
413,061 764,218

2022 2021

ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

Rk Raw materials 1,884,416 1,493,137
£ 8o Work in progress 97,772 97,433
BURY SR Finished goods 3,272,404 3,080,907
5,254,592 4,671,477

276 EEEZERERIE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



LA ITEHRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements IV B
HZE2022F 12 31 BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUTBR 5K Trade receivables
—%=5 — From third parties 1,700,924 1,881,100
—AREZEBREIEH - From companies controlled by
e A VNS a substantial shareholder
of the Company 23,584 35,890
—ARNREEN — From companies controlled by
KEERK B KRB the family members and relatives
S EAR VNG of the Company'’s directors 2,798 1,396
NS — From an associate 2,770 32,471
=W/ — From joint ventures 78,205 92,887
1,808,281 2,043,744

REBZHEHERNTNDAETLRE
HRTHHEZEEHNETEZR30E90
K o

BRRURR(NEBREREE) N &
EHREZRHREZRE DI

The majority of the Group’s sales are cash-before-delivery. The
remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

TR follows:
2022 2021
AR¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90X 0 - 90 days 1,686,700 1,920,716
90 KA+ Over 90 days 121,581 123,028
1,808,281 2,043,744

FRASERUEEREERRNE
FENAR B M RA M RE 43

MR AR EEZAARKIIE -

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of trade
receivables is included in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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2022 2021
Mtat AR¥FT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

BRER Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 150,186 120,345
TET R AR Prepayments for purchase of equipment 21,135 9,335
JEIEER Prepaid value-added taxes 199,631 308,982
B EERE Prepaid operating expenses 1,354,605 1,225,570
eI E TR Loan receivables 25(a) 140,000 90,000
FE WA B Interest receivables 25(b) 522,962 361,488
e Deposits 127,423 127,018
Hith Others 381,447 109,815
2,897,389 2,352,553

25(a) EWER

25(a) Loan receivables

EWERTEAEEZHEBA
AERTESTEMBEER
HEELERRZRE - T
EREFAEERRE AR+ =
BMARNEERNFERAS65%
F3.70% (20214 : 3.85%) °

ARREEAHUZETHR
BEBRT _EARZHEK
B WEEREZEAZRR

EBEEEAHEEERT -

25(b) FEIRIE

FE Y 7 B 2K B R B E B E R
RITHEER ©
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Loan receivables represent the advances made by subsidiaries
of the Company to certain raw materials suppliers of the
Group for financing their operations. The loan receivables
are unsecured, repayable within 12 months from the end of
the reporting period and bear interest ranging from 3.65%
t0 3.70% (2021: 3.85%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

25(b) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits
and cash at bank.
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2022 2021
AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RHFEHER Long-term time deposits 7,551,900 6,101,900
RITEHREIE S Bank balances and cash 12,323,922 15,838,492
EIRRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 12,531 20,746
RITFER MBS A Total cash at bank and on hand 19,888,353 21,961,138
REEHFHIRA1E3F - WK The long-term time deposits are made for periods of one to three
BRENEHEFANEERA S - F years and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest
B X 5285%%4.18% 2 [@(2021 rate ranging from 2.85% to 4.18% (2021: 3.45% to 4.18%) per
F 345% F4.18% 27 annum.
WHIETFERE FHEIF - EARHE The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
AREB—RBIRESBRE(BRIEE trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
TIRITEALIEZ)MNRTRE ZEHE bills, granted to the Group by banks.
2o
A EEeRERENMS » /1T A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
FRELBESEHBESEEEEN equivalents for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
N flows is as follow:
2022 2021
ARYTFT ABEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITEREBR S Cash at bank and on hand 19,888,353 21,961,138
B REITEAER Less: long-term time deposits (7.551,900) (6,101,900)
BeMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 12,336,453 15,859,238
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RITEREREEFTATINEET

Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

g : currencies:
2022 2021
ARETT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 19,455,618 21,256,767
EI us$ 375,058 640,164
BT EUR 129 126
e NTD 27,610 38,461
Hitb Others 29,938 25,620
19,888,353 21,961,138

BEASEZIIERB REERR
B4R E SRR M sE 43 55l -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.
2022 2021
BER BER
Equivalent to Equivalent to

GEE FET  AEETR LG FEr  AEEFr
No. of shares Usso00 RMB000  No. of shares Us§ 000 RMB000

£ Authorised:

BR0.005FTZEBBR  Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000

BEIRSR Issued and fully paid:

REA At the beginning of the year 5,630,972,360 28,155 235633 5,624,386,360 28123 235422
RIEBIRE 22720 Shares issued under share option scheme 3,192,000 16 108 6,586,000 E)) 21
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,634,164,360 28,171 23574 5,630,972,360 28,155 235,633

R AR E R 0 3,192,000 B I% 4 %
7718 AR B8 AN 2 513,192,000 i &
AR - BRERAKRK 29,154,000
gL HA AR 108,000 JTEFAE 3
TR - i 45 88 A R #5 29,046,000
Tt AR HEER - B AR
9,353 OOOEBHH%MEF%%L%E%%
MEER - ZERENSHEHER
*ﬁﬂxfﬁi*ﬁ‘lﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ °
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During the year, 3,192,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 3,192,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB29,154,000, of which RMB108,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB29,046,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB9,353,000 has been
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.
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2022 2021

AR TFT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R At beginning of the year 786,965 730,075
RIEEE I RT 213877 2 B 1D Shares issued under share option scheme 38,399 56,890
REEER At the end of the reporting period 825,364 786,965

REBEFAEHSREED - QRN
HBEHERTEROE  TwEABESH
Hib A #ET - ERITROEME
MR EHERERMNEER -

B aER2ERRREMESHS
NERZHTE °

ERARRERREZB/RT - &K
RAZBEER DI TRE
HARRAR D IREADERENER
ERBEBHEBRAN 2 ER

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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RER
K56k EEL
Transactions {HER
with (TaEE) nx
hhEEGE EREEE non- SMEREEE  westment  EfEHR BRERE
Captal ~ Remeasu-  controling ~ Exchange revaluation Poperty  ERRERE —HEE  Shaebaed  REEF
redemption ement interests ~~ translation reserve  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained 2%
resenve resenve resenve resene  (Non-recycling) resenve reserve reserve reserve profis Total
NEETT  ABETL  AREFL  AREFL  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFr  A\RETr  AREFT  ARETT
AMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R021%E1A18 At 1 January 2021 400 (106,052)  (1,790,909) 98,994 21451 9,869 - 4938776 331354 16,637,344 20,147,221
RERERA Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - — 380248 38048
A2EREER) Other comprehensive
income (loss)
RERHEEZERE  Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - (4,260) — — — — — — — - (4,260)
EfZE Exchange difference
on consolidation - — — 271,991 — — — — — - 271,991
Rt2EUE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) - (4,260) - 211,991 - - - - - - 267,731
REE2ERE(BR)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - (4,260) - 271,991 - - - - — 380248 4070213
HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEFT Contributions and dlstribution
BREERATNZIE  Equity settled share-
based transactions - - — — — — — — 5,075 — 5,075
IRIEBRIETBIBTZRA  Shares issued under share
option scheme - - — — — — — — (13,693) — (13,693)
BRI Shares option [apsed - - - - - - - - (61,853) 61,853 -
BRERTEE 2020 FRER 2020 final and special final dividend
BRIRERE approved and paid - - - - - - - - — (4062263 (4,062,263)
BRERIEE 2021 £ 2021 specialinterim dlvidend
ks approved and paid - - - - - - - - —  (2500,000)  (2,500,000)
EEEREE Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 368,700 - (368700) -
- - - - - - - 368,700 (70471)  (6,869,110)  (6,570,881)
BEEZRY Changes in ownershyp interests
EEYATEY Change in ownership interests
HBAREERZD in a subsidiary without change
in control - - (9,181) - - - - - - - (9,181)
ARDNRARFZRHEE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - (9,181) - - - - 368,700 (70471)  (6,869,110)  (6,580,062)
RO1ERANA At 31 December 2021 400 (110312)  (1,800,090) 370,985 21451 9,869 - 5307476 260883 13570716 17,637,378
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UL |
BRER REEH
RA6E ERE
Transactions (FA&E)
with Investment ES
ROBEEE ERERRE non- NEBEEE  revaluation  EfiERSE BRERE
Capital ~ Remeasur-  controlling  Exchange reseve  Property  HARE  -BREE  Sharebased  REER
redemption ement interests  translation (Non-  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained a8
reserve reserve reserve reserve  recycling) reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

AREFR  ARETT AREFL ARETT  ARETZ AREFAL  ARETT  ARBTZ  ARRFEL  ARETT  ARETZ
RMBO00  RMBU0  RMBY0)  RMBUO0  RMBUO)  RMBYU0O  RMBUG)  RMBY0O  RMBUAO  RMBYO)  RMBUONO

R202%515818 At 1 January 2022 400 (110,312)  (1,800,090) 370,985 21,451 9,869 - 5,307,476 260,883 13,570,716 17,637,378
TEEER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 26331 2632312
Efp2EuE (58 Other comprehensive
income (loss)
REREHRME3)  Cashflow hedges ote 31) - - - - - - (747) - - - (747)
ARBEHELL Remeasurement of defined
EE(EE) benefits obligations (Note 33) - 836 - - - - - - - - 836
KERAABEIIERE  Fairvalue changes in equiy
2 AN RN instruments designated as at
BEIADABEZZE  ROC - - - - 7874 - - - - - 1874
EfEE Exchange difference on
consolidation — - - (1,515,878) — — — — — —  (1515,878)
Et2EUSE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) - 836 = (1,515,878) 7874 - (747) - - — (1,507,915
REE2EHE(HR)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 836 = (1515,878) 7,874 - (747) - — 832312 1124397
HRARRRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEDT Contributions and distribution
i Equity settled share-based
transactions (Vote 30) - - - - - — — — 52 — 52
¢ Shares issued under share option
Riaz2) scheme (Note 27) - - - - - - - - (9353) - (9:353)
BREXY Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - - (61,359) 61,359 -

EREREE201RER 2021 final and specil
FHREREWiE2)  final diidend
approved and paid (Note 12) - - - - - — — —
BAUERIRE 2022657 2022 specidl interim dividend
HERE (1) approved and paid (Noze 12) - - - - - - - - (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)
ERERDEN Transfer from retained profis - - - - - - - - (n979) -

(3.942,523)  (3.942,523)

ARDAREZRBEE  Total transactions with owners of

the Company - - - - - - — e (019)  (6660.955)  (6.451,354)

HunENANA At31 December 2022 40 (109476) (1800090  (1,1448%3) 3535 9,869 (A7) SSEI6T 190693 954073 12310421

HuarmWhzm(ER)REKER T No income tax effect arose from each component of other

2021 F M2022F 98 BB & comprehensive income (loss) in 2021 and 2022.

@ o

B 43 B & 4 Capital redemption reserve

R ELFENEEREHE A Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with

BEEMEELREEARRIRKRGNZ the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on

TR RS © repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.
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Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties
when the existing properties become investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in note
3(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of a derivative financial
instrument which is designated as a hedge of the foreign currency
risk associated with cash flows of foreign currency-denominated
borrowings in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for cash flow hedges in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BRERE

BERERBEERTASEERRE
HWARTEZBRERREARZA
REEZHY  ARESFTEIE
BIARD RERZ N REIE - F#18
SITRINAR B M ¥R AR MR 3(u)

(a) 2008 FMEREE

BB R R AT A
([2008%t &l 1) 2 RERE#E
200843 H200 @ i@ - 3%
20085t EIZ B B2 EE
(FFARa T ) I W sR A P9 & 3 2K
SEVEHMER o 5% 2008 51 &
M2019F 38198 5 B & F
tZ BBRERITE BB AITT
i o

EZQUREZERTUTA
TR -

(i) AREHEATHERE
MERZBESGRBES
TTBRAESERESR :

(i) A asEATAKHEA
B EREEREICEES )
TEERBIYENTE
£): K

(i)  ARB)HEA(TH B R F]

MR ~ FEE
e - R R -

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end
of the respective exercisable period.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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(a)

2008 FEE R AERT 8l (&)

BRACA N B R HEE © 522008
& RAERA R E] 2 E b BB
B EIMR T2 ERES R 2
f& 7 8 B TEBIBA A R ER
#9 1tk 2008 5+ & & H(B12008
FI3IA208 ) 2B BITRHOK
10% -°

REER ERTHEEBRE
B LRFEIRE B 143,726,500
B (20214 : 143,726,500
B+ BIBAR A R ERMAIL AR
T 2008 5T EIE B 2 TR

B12.57% (20214 : 2.57%) °

GRS EELZ 200858 H
ERESES T ZANRS
BTRE(BEEITERKRITE
ZHBIRE)  EERTRTHRRBRZ
REARTESBRERTHH
REEITRMON1% - 2R 1%
RRETEERATREA
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2021: 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2021: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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2008 EREREL & (&) (@) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
20085t &I A EXR T AR Details of share options granted by the Company to the
ANMHENBRARIZEERES employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
ZEBREFBRR2022F & pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share
2021 F 12 B3 HEEARNZ K options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
TTRERBARENT - as follows:
®F
BREHA
Number of RITFENEREZE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT
200843 A20H 11,760,000 — — 9.28 20134 3A21H=Z
20 March 2008 201843 A20H

21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

20094 4 A 22 H 26,688,000 — — 9.38 2014%F4H23RA%
22 April 2009 20194 A22H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
20104 A 18 15,044,000 — — 18.57 2015F4A81HE
1 April 2010 202043 A31H

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020

20114128 17,702,000 — — 19.96 2016F4A8128=%
12 April 2011 20214 A11H
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
EEEER 287
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(a) 2008 FHERRfEL 2 (£) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
¥
BREHE
Number of  RITEMBRERE
RTFEH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted  options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT
2012F 4 H26 H 9,700,000 — 6,296,000 2054 2017F4A268=
26 April 2012 202244 H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
20134 5H27H 11,492,000 6,854,000 7,766,000 20.16 2018 5H27H=
27 May 2013 202345 H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014944178 12,718,500 7,843,000 8,961,000 2238 2019%F4A17HZE
17 April 2014 2024F 4 16 H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
2015F 6 A5H 17,054,000 11,548,000 13,534,000 16.22 2020F6 A5H=
5 June 2015 20256 H4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
201657 H4H 10,148,000 1,642,000 2,206,000 754 20217 H4H=
4 July 2016 20267 A3AR
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
2017F 4 A21H 11,420,000 7,280,000 9,450,000 1020 2022%F4A21HE
21 April 2017 2027F 4 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
a5t 143,726,500 35,167,000 48,213,000
Total
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(a) 2008 FEEMRHEs S (£) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

752008 3 8179 14 KT 68 2 B R
BRE BT A EE 2

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share

mr Option Schemes are as follows:
2022 2021
T hniEFg
TEE 1TEME
Weighted Weighted
average HBREEE average MEMREZE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
Br Fig BT FHE
REH At beginning of the year 16.99 48,213 16.51 64,579
RERTITE Exercised during the year 10.59 (3,192) 7.99 (6,586)
PREREUY, 438 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year 20.04 (9,854) 19.96 (9,780)
REER At the end of
the reporting period 16.71 35,167 16.99 48,213

RITER - FRTENERE
B INREF I IRE R 14.64 7 7T
(20214 - 14.88%T) ° £ #
SHRN BEREFBHRENE
% 4 B% 2 24,300,000 (2021
F 1 12,502,000) °

M2022F12A31H # K
TEERENNETARTE
#HRA2.229 (20214 : 2.90
F)e NEEH - AlITHEER
T H9 I% 22 22 35,167,000 (2021
F 1 43,913,000) - B # &
H - AT1T{F A9 B8 B i &9 hn 4
BT E B16.717%8 7T(2021
F:17.65%7T) °

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$14.64
(2021: HK$14.88). The number of share options vested
during the reporting period was 4,300,000 (2021:
12,502,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.22 years
(2021: 2.90 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 35,167,000 (2021:
43,913,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$16.71 (2021: HK$17.65).
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(b)
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(b)

2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company'’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

EVBBRRIEN T as follows:
®F
BREHE
Number of RITENBRESE
=i share options Number of share TEE TES
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2022 2021 HK$
BT
20184 4 A 27 H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 202194 A30H=ZE
27 April 2018 2028 4 H26 H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028
2018 4 27 H 5,626,000 | 3,785,000 3,785,000 16.18 2021F4A30HZE
27 April 2018 2024F 4 A 26 H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024
&% 8,104,000 @ 6,263,000 6,263,000
Total
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(b)

2018 FEE R8I () (b)

1945 2018 51 Bl KT 2 BB
BRE BT A EE 2

2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share

mr Option Scheme are as follows:
2022 2021
n#EFH NS
TEE 1T1E(E
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average MEMRESE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT FR BT FHR
REH At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RERNITE Exercised during the year — — — —
RERZ U Forfeited during the year — — — —
PREREUY, 23 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year — — — —
REER At the end of
the reporting period 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263

EREEHRAN BEFARE K
1 RO B8 B 1 17 57 B (2021 4F -
6,263,000) > TN F MR A B
REMRATIE ©

20229128318 H X
TEERENINETFAHRT S
#HA B 2.90F (20214 - 3.90
F)o AEER - AJTHEER
7 /) IR #26,263,000(2021
F 1 6,263,000) - IHEFH1T
{8 £16.1878 JL(2021 4 -
16.1887T) °
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No share options are vested during the reporting period
(2021: 6,263,000). None of the options are exercised during
the year.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.90 years
(2021: 3.90 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 6,263,000 (2021
6,263,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$16.18 (2021: 16.18).
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2022 2021
AR¥TFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
INESRERGH) - Foreign currency forward contracts —
HERELF Cash flow hedges (92,729) —

FA- AEEFTZBDINEERS
WIWEEREHRTIA  UEHHEA
B4 &F 0 LA S B B B 5 3R 2 S IE R
e TETEERRNEBELHAE
B TARKREIERE  AHRE
FHRNZEARNGENITET A
TRRDEELRDAE AKH
MRS REL P EABRANEE
s MIsE 3(k) - BRARAEET
ETEARAREBEZHBEXMTHER
HNER B MMM 44 -

HAESHHUBERARRRNTE

SINES A A S T A 3 K 5% B B AR

During the year, the Group entered into several foreign currency
forward contracts and designated as hedging instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risks associated with the cash flows of
certain foreign currency-denominated borrowings. Derivatives are
only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative
investments. They are presented as current assets or liabilities to
the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. The Group's accounting policy
for its cash flow hedges is set out in note 3(k) to the consolidated
financial statements. For the information about the valuation
technique used in determining the fair value of the derivatives are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Effects of hedge accounting on the financial position and
performance

The effects of the foreign currency-related hedging instruments

MEKRBOZEBET on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows:
2022 2021
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SRHE{E Carrying amount 92,729 NA
H{E Notional amount 1,109,650 NA
A A A Maturity dates within 1 year NA
FRIEAERE HRERE  The change in fair value of the hedging
HEZE R TENAEE  instrument used as the basis for recognising
ZE) hedge ineffectiveness for the year 159,882 NA
PIERHETE 2SR EMME  Hedge ineffectiveness recognised
in profit or loss — NA
ARG EE R T AFTHRR Weighted average contracted forward
e 22 Nt e 81— rate for outstanding hedging
AR¥E 1% instruments — RMB:USD 1 6.45 NA
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B iEE Hedging reserves
AEEME P FHHENTEHPTA The Group's hedging reserves relate to the following hedging
1R - instruments:
E¥EHEN
R A ZEHEHS  HAEEERE
Spot
Cost of component
hedging of currency Total hedging
reserve forwards reserves
ARMFT ARETFTT ARH¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202261 H1H As at 1 January 2022 — — —
mn: REMEEmKEZEF Add: Change in fair value of
RZEHRITA hedging instrument
RABEEE recognised in other
comprehensive income — 159,882 159,882
o REMEEmUWEZEF Add: Costs of hedging deferred
B R R and recognised in other
R AR comprehensive income (26,912) — (26,912)
W BEMEEIRES  Less: Reclassified from other
ENHEEER comprehensive income
AR Gt A E Aty to profit or loss and
RS included in other
net income 27,923 (159,882) (131,959)
1,011 — 1,011
W D ER R s R
;o Less: Attributable of NCI (264) — (264)
ARTRREMZ Carrying amount to owners
BREE of the Company
2202212 A31H  Asat 31 December 2022 747 — 747
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2022 2021

ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

EIRRIRITER Unsecured Bank loans 14,148,702 10,499,244
RS Unsecured notes 3,470,308 3,162,569
17,619,010 13,661,813

BREERHA RBREBEERBHEMN
RIS B B A SRR D AT (X 2
B (E (T 1R 2SR AN B ER R &

The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on

I demand clause) are as follows:
2022 2021
AR¥F AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1ER Within one year 9,203,139 7,311,444
F2F In the second year 3,770,260 2,135,826

EIFEFESF In the third to fifth years inclusive

(BIEER2F) 4,645,611 4,214,543
17,619,010 13,661,813
WoEARSERESD Portion classified as current liabilities (9,203,139) (7,311,444)
EREE D Non-current portion 8,415,871 6,350,369

EEEE+H AR®S5,551,532,000
TL(20214F © A K #1,372,584,000
T)BE —KRIEERREG %ié?/\%
FESBEERBASIDR+ =@
BAHOBERLT ztj:mmﬁ{ﬁ§°
BEEEVTEHEEASTFEL
BHNEKEE HEABENEESR
BRBAE -

EEEEZMETHFEFNEXA
2.57% (20214 : 1.47%) °

BEBERBHEERAIER -

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB5,551,532,000 (20217
RMB1,372,584,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 2.57% (2021: 1.47%) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
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RITIE G R EEIR A5 T EEKH
RITEFRAZEALAEEERZIRZIN
ERZHRE

AARN2020F 9 A24BETA S
48%F /5500,000,000 £ 7T 2 K IF =
BUIETRE] - EXEBREER
&) BE ™ {H /A& 497,072,000 T (M &
PRI A R 3,470,308,0007T) (2021
F 1 496,043,000 ;T(FHE R4 A
R#3,162,569,0007T)) T st A B B
BE REZFZ2FAFINH(E
BREMT) - ELEEH2020F9 A
24 HBIREFER1.625% .8 7B
ERNTFEIA24BNOA2AERE
HELNIH2021F3 /24 BREE
202549 A 24 HEIH -

ETEBERTINBEESTIMEBR
RNAI LM - REMBRE ELE
BER2022% 12 A31BEMAREE
#5449,065,000% T(HE & R 4 A
R #3,135,147,0007C ) (20214 :
492,190,000k L (HE R AR K
3,138,007,0007T )) » L =& Ty
RASENEERER  YRAAE
FREEEMEXAEEZERESH
7 18 1t 2 D O 8 A 4B S A o

=

TRBBNETERL Y — L
RITEEERAKEERNE THRE
MR E - MRAEBEER
W CBAHREBARZRKE

= e

E R D> |l

il
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The bank loans are unsecured and certain of the unsecured
bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee arrangements
amongst the Group's entities.

On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes"”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$497,072,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,470,308,000) (2021: US$496,043,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,162,569,000)) and is included in the interest-
bearing borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years,
inclusive. The US$ Notes bear interest from 24 September 2020
at the rate of 1.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrear
on 24 March and 24 September in each year, commencing on 24
March 2021 and will mature on 24 September 2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes
as at 31 December 2022, based on the quoted market
price, was US$449,065,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,135,147,000) (2021: US$492,190,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,138,007,000)). The US$ Notes are the
unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at least
equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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ZFE B F BT H BT E AR The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
BEANETRNEREBER IR and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
7’5] NEBFEESETIELIE - not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
FRITTEERIREMNER - AEH its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
MRSERREENE —TFBH continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
DIR R ISR RN T43 - Rl Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
R AEBLEEREEDAE 43 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
B E R (2021 F - &) o reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (20217: None).
NEFEKERME D ZA:TEZER An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
BZWHRMAT - borrowings by type is as follows:
2022 2021
AREFTT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RS At fixed rates 13,223,309 4,535,153
F BRI At floating rates 4,395,701 9,126,660
17,619,010 13,661,813
EEBENUTHEEIE The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:
2022 2021
AR¥TFTT ABREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 12,136,440 480,000
ET us$ 5,482,570 13,181,813
17,619,010 13,661,813
EBEEE QI\EHI&AR)SZ?’FIJ [ By A #E Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
FFHE - REEE M BmENE43 discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
# it statements.
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REMRMKTE

AEBERMETE BERBEE
E2No5athE BERAES
77 BB A A e FRE R B o 1B
HASEFEARLEFIZESR
FEBMZETADHELER - K
SER XA LA A HR - A
BEEXNTE FEKAEET
RIRE R ER 2 BH o

RERAEE

ARETAME A EIEBRERTE
BRI 8 - AEEEARBEM
BI B R SE A BB I 2 5
B o 35 B R DA R B AR 4
BEECARNTHFE AR &
S ¥ R B E R S
UREMEREE RN A RS AT
((EFHEBEL D HE - BH 2
BT R EREE RN 20225
12 A31 B AT AT B4 [ AR A K
R
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Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group does not maintain any plan assets and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2022 using the projected unit
credit method.
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REGANGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
AREBHERTEEBAMFEFTEEZ The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
FEXWAZEPMBR KR ZNAE position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its
LKEIRE ST - defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2022 2021
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 79,920 122,166
KEFERIEEA Current service cost 3,656 (3,735)
B R Interest expense 1,943 3,234
5,599 (501)
BLE : Remeasurements:
MBBRRAEELELZ Actuarial (gain) loss arising from
BE (=) 8 changes in financial assumptions (1,126) 3,187
KERTRARESE ZHERIE  Actuarial loss arising from
experience adjustments 328 2,465
(798) 5,652
B & Benefit payment (15,695) (47,397)
REEHR At end of the reporting period 69,026 79,920
EEMENEEREKS The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2022 2021
% %
PR = Discount rate 2.70 2.70
& ER T B -1 Expected rate of salary increases 0.00 - 3.00 3.00

EAEER 299
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REBFE (&)
REER SEIEREREKNE

BrgEeERemiE Tz 8=
EOWIT

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
RERF FEBAM
BEENRIL BIENEL
Change in Change in
R defined  REME/L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
g = Discount rate +/- 0.5% -2.91%/ +/-0.5% -2.93%/
+3.08% +3.10%
TEEA S BT 0 Expected rate of +/-0.5% +2.01%/ +/-0.5% +2.04%/
salary increases -1.92% -1.93%

LRFREITEZRESEABER
RHOAEAEEDRE  MEMRE
RRTFIAE - HiiEEBRR B AR
BIE L RR MRS L EW
ARALEDHEA - BEtEMEN
RAEAREERERNEEHNR
18 N A8 B8 /0 & HI AR 745 A A A48 = AR
B (IER )  RIfE A
HEERRBLC ARG EANE RIAR
FENGREDHN -

ATERAMETCHNMEFHHRER
6.10F (20214 : 6.104F) »

BELESE - aEESREHER
EEEREI6ORIIHmHZAER
L N=p I
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The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous years.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 6.10 years (2021: 6.10 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60 or 63
depends on the employee’s role and function.
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REGANGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
HTEEAETEEERFTEE The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
E AEEVEEANESTHERT contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
TEHFELNER - L ARTIEAR the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
REFAOTEFEH A>T - expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is
as follows:
2022 2021
AR¥TFTT ABEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within 1 year 18,874 15,924
HBiE1FER2FA More than 1 year but within 2 years 5,285 9,660
A2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 8,959 10,582
BiB5F Over 5 years 36,969 77,266
70,087 113,432
AREBFELEHRBAGEHEES The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
NN liabilities are as follows:
2022 2021
iifza AREFT AREFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 931,305 1,148,083
g — EBREG Additions - business combination — (746)
HEWB QA Disposal of subsidiaries — 4
MEARAMESEZ Withholding tax paid on distributions
2 TEIR R of earnings by subsidiaries (253,479) (333,538)
FTAERE W ER A Charge to consolidated
income statement 11 139,199 117,502
REEER At end of the reporting period 817,025 931,305
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REER CHIAZETEREEE
SNV

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period represent the following:

2022 2021
BE =R BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARBFT AR®FTnH ARETFTT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

MRS E Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (512,383) — (574,183)
MRS E Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
RNABERE Fair value adjustment on:
—FREEE — Right-of-use assets and
ME - MR REE property, plant
and equipment — (33,468) — (42,859)
-BVEE — Intangible asset — (39,677) — (39,677)
—REMREHE — Investment properties — (36,355) — (30,117)
—¢@MIA — Financial instruments 152 — 152 —
BEEE Impairment losses 60,714 — 80,262 —
AEGHERZERER  Un-invoiced accrual 230,332 — 241,424 —
HEME  EER Unrealised profit on property,
BEZARERAE plant and equipment 137,683 — 151,083 —
WA RIR DB Withholding tax on undistributed
FE 2 FEIRH earnings of subsidiaries — (645,251) — (723,640)
BBER Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hity Others 23,208 (31,814) 15,850 (39,434)

EEHRBEE(EME) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 481,923  (1,298,948) 518,605  (1,449,910)

BIBEFPBECEMSHE  IEKRE
ERURPEMOIIFREDEME
SHRBAZIB10% M Rk TE
R B EMR2008F1A1H#E
A% AR 2007412 A3181%
S 2FT R B o i B IBUF
HL3Z SNBI 4% B & FIT AR B 3R 5 i [ R
BEEEEHRKBE - TEARK
BE -

302 EEEZERERAE
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Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
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AEEMAHHE QB HEARE
5% (20214 : 5%) » AEEIRE
EEBERARBHAEN R B RPHF
Ay EMEmEHREENRETETR
HAE -

HEHBTFEMNEHTFAED A
TERRM T E L A AKHK 183,811,000
TL(20214 © A K #183,811,000
o) BESEREAHNTIIE - E
ERBBEAALEZESR T FHNEA
BUESEEARI v EEES UL
A RERIED B - A i I % 1
BEINEIETR B -

NEEHRN AEEEBARE
111,128,000 T(20214F : A B #
111,128,000 ) Fi 7% E B R Ak
ERIEEE - M E B BERT
HZEBRELRAARAFHZ
Riskes - REZER - ABEREL

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5%
(2021: 5%)). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group's entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the remaining
undistributed earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is
approximately RMB183,811,000 (2021: RMB183,811,000) which
would become payable when they are distributed. In the opinion
of the directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time,
are required for financing the continuing operations of these
entities and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation
have been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2021: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MIBEBEZ HEBRIBFEHNOT : as follows:
2022 2021
RBEEIHR AR FT ABEF T
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2022 — 95,894
2023 53,354 66,382
2024 166,114 174,699
2025 222,947 286,318
2026 286,620 318,775
2027 307,610 —
1,036,645 942,068
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2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEfTBRX Trade payables
B=5 To third parties 7,964,787 7,420,951
BEAEEA T To related parties
—ARRBIZESEN — A group of companies controlled by
%fﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁ% the family members and relatives of
=) — AR the Company'’s directors 1,524,110 1,617,147
/NS To an associate 22 —
&N To joint ventures 989 8,420
9,489,908 9,046,518
ENE=F BBEBAL BEQ The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
ARAEERRIZENERRAEIR and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
BB RKHB30E0KEF - period of 30 to 90 days.
FERNERNGEERRBREEARR Y The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
BRER DATUNT - the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2022 2021
AR¥FT AREFoT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90H 0 - 90 days 8,591,071 8,364,033
90 B k Over 90 days 898,837 682,485
9,489,908 9,046,518
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The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021

AR#¥FT ARBEFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 9,331,911 8,825,620

E7T uss$ — 1,458

BT HK$ 157,997 219,440

9,489,908 9,046,518

2022 2021

AR¥FT ARMFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TR RS Deposits received in advance 2,731,272 2,070,566

B SERES Accruals for transportation,

BRZER promoting and advertising expenses 4,583,245 4,912,027
THERKEMEE Accruals for administrative expenses and

B R 2 TEIE other operating expenses 611,677 650,254

B TE REF B Salaries and welfare payables 874,839 947,298

FEAS R MR Payables for purchase of equipment 115,337 241,143

JE T H A 7 IR Other tax payables 220,067 236,213

FES T & Interest payable 35,366 29,950

JE A5 D AR SR AR T Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 144 902

Hith Others 611,550 504,978

9,783,497 9,593,331

AR 305
2022 Annual Report 4 #§



H BVl F50HRRMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A B A Profit before taxation 4,148,804 5,808,643
MEER Interest expenses 446,021 223,494
FBUEA Interest income (650,412) (783,501)
e Depreciation 3,258,898 3,134,163
BRAREBEYIEKEEEZE Dividend income from financial assets
RIEN & BE ERIEE at FVPL and a designated FVOC|
BARBEYIERIEEM
FHEMN S REIE RS
TARZRAEA (1,413) (2,522)
BEEE ZEH Amortisation of intangible assets 6,679 7,513
HEME - R kRE Loss on disposal of property, plant
RERAEEEZBE and equipment and right-of-use assets 60,288 29,527
KREUFHEADEE Change in fair value of investment properties
Z ) (25,100) (35,400)
BARBEYENAEEZE Change in fair value of financial assets
BRENTHEENT at FVPL
BEZEH (10,099) 21,239
U i R B e Gain on bargain purchase — (7,967)
HEWB QR Z WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (105,992) (208,750)
JEIREE Al R Share of results of an associate
BENREE and joint ventures (127,318) (121,824)
fEREE) 7 HE Effect on exchange rate changes (314,870) 19,287
RINAE S AL E R D Recognition of equity-settled
X2 FRIE share-based payment 522 5,075
FE 218N Increase in inventories (583,115) (1,341,002)
JE ITBR R 2 Rk A (3 00) Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables 235,449 (440,287)
B FRIE I A FE UK Increase in prepayments and other receivables
TRIE Z HE N (290,857) (609,702)
JE - AR 3R 2 38 00 Increase in trade payables 443,467 962,435
Hin M RIERE Increase (Decrease) in other payables
W4 28GR ) and deposits received 312,570 (208,459)
BEPETEMFKEZ A )IEIN  (Decrease) Increase in advance
payments from customers (771,260) 982,036
FHRETRFESE Decrease in present value of
WEZRD unfunded employee benefit obligations (10,096) (47,898)
REEXKMBES Cash generated from operations 6,022,166 7,386,100

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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37(a) METHELENABEHE 37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

TRFAFMAEEKREREED The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
WEBEEEE pERESLIIER arising from financing activities, including both cash and
@8 METHELANERE non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
BIRESREXNAKRESRE - are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
BEREBGARESRERTP will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
DEAERMEERHELNIRER cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
2.

ERD8

R RRA

(Hfit 36)

Dividend

HEEE REARE payable

(Hit16) (HieF32) RITER to non-
Lease  Unsecured (#f#£32)  controlling

liabilities notes  Banks loans interests st
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETZT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

MW2022%1R1A At 1 January 2022 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754
FHEEM Net cash flows

(HEL (i), (i) (i) (Notes (i), (i), (i) (230,088) — 2,643,408 (623,618) 1,789,702
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BHF B Amortised interest expenses 16,121 6,967 — — 23,088
RS New leases 169,206 — — — 169,206
HEBII 2 Effect on lease modification (9,165) — — — (9,165)
TEBF Dividend declared — — — 622,860 622,860
EHER Exchange realignment — 300,772 1,006,050 — 1,306,822
20225128318 At 31 December 2022 301,113 3,470,308 14,148,702 144 17,920,267
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37(a) MEEBELNABHR (Z)

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

BT D&
AR B A
(PF5E36)
Dividend
HERE ERERZEE payable
(fzE16) (P3E32) BITER to non-
lease  Unsecured (Mf3¥32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests @it
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
R2021E181A1 At 1 January 2021 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373
FREM Net cash flows
(W2 (), i), (i) (Notes (i), (i), (ii}) (206,673) — 260,363 (463,040) (409,350)
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BEFIS s Amortised interest expenses 16,578 6,513 — — 23,091
ERE New leases 256,738 — — — 256,738
MEBI & Effect on lease modification (18,735) — — (18,735)
HEHBAT Disposal of subsidiaires (9,669) — — — (9,669)
EHRA Dividend declared — — — 463,903 463,903
fE R E% Exchange realignment — (71,948) (229,649) — (301,597)
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754

() HEBBRFREALEF
A NEEEEZARE &F

BEb e

(i)  WITEFAERE - RITR

Ho Al & FRE
HEFOFE
MREZFME
Mg KRR

==
JILEE °

I

b4
A HibE
LB I B TR IR

ey

TR

TEREFRE

(i) ENIOBRRORSNFESR
EREBRFAXINIHBRR

HIRE. ©
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(i) The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the

payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.

(i) The net cash flows from unsecured notes and bank loans
make up the net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings,
repayments of bank and other borrowings, net movement of
other short-term borrowings and net proceeds from issuance
of unsecured notes.

(i) The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling

interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling interests

during the year.
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BRAARGAEEBHMIHEE R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SRERELAIN NNy AREEES the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
AT ETZERATIHBE - It following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
ERXRGTRAEEZ BB ERERE of the Group's business.
17 e
2022 2021
Wit AREFT AEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
() BEBALZXS (a) Related party transactions
BTHARHEER Sales of goods to:
ARRZ EBR RS Companies controlled by a substantial
& 4 VNG] shareholder of the Company 0] 119,643 142,813
YN An associate 48,101 29,306
RERT Joint ventures 886,955 859,768
BTRIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
ARREFYL A group of companies controlled by
REKE LB the family members and relatives
Z—HRF of the Company's directors () 6,386,373 6,534,137
i YN An associate 23,753 32,928
BER7 Joint ventures 17,147 50,370
BTRAARZFRHER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEFERFES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
AN shareholder of the Company (i) 33,730 32,566
BT 5 ARKEK Y E Administrative expenses paid on
THER: behalf and received from:
RERH Joint ventures 6,503 1,770
|50 R IR E M Rental income from investment
EERNE  #ER properties and property,
FE2HE plant and equipment
ARAZ FERRIEHZ Companies controlled by a substantial
C4VNG shareholder of the Company 35,602 42,254
RRRZERY A company controlled by
FEERK B N IR the family members and relatives of
—ERAA the Company's directors 3,010 3,087
BT 5 AR X2 EHA Distribution costs paid to:
ARREEYL A group of companies controlled by
REKE RFEEH the family members and relatives of
Z—H#RE the Company'’s directors 0) 1,876,252 1,819,826
FiaE() AR LETRBIE 14AE  Z25H Note (j) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BREEA L2 RGN RFHERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
5 e Rules.
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(b) BREEAEZME

FAEEBEREREABZME
(BRGAVBRERMZ 10/
BEAARBES  THAER
X ZFERAETR=HE

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial

BXMNZHIB)AT - statements, is as follows:
2022 2021
ARETFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=Yk Directors’ fees 4,127 3,512
e MEMNE Salaries and other emoluments 40,117 39,898
VARG 2 -2 5/ 18 Share-based payments 471 2,813
14T Discretionary bonuses 19,733 17,250

BRE T R{ETH  Retirement payments and

BIRE IR contributions to pension scheme — 7,470
64,448 70,943

MHEAFRIBEER 2017 FRENINEE
] £ 25% P A B FE 5 S AR B 2
HEERE - HAFKEARFARE

BETLTAEES

FANEREYHRELRE 155
MEFPEHNBBETEERRFRIE
MERADELRZEE)MT

The amounts represented the contingent consideration payable
and remaining portion of the cash consideration in acquiring 25%
of HZPS's equity interest in 2017. The amounts are settled upon
the completion of registration of the equity transfer during the
year.

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

2022 2021

ARMFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REH] At beginning of the year 3,342,990 2,360,954
R ABWA Recognised as revenue (3,342,990) (2,360,954)
WRIRZNEHITERF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 2,571,730 3,342,990
REER At end of the reporting period 2,571,730 3,342,990

MR20224 K2021%F 128318 &
FRHZEBEHNR —FARER AWK
AO
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At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the advance payments from
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue within one
year.
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During the year, the Group entered into several sales and

purchase agreements with three independent third parties for the

disposal of the entire equity interests in several subsidiaries. These

disposals were completed during the year. Upon the completion

of the above disposals, gain on the disposal of subsidiaries of

RMB105,992,000 was recognised in profit or loss and recorded as

other net income.

The following summarises the aggregate consideration received

EENBENERAEAR and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
4z
Total
ARMFT
RMB’000
FIHENFEE(EE) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
M - HWRERRE Property, plant and equipment 47,694
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15,486
JE WS AR X Trade receivables 14
TE A R IE f2 H h FE R IE Prepayments and other receivables 2,837
RITHEB MRS Bank balance and cash 2,618
JE - BR 3K Trade payables (77)
HMEAFRIERE YRS Other payables and deposit received (1,256)
67,316
HEWE AW (A 8) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) 105,992
173,308
2RRE Consideration received
RERE Cash consideration 119,508
il G Deposits received in advance 53,800
173,308
HEMBARZRERAFE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
ReRE Cash consideration 119,508
BEREZReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (2,618)
ReERASEEYZRANTE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 116,890
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SEFEFABREALXELER
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The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents and long-term time deposits) as a ratio of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group takes into
account of the long-term time deposits in calculating the gearing
ratio because the management believes that this calculation
reflects the capital structure of the Group more accurately. The
debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

R follows:
2022 2021
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 17,619,010 13,661,813
B R MREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents and
M ERHTHER long-term time deposits (19,888,353) (21,961,138)
FHIRE Net cash (2,269,343) (8,299,325)
AR FIRR I AR Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company 13,371,526 18,659,976
FREEEALE Gearing ratio -16.97% -44.48%

AEBRBECEHMERER

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital

BREHBIMERELRER I
REBEEERANECHBE NG
BoABKRERE EERERE
% BIIHEBARKRERN L
MPEMLE  ZRMEEEMNX
B RRERZHMERS -

2022 4F - AN £ [E A 5K BE H12021
FHRA BEBFAGEEHESTIA
ﬁq °
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structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2022, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2021, aims at keeping the net debt approximately to nil.
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HIUAINE(JEAREE ) ETER L FVPL
EENEREE RekReFE
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K350

The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of
the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in
their functional currency. During the year, the Group entered into
several foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against the
exposure to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency-
denominated borrowings. The details of the hedging activities
are set out in note 3(k) and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
4.5%, 0.8% and 1.8% respectively (2021: 0.9%, 0.7% and
2.5% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB4,341,000 (2021: RMB960,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date excluding the exposure arising from the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings that are hedged by foreign currency
forward contracts as detailed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The stated changes in foreign
currency represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for 2021.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 75% (2021:
33%).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in US$
and RMB had been 100 (20217: 75) and 0 (2021. 40) basis point
higher/lower respectively and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB40,206,000 (20217 decrease/
increase by RMB3,029,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the
year and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence
during the year. The 100 (2021: 75) and 0 (2021 40) basis point
increase or decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings denominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the
reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same basis
for 2021.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the
creditworthy global financial institutions and state-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers
they are without significant credit risk. The carrying amount of
financial assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of loss allowance, represents the
Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into account the
value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group's
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 to be insignificant. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.
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EERE (£) Credit risk (Continuea)
JEWBRF (&) Trade receivables (Continued)
R2022F K2021%F12A31H A The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
AENRCEHRIOEWREREZEE trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December
ERRBEECLHERMANT o 2022 and 2021 are summarised below.
MA2022%12831H As at 31 December 2022
BERTEE FEEZE
Gross carrying
amount Credit-impaired
AREFT
RMB’000
REH Not past due 1,615,680 No
SR ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 R Within 30 days 57,228 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 70,932 No
#B38 90 X Over 90 days 64,441 No
1,808,281
2021512 A31H As at 31 December 2021
MREREE FEEXE
Gross carrying
amount  Credit-impaired
AREFIT
RMB’000
REIM Not past due 1,554,166 No
SEEERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 139,087 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 235,284 No
#8390 X Over 90 days 115,207 No
2,043,744
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2022 and 2021, the additional loss allowance for provision for
amounts due from these parties was insignificant.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position, quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 57.14% (2021: 66.67 %) of loan receivables which
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 100% of loan
receivables (2021: 100%,) was due from the Group’s five largest
debtors.
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Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that
the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

1€ L 2L

1515 BE2FR  BESFR

BEREHR  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but SENL

1 year or within less than Over &t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20225128318 At 31 December 2022

JETBRSR Trade payables 9,489,908 — — — 9,489,908

Hit R 5E Rk Other payables and
BlEe deposits received 8,688,591 — — — 8,688,591
HERRE Lease liabilities 165,844 80,632 68,139 6,152 320,767
BEfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 9,531,823 4,023,179 4,725,607 — 18,280,609
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments 92,729 — — — 92,729
27,968,895 4,103,811 4,793,746 6,152 36,872,604
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REELER(Z) Liquidity risk (Continued)

16U E 2FENE
TERs BmR2EFA BESFA
BRENEHR  Morethan  More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but SEUE
1 year or within less than Over A&t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AREFT  AREFT AR+ AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

#2021512A318 At 31 December 2021

FEITEER Trade payables 9,046,518 — — — 9,046,518
HibENRER Other payables and
BElAE deposits received 8,409,820 — — — 8,409,820
HEARE Lease liabilities 171,452 115,503 84,001 9,555 380,511
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,452,251 2,221,916 4,324,734 — 13,998,901
HithmEa g Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
BT BHRE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959
25,130,000 2,337,419 4,408,735 9,555 31,885,709
EXMEeE—RETFTERALE The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
BHEI TEEAEEE kKD E clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
TG HEEESBER N E W loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
BHEAIIRERET |ER - BEE In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB5,551,532,000
EWTTEHESASTELERS (2021: RMB1,372,584,000) as at the end of the financial period
KRR A R #5551,532,000 have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
TL(20214F : A FE#1,372,584,000 that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
T)REERE R it R EEME - 2% and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
EEENMERETBEZEREME following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:
wm :
2022 2021
AR TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEERRE Interest-bearing borrowings
1R Within 1 year 5,611,207 1,381,697
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(a)

URABEIRNEREERAR

T & 2 % 2022412 A 31
H REE0BHREERNE
BHEIAABENZIMER
MARBESRHIEN =A%
Hp - UAREBEEFEHET
R BREREREALEBEN
CREEHEBE  RABER
ENDREETIERE BT
EEEATEBZHANGRESE
& BEASHFBHT

- BN (&&ER) A&
B r T & B AV B
Mg EHERAEERBER
HECRERE)

— 2 BREEEE &
RIERESN - AT E B ok
BREz2EENBENEH
A

- ARI3 (RIERA) - EOX
BRZEERABENE
AO
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their
fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis at 31 December 2022 across the three levels
of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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LAABHIEHNSHEERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
2022 201
HEIR fin A3 CH iGN gah #A13 Aif
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBU00  RMBUAO | AMBUOD — AMBUOOO  RMBUOO  AMBOOD
BE Assets
KRPLEEG2EEE  Financial assets at FUPL
-REES - Investment funds - - B439 254349 - — 66707 626,707
- LTREES - Equity securitie, lsted 194 - - 194 194 - - 194
EEROC Designated FVOC
-FLTRAES - Equity securites, unlited - — 18518 158518 - — B3 1313
194 - 412,867 413,061 194 - 764,024 764,218
B Liabilities
BRREESZEEE  Fnancal labilties at FUPL
~ERYERE - Contingent consideration payable - - - - - - 9,959 9,959
~fiEeBIA - Derivative financial instruments - 92,729 - 92,729 - - - -
- 92,729 — 92,129 - - 9,959 9,959

HZE2022F & 2021F12 A 31
HiIEFE BB EBEERN
HLR22E%BE - TNEEIE
B®%eEE R A3k AR E
ﬁ °

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.
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(a)

URABEIRNEREERAR

(%)

HE2022F K% 20214F12 A 31
RIEFEREHEALBER
EDEALRINFMES I

(a)

(Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value

measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

T are shown as follows:
2022 2021
BE af BE a8
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BFVPLEE RFVPLERE
MEm&EE  EEFVOC MeREE  EEAOC
Financial ~ Designated Financial Designated
asset at FVPL Fvocl asset at FVPL Fvocl
kL A ¥Em fef
REES RAxEH GERE REES RAEH FERE
Equity  Contingent Equity Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unliseted payable
ARETR ARETZ AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFI
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
RER At beginning of the year 626,707 137,317 (9,959) 558,177 140,444 (9,959)
BA/RE Purchases/additions 6,992 - - 103,187 - -
HE Disposals (441,953) - - (1,528 - -
&g Settlements - - 9,959 - - -
BRSBTS (EB)  Total gains or (losses)
recognised:
-85 ~in profit or loss 10,117 - - (20,747) - -
-Ef2ENE - in other comprehensive
income - 1874 - - - -
EREE Exchange difference 52,436 13,327 - (12,382) (3.127) -
REER At the end of
the reporting period 254,349 158,518 — 626,707 137,317 (9,959)
REEAKEZEER  Change in unrealised
EEHABRENES gains or (losses) for
FERUED (FE) the year included in
B8 profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period — — — (21,467) — —
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurement

(i)

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

The fair value of these investment funds in Level 3 is
mainly estimated either based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors by
the investment manager or the fair values of the
companies invested by the funds as at the end of
the reporting period. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price, while
the fair values of unlisted investments are estimated
by the respective investment managers using valuation
techniques including mainly price-to-sales (P/S) ratio
model and net asset value approach (2021: price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.

EEEER 325

2022 Annual Report 4 #§



HREBHEIMARMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER
(%)

FRERB2RABIZZAAEE
SRz EERM (Z)
(i) EEFVOCI : FE L iR

A7

BRI ZHLTRAES
PR A LR R AR
R S A (R
SIS T 2 B S
AR EER B IE—
TEETISERN LR
H2ET  BEEAEE
ERALBAT 2T
g .

(i) PTEZFITA - SMNEER
=y

MA2IMNERBAK 2R
ABETHRITREER
SNEFE R RKIRERE
BREERE -

=

326 EMEZERERAF
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 2 and Level 3 fair

value measurement (Continued)

(ir)

(i)

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price-to-sales (P/S) ratio model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.

Derivative financial instruments: Foreign currency
forward contracts

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts in
Level 2 is determined by the banks using present value
of future cash flows based on the forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period.
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(a) URABEIERNSREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
FTERTEERATENELLER Quantitative information of the significant
RERES & unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs
LR3AREBEFEZEZET The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
ARG AFHANELEER inputs and sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
MRREZEHWMT inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEBERAEE
KEERE
WEABNYE
RunE Impact on fair
1283182 value and
MEE the Group's total
Fair value TUERBANEBELAEENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (RREMEZRETS) income for
wm HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AREFT  Valuation  FUBEBA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description ABO00  techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB 000
BRPLRENERER
Financial assets at FVPL
REES 24309 THERY  BAFERE15% ERRESRTER ADABENS  RM: #-5% 41,654
Investment funds PIS ratio model  Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
YRR ik AuEAE HamEkES - ALAERER +-58% 421,940
04320656 Rk
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
0.43 10 0.65 times
FREREL MIEELARENRE FERLAEOABEER EFEOABEES  hyku%E4s2  B4-T1E
(#8E) +- 26,863
Netasset  Fair value of individual assets less  The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, e Ranging from Ranging from
value approach liabilities (the "Net Assets") higher the estimated fair value +- 14% to +- 52% +-7,98110
+- 26,863
fEE vl
Designated FVOCI
FEPRAES 198518 WHEEY  EHEERE15% EEREAREER  ADLEEES  RoMA +-5% +/-5,024
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model ~ Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
BRI % RLEPEVAREE-E S ERE YR +-38% 444,303
BOGS & R
Average PIS ratio of comparable ~ The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies of 0.65 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
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(a) HUAAEBHEIERNLREEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TERTEERAFANELEE Quantitative information of the significant
RERESEE (£Z) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEBERAEE
AEERE
hEgEHE
R % Impact on fair
1283182 value and
DB the Group’s total
Fair value TUBRBANEBELABENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (BREMEZRETS) income for
W HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes AENTHEE the year
i AFEFT  Valuation  FUHEA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AB000
BRPLRENEREE
Financial assets at FVPL
RERE 626707 TEEEY REEERE% ERRMIREAR ADABEER  RLHA: 4% +2,086
Investment funds PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice verss;
PP RLEPARZIE-E SRR +-50% 435,357
BO6SER082E R
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
0.6510.0.82 times
FEEREL [AEELABEREE FEESMOABEAE ATHDABEER  B+-1%E - 9% H-43%
(#2&)) +13304
Netasset ~Fair value of individual assets less  The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Asets, the  Ranging from Ranging from
value approach liabilities (the "Net Assets") higher the estimated fair value H-1% to 4/- 9%  +/-423 to +-13,394
ERROC
Designated FVOCI
Kk LRAES 137317 TEERY  BEFERR0% ERRMIRENS ELREEES  RR- 4 5% 4583
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
THEAT HamERA RLEPEASELE S ERE YT R H-83% 471428

0826
Average PIS ratio of comparable
companies of (.82 times

Rzmdk:
The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies, the higher the fair value and vice versg;
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(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2022.
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In addition to the commitments disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the commitments

BRAGAETEREREMITMHIFE
ZHEYE  NEBBFTHEPE

as follow:
B HAE Capital expenditure commitments
2022 2021
AR¥TFT AR FIT
EHENEES T Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
BEME  HER Expenditures on property,
B3 plant and equipment 541,830 990,797

REBEARDENRERE - ARAH
B R R EEEZZ2BIIRIAT

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the Company
and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2022 2021
it ARETT ARBTF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
EREBEE Non-current assets
M - B RS Property, plant and equipment 247 285
EREEE Right-of-use assets 487 2,465
NS Interest in subsidiaries 9,534,645 12,528,304
BFVPLRIER S REE Financial assets at FVPL 174,419 552,844
FETEIL FVOCI IR R Equity instruments designated
HmT A as at FVOCl| 9,852 8,596
9,719,650 13,092,494
REBEE Current assets
TENFIEREMBEIGIE  Prepayments and other receivables 6,409 5,257
bt B~ B 2 FEUR kIR Amount due from a subsidiary 3,282,153 2,956,640
RITEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 283,435 385,439
3,571,997 3,347,336
HWEE Total assets 13,291,647 16,439,830
BREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RAR #E Capital and reserves
BT Issued capital 235,741 235,633
f& D@ E Share premium 825,364 786,965
i Reserves 46(a) 1,891,772 6,803,464
RERERAE Total equity 2,952,877 7,826,062
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2022 2021
Wizt AREFT ARETFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBAE Non-current liabilities
REBEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 6,018,671 5,011,493
HEAE Lease liabilities 136 488
6,018,807 5,011,981
pE =R Current liabilities
H Ath JEAT X Other payables 34,335 29,459
BEEEEZREHIS Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 4,244,075 3,570,336
ESBMIA Derivative financial instruments 41,175 —
HERE Lease liabilities 378 1,992
4,319,963 3,601,787
wmas Total liabilities 10,338,770 8,613,768
BREZMEREEHEE  Total equity and liabilities 13,291,647 16,439,830
REFFEAR N KRR 2023F3 A278E The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
FEedEMRERE  YENUNTA for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2023 and signed
THREEZ on its behalf by
%% Wei Hong-Ming F M4 —EB Junichiro Ida
EZEDirector E&EDirector
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(a) HEE2EH (@) Movements of the reserves
Re
RAEE AMERE  EMERE BlE
it fif  (F78E) il 1 e REEA 4%
Investment
revaluation
Capital ~ Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption  translation (Non- Hedging payment Retained
reserve reserve  recycling) reserve reserve Profits Total

ARBTR  ARBTR  AREFT  AREFT ABETT ARETR ARETR
RMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUO0  RMBUOO  RMBU0O

R0NE1R18 At 1 January 2021 400 512,889 1,666 - 331,35 3,090,791 3,937,100
RERGT Profit for the year — - — - — 9,335,229 9,335,229
TEREMRENE Other comprehensive income for the year - 102,016 - - - - 102,016
BREERBTAZEE Fquity settled share-based transactions - - - - 5,075 - 5,075
REEREERTIRG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (13,693) - (13,693)
BRERN Shares option lapsed - - - - (61,853) 61853 -
BRRIRE 2020 554 2020 final and special final dividend

RERRERE approved and paid - - - - — (4062263 (4,062,263)
BAORRIRE 2001 £ 2021 special interim dividend approved

GEE and paid - - - - — 500000 (2500000)
H2021F128318 At 31 December 2021 400 614,905 1,666 - 260,383 5,925,610 6,803,464
R202%£181A At 1 January 2022 400 614,905 1,666 - 260,383 5,925,610 6,803,464
TEE T Profitfor the year - - — — 2055455 2055455
TEERMAENE Other comprehensive income for the year (516,398) m 184 - - (515,793)
EaEERNTN 3 Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 52 - 52
REEREERTIRG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - (9,353) - (9,353)
BRERN Shares option lapsed - - - (61,359) 61,359 -
BARRIRE 2001 £54 2021 final and special final dividend

RERRERE approved and paid - - — - (394253)  (3942503)
B RIEE 2022 FEBIR RS, 2022 special interim dividend approved

and paid - - - — (2,500,000 (2,500,000)

H2OnE128318 At 31 December 2022 400 98,507 2,087 184 190,693 1,599,901 1,891,172
202212 A31H & & At 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves
APz EEBRERE &F including retained profits and share premium amounted to
EROhEEBzeEAEARE RMB2,425,265,000 (2021: RMB6,712,575,000).

2,425,265,000 7T (2021 4 -
AE#6,712,575,000T) °
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Ty BIERAATIEELEEES The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
ZXFEWNBLAR  EERAZEN indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
FEANFEWNFZEERNTE - 348 are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
KAEEEEENEELND =& portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
REHVNNEMHBATMER S giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
RiIgLEK ° excess length.
e/
8 3L HlER/BERIRA LAl TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# ik
Directly Indirectly
REEFRDERLH hE US$72,000,000 - 100% BERHEHEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* IMEERRERAH hE US$151,500,000 - 100% SERHEHFE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RBERRAARLT Gl US$17,000,000 - 100% RERHESRE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REERRGARAA hE US$17,800,000 - 100% BERHEHEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REEHRGARLT i US$44,300,000 - 100% RERHESRE
Xian Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
R R RARAT i US$14,200,000 - 100% RERHESRE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* BREERmERAA hH US$6,862,700 - 100% BERHEHRE
* Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REBEANRRRERAT ki US$32,500,000 - 100% BERHEHEE
Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
FEEGARERAA hE US$3,000,000 - 100% BERHEHEE
Xinjiang TingYi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* REVB(ES) AERRERLA hE US$6,000,000 - 100% BERHEHEE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
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e/
£ E ihER/ ERfTRE JEfE R gL ) B3
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
TAEERMERAR lei US$29,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RABERMARAR G US$17,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
* Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RABERNERRERAT HE US$5,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
Master Kong [Chonggjing] PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., LTD. noodles
* BNBERMARAH hE US$50,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RYRERAARAA hE US$21,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
Changsha Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
LEERGCEERARRA G RMB15,000,000 - 100%  fRHEEERE
Shanghai Kang Yi Corporate Management Limited #  PRC Provision of management service
OB RERAFEERAT G US$227,500,000 - 100% REZR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RERERRARLA PE RMB37,000,000 - 100% BEERHERSH
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of bakery
products
RABHREVIERAR AERAEE US$55,263 90.50% — REBR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
BB RIERERAT REHS US$10,527.37 30.40% 4151%  BEER
KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
RHOXERED (L) ARLF G RMB1,000,000 - 7191% REEERE
KSF Beverage Management (Shanghai) Limited* PRC Provision of management services
* RRRRARARL e US$60,840,000 - T191% HERHEERD
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMNEZRRA] i US$20,000,000 - 7191%  EEREERM
Guangzhou ngJm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERRRMAD G US$73,500,000 - 7191% HERHEESR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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L/
£ EXY ifEs/ BRTRE JEfE R gLl IEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# [}:3
Directly Indirectly
EFERZRMARD e US$24,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Chongging Tingjin Food Co,, ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EEEEARARA G US$15,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREZARBRL G US$13,700,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REEERARERAT i US$16,176,500 - T191% RERHEERD
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
AEERARBRA G US$10,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Hefei Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BRERARARAA i US$12,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAERRMARD G US$24,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food (o, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAEZRMARD e US$16,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
LRERARERARATA i US$15,000,000 - 71.91% REEERE
Shanghai Kang Yun Corporate Management PRC Provision of management services
Limited*
FHEEDRARAT i US$41,000,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
" BHBERARARAT i US$48,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBRBARARAT hE US$31,800,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRMARD G US$36,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BN mARAR i US$59,300,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* (Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RS (SEAERRARAT i US$12,000,000 - T191%  REREEAR
* Master Kong (Wulumuqi) Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BYRRARBRA G US$28,500,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* LANGFANG TINGJIN FOOD 0., L. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
" EMERRRARA G US$41,500,000 - 77.91% REREERR
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., ltd? PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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e/
£ E ifEs/ BRTRA EiEREL A B3
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E& [}:3
Directly Indirectly
*NERRRARD i US$38,100,000 - T191% HERHEERD
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHERRMARAR G US$27,000,000 - T1.91% HEREERR
Jinan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
LERERRAN G RMB7,300,000 - 7191% #HESm
Shanghai Kong L|ng Food Co, Ltd.* PRC Sale of beverages
FOERRRE(GFEERAF G US$272,486,800 - 7191%  RERR
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Investment holding
REERLR (BE) BRA &k US$129,736,518 - T91%  RABE
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) L|m|ted Hong Kong Investment holding
RABRRRAERAT i US$358,216,517 - 1191% RARK
Master Kong PBB Investment Co. Ltd. # PRC Investment holding
BEHE (EM) BRAF i US$197,800,000 - T191% BERHEERR
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBZTEHHARLA i US$66,650,000 - T191% BERHEERR
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERBEVERHARLA i US$14,119,449 - 5064% BERHERR
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERFARAHERAA G US§20,000,000 - 401%  RERHERR
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RRAFURHHARAT G RMB100,000,000 - 7791%  RERHEAR
Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RAEFAHERA G US$6,600,000 - 7791%  RERHEAR
CHENGDU PEPSICO BEVERAGES COMPANY LIMITED PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNEEHHARLA i US$1,350,000 - T191% BERHEERR
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERREARHHARLA i US$17,845,000 - 1354% BERHEEAM
* CHONGQING PEPSI-TIANFU BEVERAGE PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
COMPANY LIMITED
RIBETEBHARLA i US$12,250,000 - T191% BERHERR
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited *  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* MEFARARERAR G US§10,400,000 - 5843% RERHEHR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
SVEELES LI G US§28,000,000 - T791%  RERHERR
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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Rl AN
£ EXHE ifEs,/ BRTRE JEfk IR AELL IERK

Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity

E# A&
Directly Indirectly
EAEEDES Aer] N i RMB19,764,000 - T191% RERHEERD
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BEHE @8 ARAA i US$9,000,000 - 5454% BEREERD
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited® PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
GECEDE Sl i US$5,000,000 - T1.91% HEREERR
Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BHEFRHARAT G US§21,000,000 - T191%  RERHERR
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited* ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
HERRFTRSHARAR G US§35,000,000 - T791%  RERHEAR
Harbin Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHRERRAR RERKEE - b RER
EHRERRLA BRLEE US$147,232,000 100% REBR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
HEIBEARARAR AERARES Usst 100% —  REER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERARLRRRARAT i US$135,000,000 - 100% REDFEERH
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration PRC Provision of properties management
Co., Ltd. * service
* ZEMBRREMATIINEGE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
YELRZE - companies.
# R QAR # English translation for identification purposes only.

HAG ARG B A P BIR A 2 f B A RIS
N A2EI b

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as wholly-
owned foreign enterprises.
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P.O. Box 309 Ugland House
Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

BB (2REE)

BT BEE18 5
FIREY 56 5607 F
T ¢ (852) 2511 1911
{8H : (852) 2511 7911
BT : info@tingyi.com

FEMRERE

R /8201103
B7TE
R P& 16885k

www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

ERBMARSBMR AT
EAHARIR 0 0322

BEFLERE
EHARIR 0 910322
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Cayman Islands

HONG KONG (Global Business)

Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2511-1911

Fax: (852) 2511-7911

E-mail: info@tingyi.com

PRC OFFICE

No.1688, Wuzhong Road
Minhang District
Shanghai City 201103
PRC

www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Security code: 0322

Taiwan Depositary Receipts
Security Code: 910322
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MEEZEE(EEeXFE) Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (Chairman)
HHAMG—PEE(EETERNEF) Mr. Junichiro Ida (Vice-Chairman)
MARREE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen
BRERFTE Mr. Koji Shinohara
miEBEESLE Mr. Yuko Takahashi

BELZT Ms. Tseng Chien

RERERE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun

FRELE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock

R R A Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd. Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.
2nd Floor, Compass Centre 2nd Floor, Compass Centre

P.O. Box 448, George Town P.O. Box 448, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1106 Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
BREBLFELBRAF Hong Kong Registrars Limited
BE Shops 1712-1716
BFE2RAER183 5K 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
AFPLT7 E 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai
1712-1716 548 Hong Kong
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AR FEIRTT Agricultural Bank of China

RFTIRTT ANZ Bank

PEERTT Bank of China

B IRTT Bank of Ningbo

R AR IR TT China Construction Bank

B R R ER AT China Merchants Bank

B R AESRTT China Minsheng Bank

ERIRTT DBS Bank

EEEERT Deutsche Bank

AR RIE & RTT Development Bank of Japan Inc.

R TrgdRTT Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

BHEBERTT Metrobank

A AR IEIRTT Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

HA=ZZBBRTT MUFG Bank

A ERITBR A A Rabobank

HEIRTT SPD Bank

AAR=HERBITRHBIRAA] Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

RERTT United Overseas Bank

A FIRITRIRE X F BT HES The above banks are arranged in alphabetical order

ERIEERVE AT Sidley Austin

e Z LR - PRC principal legal advisers:

TR ERAN =% T Haiwen & Partners

BRI RN B AT AllBright Law Offices

FEHE%E - as to Cayman Islands law:

BLERMEBM(EE) Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP
BREREEEEHR

RERIR(EE)GAMEBHAAERA A Mazars CPA Limited

BANE TR Certified Public Accountants
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
RS EEMKIIANERAT

Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability

FEHEHRER / Stock Code: 0322
{5551 For identification purposes only
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